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ABOUT US

MISSION
1.	 Propagate Sikh Teachings and Values

	 is`K Drm bwry jwxU krvwauNidAW is`KI jIvn jwc dy DwrnI bxwauxw [

2.	 Strengthen Chardi Kala Spirit Of Community

	 kOm ivc cVHdI klw dI Bwvnw pYdw krnI [

3.	 Raise Awareness Of Sikhs To Others

	 dUsirAW nUM is`K kOm bwry jwxU krvwauxw [

VISION
Vibrant and Inclusive Community Practising The Sikh Way Of Life

is`KI jIvn jwc Anuswr cVHdIklw Aqy audwrvwdI smwj dw inrmwx [

VALUES
1.	 Honesty 

	 iemwndwrI 

2.	 Integrity 

	 iekswrqw

3.	 Compassion 

	 dieAw

4.	 Respect 

	 siqkwr

5.	 Courtesy 

	 iSStwcwr

sMsQw bwry
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OVERVIEW OF CSGB 

The Board was constituted under an Act of Parliament in 1981 – “The Central Sikh Gurdwara Board Act” [Chapter 
357]. It manages two Gurdwaras (Central Sikh Temple and Silat Road Sikh Temple) and the Sikh Centre.

The Management of the Board as conferred by Section 16 of the Act, is governed by the CSGB Rules 1987.

Central Sikh Gurdwara Board is an Exempt Charity.

borf dw sMgTn 1981 iv~c sMsd dy ie~k AYkt - "sYNtrl is`K gurduAwrw borf " (AiDAwie 357) dy qihq kIqw igAw sI[ ieh do 
gurduAwrw swihb (sYNtrl is`K gurduAwrw borf Aqy islyt rof is~K tYNpl) Aqy is~K sYNtr dw pRbMD krdw hY[

AYkt dI Dwrw 16 duAwrw id~qy gey borf dw pRbMD sI.AYs.jI.bI 1987 dy inXmW duAwrw clwieAw jWdw hY[

sYNtrl is~K gurduAwrw borf iek AgjYNpt cYrtI sMsQw hY [

Unique Registration Number (UEN):
T09CC0002F

Registered Address:
2 Towner Road, Singapore 327804

Auditor:
Asensia Assurance Chartered Accountants

Bankers:
CIMB Bank Berhad
Overseas- Chinese Banking Corporation Limited
The Development Bank Of Singapore Limited
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PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE

Waheguru Ji Ka Khalsa, 
Waheguru Ji Ki Fateh.

CSGB’S VISION AND MISSION
The 2019 -2021 Council continued to be guided by the 
Central Sikh Gurdwara Board’s Vision and Mission.

The Vision of the Board is to create a vibrant and 
inclusive community practicing the Sikh way of life.
The Mission of the Board includes:
•	 Propagate Sikh teachings and values
•	 Strengthen Chardi Kala spirit of the community
•	 Raise awareness of Sikhs among others 

CSGB’S ACTIVITIES FOR 2019-2021
The Board’s activities can be grouped as:
•	 Religious
•	 Educational
•	 Care and Share
•	 Outreach 
•	 Projects
•	 Institution Collaboration 

Religious activities form the bedrock of the two 
Gurdwaras and the primary focus has been to 
propagate Sikh teachings and values as well as to 
strengthen the Chardi Kala spirit of the community. 
From daily prayers to weekly and monthly prayers, 
signature events, gurpurabs, weddings, bhogs, 
naming ceremonies and langgar, a team of temple 
managers, priests, ragi jathas and langgaris were at 
hand to execute the programmes with the help of 
volunteers and Council members.

Educational activities form the bedrock of Sikh Centre 
and the primary focus for religious activities include 
propagating Sikh teachings and values as well as 
strengthening the Chardi Kala spirit of the community. 
From Sikhi Parchar classes/seminars, Sojhi classes, 
Gurmat Sangeet classes, again a team of professional 
instructors were at hand to execute the programmes 
with the help of volunteers and Council members. 

Care and Share activities conducted at the Sikh 
Centre cater for the well being of the elders within 
our community. The Suneripal and Sunerhisehalia 
programme is a joint initiative of CSGB and SIWEC. 
Activities include talks, exercise sessions and visits to 
places of interest.

Outreach activities also conducted by the Sikh 
Centre help raise the awareness of Sikhs among 
others. From 2019 to 2021, CSGB hosted more than 
3,000 visitors to the two Gurdwaras. These visitors 
came from various organisations including schools, 
universities, uniformed groups, civil service, other 
religious organisations, foreign embassies and 
grassroot organisations among others. The visitors 
were hosted to a defined programme that included 
presentation and tour of Darbar Hall, Gurmat Sangeet 
Academy, kitchen and the langgar hall. The hosts 
included staff members, volunteers and Council 
members.

Project activities included:
•	 Bukit Batok Tender
•	 Silat Road Sikh Temple/ Sikh Centre Additions & 	
	 Alterations (SRST/SC A and A)
•	 CSGB Visiting Professorship
•	 “Saint Soldier” Documentary

The Bukit Batok Tender for a plot of land was 
completed and submitted to HDB in January 2020. 
Two bidders had submitted bids for the plot. In 
addition to CSGB, the other bidder was a private 
company. After seven months of evaluation and 
multiple requests for extensions, HDB decided in 
August 2020 to not award the tender to any party. No 
reasons were given but our understanding was that 
our bid did not meet the minimum price requirement. 

The SRST/SC A and A commenced in August 20 
after a five month delay due to Circuit breaker and 
the unavailability of construction workers. The project 
is currently well in progress and is expected to be 
completed in the second quarter of 2021 and well 
within the approved budget of S$2.5 million.  With 
Waheguru’s blessings and the support of the sangat, 
funds raised by the end of 2020 amounted to S$1.7 
million. With the completion of this project, the sangat 
will have a facility that will take them through the next 
25 years.

The CSGB Visiting Professorship In Sikh Studies, 
which has been in the works since 2017, was soft 
launched in September 2019 at National University of 
Singapore (NUS). A joint initiative between CSGB and 
the Faculty of Arts and Social Sciences at NUS, the 
Visiting Professorship will need to have $1.2 million 
raised by CSGB with the Government matching it dollar 
for dollar. The Visiting Professorship will be managed 
and executed completely by NUS and its focus will 
include the Sikh way of life and the Punjabi diaspora. 
By the end 2020, a total of $180,000 has been raised. 
CSGB is discussing with the Sikh Missionary Society 
to be co owners of this initiative including working 
together to raise the funds of $1.2 million by 2021.
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PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE strain to the Sangat as they were prevented from 
not only visiting Gurdwaras but also had to cancel 
significant events like marriages and bhogs. The 
Board worked to implement streaming of the daily 
programmes conducted in the Gurdwaras, continued 
with langgar but in a takeaway format and worked 
with Ministry of Culture, Community and Youth (MCCY) 
and other regulatory authorities to test and eventually 
implement safe management plans which allowed the 
Gurdwaras to be reopened and activities to resume.

During the Circuit Breaker, the Board saw its income 
reduced by 80% as traditional donations stopped. 
To overcome this challenge, the Board initiated 
digital payments including Paynow, internet banking 
and Give.Asia, which helped mitigate the financial 
situation. 

The mental well-being of the staff was another area 
of concern that the Board had to deal with. Many of 
the foreign staff were challenged not only by the fact 
that they could not return home because of the travel 
restrictions but also concerns as to how their families 
were doing. The Board had to engage with the staff to 
resolve their problems and assure them that as soon 
as the situation changed, immediate arrangements 
would be made to allow them to travel. Counselling 
resources were also made available for the staff 

Attracting Members To Serve On The Council
This continues to be a challenge but the senior 
members of the Council continued their efforts to 
identify potential members for the Council. Efforts 
were conducted through the CSGB Bulletin as well as 
through personal contact. This challenge continues to 
be work in progress.

Attracting Local Staff To Work In Gurdwaras
The Gurdwaras have a challenge recruiting locals 
for available jobs in spite of the fact that the 
Board’s employment terms have been revised to 
be competitive. However the Board will continue to 
address this challenge and is hopeful of attracting 
qualified individuals to join it.

Attracting Quality Foreign Religious Staff
The Board continues to adopt diligent interviewing 
processes to identify not only well qualified and 
experienced religious staff but more importantly 
employees who also have a good command of 
English. Thus the Board hopes it will improve their 
quality of delivery.

In closing I would like to take this opportunity to 
thank the Board members, Council members, Staff 
and Volunteers for their invaluable time, contributions 
and their dedication to serve Sadh Sangat with love. I 
would also, with folded hands seek your forgiveness 
for any shortfalls or mistakes that my Council members 
or I made during our term of office. 

Waheguru Ji Ka Khalsa, Waheguru Ji Ki Fateh.

CSGB is proud to be one of the significant sponsors 
of the “Saint Soldier” Documentary on Bhai Maharaj 
which was completed in the last quarter of 2019 and 
released in December 2019 to the sangat and general 
public. Directed and produced by two of our own Sikh 
youths, the documentary covered shoots in UK, India 
and Singapore. Not only was this the first effort to 
document the life of Bhai Maharaj in a documentary 
format but the ultimate recognition of the effort was 
when it won the Best Feature Documentary (Gold 
Awards) at the Global Indian Film Festival in India. 

Institutional Collaboration included:
•	 Hindu Endowment Board Ashram (HEB)
•	 Sikh Welfare Council (SIWEC)
•	 Singapore Sikh Education Foundation (SSEF)
•	 Coordinating – Council of Sikh Institutions (CCSI) 
•	 Sikh Sewaks
•	 Isteri Sat Sanggat

HEB Ashram is a halfway house of which CSGB is 
one of the founding donors. Catering for individuals, 
who are completing their rehabilitation from drugs 
and crime, CSGB in addition to the initial donation 
of $100,000 has continued contributing monthly 
donations of $250 as well as organizing sewa 
activities for the residents as part of its integration 
process.

With SIWEC, CSGB continues to support the institution 
with monthly donations of $1,500 and both rent 
and utility free office space at Central Sikh Temple. 
Additionally, CSGB and SIWEC have initiated an 
Education Bursary scheme to support needy students 
with bursary grants.

With SSEF, CSGB continues to support the institution 
with monthly donations of $2,500 and both rent and 
utility free office space at Silat Road Sikh Temple. 

CSGB also supports Sikh Sewaks and the Isteri 
Sat Sangat with rent and utility free office space at 
Central Sikh Temple. Additionally, both the institutions 
organise joint programmes periodically.

CSGB worked with CCSI and the other institutions on 
the community- wide 550th celebrations of the Birth of 
Guru Nanak Dev Ji in 2019. Not only did CSGB provide 
administrative and financial reconciliation support, 
but also hosted the final event of the celebrations in 
November 2019 when not only the Sikh community 
joined in but also the wider community. Mr Heng 
Swee Keat, the Deputy Prime Minister and Finance 
Minister, graced the event. 

CHALLENGES FACED AND AREAS TO IMPROVE 
COVID-19

The Covid 19 crisis caused significant issues to the 
Board and the Sangat. The closure of the Gurdwaras 
during the Circuit Breaker caused significant mental 
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pRDwn jI dw sMdyS

vwihgurU jI kw Kwlsw, 
vwihgurU jI kI Piqh.

sYNtrl is`K gurduAwrw borf dw audyS Aqy imSn 2019-2021 
dI kwauNsl lgwqwr sYNtrl is`K gurduAwrw borf dy ivzn Aqy 
imSn nMU pRcwrx leI Xqnb`D hY [

borf dw idRStIkox smUihk BweIcwry dI auswrI krnw hY jo is~K 
jIvn jWc dw pwrnI hY[

borf dy imSn iv~c Swml hn:
•	 is~KI isiKAwvW Aqy kdrW kImqW dw pRcwr
•	 BweIcwry dI cVHdI klw ƒ mzbUq krnw
•	 dUsirAW ivc is~KW pRqI jwgrUkqw pYdw krnw

sI.AYs.jI.bI dIAW 2019-2021 dIAW gqIivDIAW
borf dIAW gqIivDIAW ies pRkwr hn:
•	 Dwrimk
•	 ividAk
•	 syvw-sMBwl Aqy vMf Ckxw
•	 is`KI jwgrUkqw phuMc 
•	 pRojYkt
•	 sMsQw dUsrIAW sMsQw nwl myl jol

Dwrimk gqIivDIAW dovW gurduAwirAW dw mnorQ bMndIAW hn 
Aqy mu~K isDWq is~K is~iKAwvW Aqy kdrW-kImqW dw pRcwr 
krn dy nwl-nwl BweIcwry dI cVHdI klw ƒ mzbUq krnw 
hY[ rozwnw Ardws qoN lY ky h&qwvwrI Aqy mwisk pRwrQnwvW, 
smwgmW, gurpurbW, ivAwh, BogW, nwmW dIAW rsmW Aqy lMgr, 
vwlMtIArW Aqy kONsl dy mYNbrW dI shwieqw nwl pRogrwmW ƒ 
clwaux leI gurduAwry dy pRbMDkW, gRMQI isMG, rwgI jiQAW Aqy 
lwNgrI Awid smu`cI tIm duAwrw poRgrwm clwey gey [

ividAk gqIivDIAW is~K sYNtr dw ADwr bxdIAW hn Aqy 
Dwrimk gqIivDIAW leI mu~K Poks is~K is~iKAwvW Aqy kdrW-
kImqW dw pRcwr krn dy nwl-nwl BweIcwry dI cVdIklw Bwvnw 
ƒ mzbUq krnw Swml hY[is~KI pRcwr klwsW / sYmInwrW, soJI 
klwsW, gurmiq sMgIq klwsW Awid leI AiDAwpkW dI ie~k 
tIm, vlMtIArW Aqy kONsl mYNbrW dI shwieqw nwl pRogrwmW ƒ 
clwieAw jWdw hY[

is~K sYNtr ivKy krvwey jWdy dyKBwl Aqy sWJy kIqy jWdy kMm swfy 
BweIcwry dy bzurgW dI BlweI leI kMm krdy hn[ suinhrypl 
Aqy sunihrIAW shylIAW pRogrwm sI.AYs.jI.bI Aqy isvYk dI 
sWJI pihlkdmI hY[ gqIivDIAW ivc g~lbwq, ksrq sYSn Aqy 
idlcspI QwvW qy sor-spwtw kIqw jwdW hY [

is~K sYNtr duAwrw kIqIAW geIAW phuMc dIAW gqIivDIAW dUijAW 
drimAwn is~KW dI jwgrUkqw vDwaux iv~c shwieqw krdIAW 
hn[ 2019 qoN 2021 q~k, sI.AYs.jI.bI ny dovW gurduAwirAW 
iv~c 3,000 qoN v~D mihmwnW dI myzbwnI kIqI[ ieh ivztr 
v~K-v~K sMsQwvW qoN Awey sn ijnHW ivc skUl, XUnIvrstIAW, 
isvl syvw, hor Dwrimk sMsQwvW, ivdySI dUqGrW Aqy sQwink 
sMsQwvW Swml sn[ sMgqW ƒ ie~k pRBwiSq pRogrwm dI myzbwnI 
kIqI geI, ijs iv~c  Awey gey mihmwnw leI drbwr hwl, 
gurmiq sMgIq AkYfmI, rsoeI Aqy lMgr hwl dI pySkwrI Swml 
sn[ mihmwnW iv~c stwP mYNbr, vlMtIAr Aqy kONsl mYNbr 
Swml huMdy hn[

pRojYkt dIAW gqIivDIAW iv~c Swml hn:
•	 buikt bwqok tYNfr
•	 AYs.Awr.AYs.tI / AYs.sI: ey Aqy ey
•	 ivizitMg pRoPYsriSp
•	 “syNt soljr” dsqwvyzI

zmIn dy iek plwt leI buikq bwqok tYNfr mukMml ho igAw 
sI Aqy jnvrI 2020 ivc AYcfIbI ƒ jmHw kr id~qw igAw 
sI[ do bolIdwrW ny plwt leI bolI pyS kIqI sI[ sI.AYs.jI.bI 
qoN ielwvw, dUjw bolIdwr ie~k in~jI kMpnI sI[ s~q mhIinAW 
dy mulWkx Aqy ivsQwr leI keI bynqIAW dy bwAd, AYc.fI.bI 
ny Agsq 2020 iv~c iksy vI iDr ƒ tYNfr nw dyx dw PYslw 
kIqw[ koeI kwrn nhIN id`qy gey pr swfI smJ ieh sI ik swfI 
bolI G~to G~t kImq dI zrUrq ƒ pUrw nhIN krdI[

AYs.Awr.AYs.tI. / AYs.sI.ey Aqy ey srkt brykr Aqy auswrI 
kwimAW dI auplbDqw dy kwrn pMj mhIinAW dI dyrI qoN bwAd 
20 Agsq iv~c SurU hoey[ pRjYkt ies vyly cMgI qrHW pRgqI 
ADIn hY Aqy aumId kIqI jWdI hY ik 2021 dI dUjI iqmwhI 
iv~c $ 2.5 imlIAn dy mnjUr bjt dy AMdr pUrw ho jwvygw[ 
vwihgurU dIAW AsIsW Aqy sMgqW dy sihXog nwl, 2020 dy AMq 
q~k iek~Ty kIqy PMfW dI rkm $ 1.7 imlIAn sI[ ies pRjYkt 
dy mukMml hox nwl sMgq ƒ jo shUlq imlygI auh Agly 25 swlW 
qkzwrI rhygI [

sI.AYs.jI.bI. ivizitMg pRoPYsriSp ien is~K st~fIz, jo ik 
2017 qoN kMm kr rhI hY, ƒ sqMbr 2019 iv~c AYn.XU.AYs. 
iv~c cwlU kIqw igAw sI[ AYn.XU.AYs. ivKy sI.AYs.jI.bI. Aqy 
klw, smwj ivigAwn dI PYkltI dy ivckwr ie~k sWJw Xqn 
SurU krn leI, iek smwgm 2017 ivc kIqw igAw [ ivizitMg 
pRoPYsriSp ƒ sI.AYs.jI.bI. duAwrw fwlr dI qulnw iv~c 1.2 
imlIAn iek~Ty krn dI zrUrq hoeygI[ ivizitMg pRoPYsriSp dw 
pRbMD Aqy AYn.X.UAYs. duAwrw pUrI qrHW sMcwln krygI Aqy ies 
dy ADIn ivc is~K jIvn jWc Aqy pMjwbI fwiesporw aupr Koj 
kIqI jweygI[ 2020 dy AMq q~k, ku~l 180,000 fwlr iek~Ty 
kIqy jw cu~ky hn[ sI.AYs.jI.bI. Aqy is~K imSnrI suswietI nwl 
ies pihl dy sih mwlk bxn qy ivcwr vtWdrw kr rhI hY ijs 
iv~c 2021 q~k 1.2 imlIAn dy PMf iek~Ty krn leI iml ky 
kMm krnw Swml hY[

sI.AYs.jI.bI. BweI mhwrwj bwry “sMq sYink” dsqwvyzI jo ik 
2019 dI AwKrI iqmwhI ivc mukMml hoeI sI Aqy dsMbr 2019 
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pRDwn jI dw sMdyS ivc sMgq Aqy Awm lokW leI jwrI kIqI geI sI, dy iek 
mh~qvpUrx pRXojk vjoN mwx mihsUs kr rhI hY[ inrdySq Aqy 
swfy Awpxy do is~K nOjvwnW duAwrw iqAwr kIqw igAw, XUky, 
ieMfIAw Aqy isMgwpur ivc ies dsqwvyzI jwxkwrI ƒ Swml 
kIqw igAw[ BweI mhwrwj dy jIvn ƒ iek dsqwvyzI PwrmYt 
ivc ilKx dw ieh pihlw auprwlw hI nhIN sI, blik koiSS dI 
AwKrI mwnqw audoN hoeI jdoN iesny Bwrq ivc globl ieMfIAn 
iPlm PYstIvl ivc srboqm PIcr dsqwvyzI (golf Avwrf) 
ij~qy[

sMsQwgq sihXog iv~c Swml hn:
•	 AYc.eI.bI. AwSrm
•	 sIvYk
•	 AYs. AYs. eI. AY~P.
•	 sI.sI.AY~s.AweI.
•	 is~K syvk
•	 iesqrI siq sMgq

AYc.eI.bI. AwSrm ie~k suDwr Gr hY ijs dw sI.AYs.jI.bI. 
sMsQwpk dwnIAW iv~coN ie~k hY[ auhnW ivAkqIAW leI kYtirMg, 
jo dvweIAW Aqy AprwD qoN Awpxw muV vsybw pUrw kr rhy hn, 
$100,000 dy SurUAwqI dwn qoN ielwvw sI.AYs.jI.bI. ny $250 
dy mwisk dwn dy nwl-nwl ies dI eykIkrn pRikirAw  dy 
ih~sy vjoN vsnIkW leI syvw gqIivDIAW dw AwXojn krnw jwrI 
r~iKAw hY[

isvYk dy nwl, sI.AYs.jI.bI. sYNtrl is~K tYNpl ivKy 1500 
dy mhInyvwr dwn Aqy ikrwey Aqy shUlq muPq dPqr leI donoN 
sMsQw dw smrQn jwrI r~KdI hY[ ies qoN ielwvw, sI.AYs.jI.bI. 
Aqy isvYk ny ie~k brsrI grWtW vwly loVvMd ividAwrQIAW dI 
shwieqw leI AYjUkySn brsrI skIm SurU kIqI hY[

AYs.AYs.eI.AYP. dy nwl, sI.AYs.jI.bI., islwt rof is~K tYNpl 
ivKy 2500 dy mhInyvwr dwn, ikrwey Aqy shUlq muPq dPqr 
leI donoN sMsQw dw smrQn jwrI hY[

sI.AYs.jI.bI., is~K syvk Aqy iesqrI siq sMgq ƒ sYNtrl 
is`K tYNpl ivKy ikrwey Aqy shUlq rihq dPqr dI jgHw dy nwl 
vI shwieqw krdw hY[ ies qoN ielwvw, dovyN sMsQwvW smyN-smyN qy 
sWJy pRogrwm AwXoijq krdIAW hn[

sI.AYs.jI.bI. ny sI.sI.AYs.AweI. Aqy hor sMsQwvW dy nwl swl 
2019 iv~c sRI gurU nwnk dyv jI dy pRkwS purb dy smu~cy 
550 vyN pRkwS purb qy kMm kIqw[ sI.AYs.bI.bI. ny nw isrP 
pRSwskI Aqy iv~qI myl-imlwp shwieqw pRdwn kIqI, blik 
nvMbr 2019 iv~c pRogrwmW dy AMqm smwgm dI myzbwnI vI 
kIqI[ is~K BweIcwry ivc hI nhIN blik ivSwl BweIcwry vI ies 
ivc Swml hoey[ SRImwn hYNg svI kIt, aup pRDwn mMqrI Aqy iv~q 
mMqrI, ny ies gurpurb ƒ vyiKAw[

cuxOqIAW dw swhmxw krn Aqy suDwr krn dy Kyqr koivf 19 

koivf 19 sMkt ny borf Aqy sMgq leI mh~qvpUrn mu`dy 
pYdw kIqy[ srkt brykr dOrwn gurduAwirAW dy bMd hox nwl 
sMgq ƒ kw&I mwnisk pRySwnI AweI ikauNik aunHW ƒ nw isrP 
gurduAwirAW dy drSn krn qoN roikAw igAw blik ivAwh Aqy 
Bog vrgy mh~qvpUrn smwgmW ƒ vI r~d krnw ipAw[ borf ny 
gurduAwirAW ivc krvwey jWdy rozwnw pRogrwmW dI stRIimMg ƒ 

lwgU krn leI kMm kIqw, lMgr jwrI r~iKAw pr iek inXmq 
rUp ivc Aqy AYmsIsIvweI Aqy hor rYgUlytrI AQwrtIAW nwl 
kMm krn leI kMm kIqw Aqy AMq ivc sur~iKAq pRbMDn XojnwvW 
ƒ lwgU krn dI iejwzq id~qI ijs nwl gurduAwirAW ƒ dubwrw 
KolHx Aqy gqIivDIAW muV cwlU krn dI AwigAw id~qI geI[

iv~qI Gwt iek hor mh~qvpUrx cuxOqI sI ijs nwl borf ƒ 
swhmxw krnw ipAw[ srikt brykr dy dOrwn, borf ny AwpxI 
AwmdnI 80% G~t vyKI jdoN rvwieqI dwn ruk gey[ ies cuxOqI 
ƒ dUr krn leI, borf ny ifjItl Bugqwn dI SurUAwq kIqI ijs 
iv~c py-lw, py-nwE, ieMtrnYt bYNikMg Aqy igPt eySIAw sI ijs 
ny iv~qI siQqI ƒ Gtwaux iv~c shwieqw kIqI[
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S/O Karnal Singh

22.Sarabjit Singh 
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23. Sarjit Singh 
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24. Sukhbir Singh 
S/O Surjit Singh

25. Talwinder
Singh
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GOVERNING BOARD

Central Sikh Gurdwara Board (CSGB)

Central Sikh Temple (CST)

Silat Road Sikh Temple (SRST)

Sikh Centre (SC)

Name
Current Charity 
Board Appointment 

Occupation Past Charity Board Appointments

Baljit Singh President, CSGB 
1 August 20

Chief Executive Officer –
Miltrade Technologies Pte Ltd

Chairman of Silat Road Sikh Temple
CSGB Representative to SIWEC
CSGB Representative to SSEF

Dr Narinder Kaur Secretary, CSGB Public Officer Founding member of “ I Love 
Children” (Voluntary)

Balbir Singh Treasurer, CSGB Retired Vice President Asia – 
Pac Motorola Solutions Inc

CSGB langgar outreach programme 
co-ordinator & CST Treasurer

REPRESENTATIVES TO OTHER INSTITUTIONS

Sikh Welfare Council: 
(By appointment)

Singapore Sikh Education Foundation
(By appointment)

Baljit Singh and Dr Narinder Kaur Baljit Singh and Harmit Singh

CSGB-SIET Bursary Fund  Award SINDA/SIET

Dr Narinder Kaur Jaspal Singh Hayer and Harjit Kaur

Co-Ordinating Council Of Sikh Institutions (CCSI) ASHRAM Half-Way House

Baljit Singh and Balbir Singh Ranjit Singh Wahla and Jagjit Singh Sandhu

Sikh Advisory Board

Harjit Singh Dhotian October 2019
Avtar Singh and Simranjit Singh October 2020
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ORGANISATION STRUCTURE

Central Sikh Gurdwara Board

Central Sikh 
Temple (CST)
Management 
Committee & 

Staff

Silat Road Sikh 
Temple (SRST)

Management 
Committee & 

Staff

Sikh Centre (SC)
Management 
Committee & 

Staff

CSGB 
Secretariat
Management 
Committee & 

Staff

SRST SC A&A 
Committee

CSGB NUS 
Visiting 

Professorship 
Project 

Committee

Central Sikh Gurdwara Board 
Executive Committee

Honorary Auditor

CST MC
Amarjeet Kour 

Jasbir Singh

Gurdeep Singh

Paramjot Jatha

Jagsir Singh

Harjinder Singh

SRST MC
Gurmukh Singh

Rajinder Singh

Mahabeer Jatha

Manbir Singh

Malkit Kaur

SC MC
Jaswinder Singh

Jatinder Singh

Gurminder Singh

CSGB 
Secretariat 

Kamaljeet Kaur

Paremjit Kaur

Harpajan Singh

Kumara 
Subramaniam 
Lakshmanan

Jasmindar Singh

Baljit Singh

Balbir Singh

Manjeet Singh

Dilbagh Singh

Karpal Singh

Harpajan Singh

Rajinder Singh

Baljit Singh

Gurdip Singh

Karpal Singh Mehli

Dilbagh Singh

Gurcharan Singh 
Kesail

Professor Kuldip 
Singh

Professor Kulwant 
Singh

Sarabjit Singh

Dinesh Singh 

BOARD MEMBERSHIP

The Board’s membership register for 2019 and 2020 are as follows:

There were a total of 52 New Members for 2019 & 2020.

TOTAL as at 31 December 2020 1010

Organisation 31 Dec 19 31 Dec 20

Central Sikh Gurdwara Board 3 4

CST 8 8

SRST 9 9

SC 5 5

Total 25 26

STAFFING
The Board employs staff to manage the operations of its various units as follows.
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BOARD MEMBERSHIP
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
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20152020 2016201720182019

SRST & SC Revenue CST Revenue Building Fund Total Incl CSGB Office Revenue

Year SRST & SC Revenue CST Revenue Building Fund Total incl CSGB office Revenue

2020  $960,417.00   $600,940.00   $791,760.00   $2,370,402.00 

2019  $1,678,861.00   $998,283.00   $212,788.00   $2,907,217.00 

2018  $1,740,380.00   $860,930.00   $4,820.00   $2,623,415.00 

2017  $1,766,000.00   $843,534.00   $714,100.00   $3,340,919.00 

2016  $1,920,200.00   $827,724.00   $23,898.00   $2,789,107.00 

2015  $ 1,816,106.00   $862,178.00   $10,750.00   $2,706,319.00  

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Revenue Analysis 2015-2020

Contribution - Other 
Institutions

4% Others (Insurance, Medical, Printing, Misc)
10%

Religious Celebration
3%

Community Kitchen
22%

Utilities 
12%Maintenance

13%

Staff Related 
36%

Operating Expenses Breakdown 2020 (wo Depreciation)
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Operating Expenses (Excl Depr) Surplus (Excl Depr)

Expenses & Surplus (Excluding Depreciation)

Operating Expenses Breakdown 2020 (wo Depreciation)

Others(Insurance, Medical, Printing, Misc)  $151,471 

Religious Celebration  $44,904 

Community Kitchen  $333,926 

Utilities  $193,112 

Maintenance  $204,609 

Staff Related  $561,056 

Contribution - Other institutions  $57,000 

Year Operating Expenses (Excl Depr) Surplus ( Excl Depr)

2020  $1,546,078.00  $287,516.00 

2019  $2,335,824.00  $595,991.00 

2018  $2,122,771.00  $537,155.00 

2017  $1,972,929.00  $664,073.00 

2016  $2,276,808.00  $485,841.00 

2015  $2,488,028.00  $207,541.00 

 
CSGB manages and operates the three Sikh 
Institutions of Central Sikh Temple (CST), Silat Road 
Sikh Temple (SRST) and the Sikh Centre (SC). CSGB 
does not receive any Government funding and is 
dependent on donations from the sanggat to fund 
and sustain its programmes and activities. In 2020 
due to the COVID-19 measures CSGB received Job 
Support Scheme (JSS) funding for CSGB’s Singapore 
citizens and PR staff, as they qualify for JSS. CSGB 
did not qualify or receive any other sort of COVID-19 
Government funding.

During the COVID-19 Circuit Breaker, Gurdwaras were 
closed to all Sanggat and cash walk - in donations were 
not possible. CSGB introduced cashless donation 
through PayNow, Paylah & Pay Anyone mobile wallets 
in addition to bank transfers. CSGB also introduced 
live streaming of Kirtan and Prayers on Facebook and 
YouTube to enable the sanggat to stay connected 

sIAYsjIbI, sYNtrl is~K tYNpl (sIAYstI), islt rof is~K 
tYNpl (AYsAwrAYstI) Aqy is~K sYNtr (AYssI) dIAW iqMn is~K 
sMsQwvW dw pRbMDn Aqy sMcwln krdw hY[ sIAYsjIbI ƒ koeI 
srkwrI PMf pRwpq nhIN huMdw Aqy sMgqW duAwrw Awpxy pRogrwmW 
Aqy gqIivDIAW ƒ PMf krn Aqy kwiem r~Kx leI dwn krn 
'qy inrBr krdw hY[ 2020 iv~c koivf 19 aupwvW kwrn 
sIAYsjIbI ƒ sIAYsjIbI dy isMgwpur nwgirkW Aqy pIAwr stwP 
leI nOkrI shwieqw skIm (jyAYsAYs) PMifMg imlI sI, ikauNik 
auh jyAYsAYs leI Xogqw pUrI krdy hn[ sIAYsjIbI ny iksy hor 
iksm dI koivf-19 srkwrI PMifMg ƒ Xogqw pUrI nhIN kIqI jW 
pRwpq nhIN kIqI[

koivf-19 srkt bRykr dOrwn gurduAwirAW ƒ swrI sMgq leI 
bMd kr id~qw igAw Aqy dwn iv~c nkd kYS sMBv nhIN sI[ 
sIAYsjIbI ny bYNk tRWsPr qoN ielwvw pynwE, pylwh, py mobweIl 
vwlyt rwhIN kYSlY~s dwn pyS kIqw[ sIAYsjIbI ny Pysbu~k Aqy 



CSGB ANNUAL REPORT 2019/202016

with the Gurdwaras. A “Virtual Golak” for cashless 
metha - tek donations was also introduced during live 
streaming.

The cashless donation was well received by the 
Sanggat through the Circuit Breaker and all other 
phases of the COVID-19 measures and it will continue 
to stay as additional convenient means for donations 
by well-wishers.

As langgar consumption at Gurdwaras was not possible 
during COVID-19, CSGB introduced the Langgar Pick 
Up (LPU) programme to hand out approximately 1,400 
meals per day for lunch and dinner at both SRST and 
CST with the approval of the Government. To fund this 
activity a cashless LPU fundraising drive was carried 
out on various CSGB social media channels. The LPU 
donation drive was well received by Singaporeans 
of all races and religions. Sikh Community, including 
pictures of CST kitchen was mentioned in The Straits 
Times. The LPU continues to this day, with reduced 
number of meals which is based on demand. 

As SRST is undergoing an Alterations and Additions 
renovation project, all the meals for LPU were 
prepared and packed at CST. The meals were then 
distributed from CST and transported to SRST for 
distributions too.

As shown in the audited financial statement in this 
report and also the attached charts, donations 
declined as Gurpurabs, sponsored programmes and 
Anand Karajs had to be reduced in scope and quantity 
to comply with Government COVID-19 measures. 
This led to lower Sanggat donations which were 
mitigated to some extent by introduction of cashless 
donation as stated above.  With prudent financial 
management and cost saving measures during 2020, 
CSGB was able to realise a surplus of $195,000 after 
depreciation. This surplus is significantly lower than 
previous years due to the unique circumstances and 
challenges brought on by COVID-19 for most of 2020.

The LPU donation drive began to wind down around 
July and the donation drive for SRST AA Project 
Building Fund was carried out through various social 
media and cashless channels. Give.asia was utilised to 
expand CSGB’s reach and enable credit card payment 
for the SRST AA Building Fund donation drive. The 
donation drive is ongoing at the point of publishing 
of this report as there is a shortfall of approximately 
$700, 000 to reach the $2.5M needed for the SRST 
AA construction project.

XUitaUb 'qy kIrqn Aqy pRwrQnwvW dI lweIv stRIimMg vI pyS 
kIqI qW jo sMgq ƒ gurduAwirAW nwl juVy rihx dy Xog bxwieAw 
jw sky[ lweIv stRIimMg dOrwn kYSlY~s m`Qw tyk dwn leI ie~k 
"vrcuAl golk" vI pyS kIqI geI sI[
kYSlY~s dwn ƒ srkt bRykr Aqy koivf-19 aupwvW dy hor swry 
pVwvW rwhIN sMgq duAwrw cMgI qrHW pRwpq kIqw igAw sI Aqy 
ieh SuBicMqkW duAwrw dwn leI vwDU suivDwjnk swDnW vjoN bxy 
rihxgy[

ikauNik koivf-19 dOrwn gurduAwirAW iv~c lMgr dI syvw 
sMBv nhIN sI, ies leI sIAYsjIbI ny srkwr dI mnzUrI nwl 
AYsAwrAYstI Aqy sIAYstI dovW ivKy dupihr dy Kwxy Aqy rwq 
dy Kwxy leI pRqI idn lgBg 1,400 Kwxw dyx leI lMgr ipk 
A~p (AYlpIXU) pRogrwm pyS kIqw[ ies gqIivDI ƒ PMf dyx leI 
v~K-v~K sIAYsjIbI soSl mIfIAw cYnlW 'qy kYSlY~s AYlpIXU PMf 
iek~Tw krn dI muihMm clweI geI sI[ AYlpIXU dwn muihMm ƒ 
isMgwpur vwsIAW ny swrIAW nslW Aqy DrmW dy lokW duAwrw cMgI 
qrHW pRwpq kIqw[ is~K BweIcwry, ijs iv~c sIAYstI rsoeI dIAW 
qsvIrW vI Swml sn, dw izkr stRyts tweImz iv~c kIqw igAw 
sI[ AYlpIXU A~j vI jwrI hY, ijs iv~c KwixAW dI igxqI G~t 
geI hY jo mMg 'qy AwDwirq hY[

ikauNik AYsAwrAYstI iv~c qbdIlIAW Aqy vwDy dw nvInIkrn 
pRojYkt c~l irhw hY, AYlpIXU leI swry Kwxy sIAYstI ivKy iqAwr 
kIqy gey sn Aqy pYk kIqy gey sn[ iPr Kwxy ƒ sIAYstI qoN 
vMifAw igAw Aqy vMfW leI vI AYsAwrAYstI iljwieAw igAw[

ijvyN ik ies irport iv~c Awift kIqy iv~qI ibAwn Aqy n~QI 
cwrtW iv~c idKwieAw igAw hY, dwn iv~c igrwvt AweI ikauNik 
gurpurb, spWsr kIqy pRogrwmW Aqy AwnMd kwrwj ƒ srkwrI 
koivf-19 aupwvW dI pwlxw krn leI dwiery Aqy mwqrw iv~c 
Gtwauxw ipAw[ ies nwl sMgq dwn G~t ho igAw jo au~pr d~sy 
Anuswr nkdI rihq dwn dI SurUAwq krky kuJ h~d q~k G~t 
kIqw igAw sI[ 2020 dOrwn iv~qI pRbMDn Aqy lwgq b~cq 
aupwvW dy nwl, sIAYsjIbI igrwvt qoN bwAd $195,000 dy vwDU 
ƒ mihsUs krn dy Xog sI[ ieh srpl~s 2020 dy izAwdwqr 
smyN leI koivf-19 duAwrw ilAWdy gey ivl~Kx hwlwqW Aqy 
cuxOqIAW kwrn ipCly swlW nwloN kw&I G~t hY[

AYlpIXU dwn muihMm julweI dy Aws pws Kqm krnw SurU ho igAw 
sI Aqy AYsAwrAYstI eyy pRojYkt iblifMg PMf leI dwn muihMm 
v~K-v~K soSl mIfIAw Aqy kYSlY~s cYnlW rwhIN kIqI geI sI[ 
igv.eySIAw dI vrqoN sIAYsjIbI dI phuMc dw ivsqwr krn Aqy 
AYsAwrAYstI eyey iblifMg PMf dwn muihMm leI kRYift kwrf 
Bugqwn ƒ smr~Q krn leI kIqI geI sI[ dwn muihMm ies 
irport dy pRkwSn dy smyN 'qy c~l rhI hY ikauNik AYsAwrAYstI 
eyey inrmwx pRojYkt leI loVINdy $2.5 imlIAn q~k phuMcx leI 
lgBg $700,00 dI kmI hY[
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CENTRAL SIKH GURDWARA BOARD 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1.	 CSGB Council embarked on a number of initiatives 
in this term to strengthen its corporate governance 
responsibilities. Sound corporate governance is a 
key foundational requirement for a charity to be 
run on transparency and integrity, and above all 
accountability to its stakeholders, which include 
not only CSGB’s members but also the Sanggat 
and the general public in Singapore.

2.	 The initiatives can be classified into two areas: (a) 
Strengthen CSGB’s compliance with the essential 
guidelines in the Code of Governance for Charities 
and IPCs through robust internal controls and 
transparent disclosure and governance practices; 
(b) Documentation Review, which included a 
review of the existing Finance Manual with the 
aim of ensuring financial policies in line with best 
practices in the charities sector, and formulation 
of new Manuals to document existing operational 
(day-to-day) activities of Temples and outreach 
functions. 

3.	 In terms of compliance with the code of conduct for 
Charities and IPCs, two audits were conducted by 
the Honorary Auditor and reports submitted to the 
CSGB’s Council. The reports were deliberated at 
the Council meeting and recommendations, which 
helped improve CSGB’s compliance requirements, 
were adopted and included in this Annual Report 
and CSGB’s other governance documents.

4.	 In the area of Documentation Review, a consultant 
(Shared Services for Charities (SSC) was appointed 
to: 

(i) Review CSGB’s current Finance Manual with 
the following objectives:

• Identify gaps in existing Manual vs COC 
requirements, and
• Update Manual on its policies and finance 
operations.

(ii)	Generate two new Operations Manuals, 
which document processes for, among others, 
the following main activities:

• Temples programmes for daily, weekly, 
high key and low key programmes, and
• Outreach programmes, Sikh education, 
music classes, and other religious and 
social programmes within the purview of 
the CSGB.

sYNtrl is~K gurduAwrw borf

kwrporyt gvrnYNs

1.	sIAYsjIbI kONsl ny ies dIAW kwrporyt Swsn dIAW izMmyvwrIAW 
ƒ mjbUq krn leI ies imAwd iv~c keI pihlkdmIAW SurU 
kIqIAW[kwrporyt gvrnYNs ie~k cYirtI leI pwrdrSqw Aqy 
AKMfqw 'qy clwaux leI ie~k mh~qvpUrx buinAwdI zrUrq 
hY, Aqy ies qoN ielwvw ies dy ih~sydwrW pRqI jvwbdyhI, ijs 
iv~c nw isrP sIAYsjIbI dy mYNbr hn, blik isMgwpur iv~c 
sMgqW Aqy Awm lok vI Swml hn[

2. pihlkdmIAW ƒ do KyqrW iv~c SRyxIb~D kIqw jw skdw 
hY[ (a) mzbUq AMdrUnI kMtrolW Aqy pwrdrSI Kulwsy Aqy 
Swsn pRQwvW rwhIN cYirtIz Aqy AweIpIsI leI Swsn zwbqy 
iv~c zrUrI idSw-inrdySW dI pwlxw ƒ mzbUq kro; (A) 
dsqwvyz smIiKAw, ijs iv~c cYirtIz Kyqr iv~c sB qoN 
vDIAw AiBAwsW dy Anuswr iv~qI nIqIAW ƒ XkInI bxwaux 
dy audyS nwl mOjUdw iv~q mYnUAl dI smIiKAw, Aqy mMdrW Aqy 
AwaUtrIc PMkSnW dIAW mOjUdw sMcwln (rozwnw) gqIivDIAW 
ƒ dsqwvyzb~D krn leI nvyN mYnUAl iqAwr krnw Swml 
sI[

3. cYirtIz Aqy AweIpIsI leI cox zwbqy dI pwlxw dy mwmly 
iv~c, AwnryrI AwfItr duAwrw do Awift kIqy gey sn Aqy 
sIAYsjIbI dI kONsl ƒ sONpIAW geIAW irportW sn[ irportW 
ƒ kONsl dI mIitMg iv~c ivcwr-vtWdrw kIqw igAw sI Aqy  
ijnHW ny sIAYsjIbI dIAW pwlxw loVW ƒ suDwrn iv~c mdd 
kIqI sI, ƒ ApxwieAw igAw sI Aqy ies swlwnw irport 
Aqy sIAYsjIbI dy hor gvrnYNs dsqwvyzW iv~c Swml kIqw 
igAw sI[

4. dsqwvyz smIiKAw dy Kyqr iv~c, ie~k slwhkwr (cYirtIz 
leI sWJIAW syvwvW (AYsAYssI) ƒ inXukq kIqw igAw sI[ 

(1) hyT ilKy audySW nwl sIAYsjIbI dy mOjUdw iv~q mYnUAl dI 
smIiKAw kro[

•	mOjUdw mYnUAl bnwm sIEsI loVW iv~c QW dI pCwx kro, 
Aqy

•	AwpxIAW nIqIAW Aqy iv~q kwrjW bwry mYnUAl ƒ 
A~pfyt kro[

(2) do nvyN EprySn mYnUAl iqAwr kro, jo horW dy nwl-nwl 
hyT ilKIAW mu~K gqIivDIAW leI pRikirAwvW ƒ dsqwvyzb~D 
krdy hn[

•	gurduAwrw pRogrwm rozwnw, hPqwvwrI, v`fy Aqy Coty 
pRogrwmW leI pRogrwm, Aqy

•	AwaUtrIc pRogrwm, is~K is~iKAw, sMgIq klwsW, Aqy 
hor Dwrimk Aqy smwijk pRogrwm sIAYsjIbI dy dwiery 
iv~c hn[

OUR PROGRAMMES and ACTIVITIES
swfy pRoogrwm Aqy gqIivDIAW
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The Documentation project is still in progress. 
The consultants’ draft reports are currently being 
reviewed.

LANGGAR PICK - UP PROGRAMME

During Circuit Breaker, the authorities, among other 
matters, decided against any food being consumed 
in the Gurdwaras. Not only did it have an impact on 
the Sanggat as langgar is a cardinal practice of Sikhs 
but it also impacted those who were really in need 
of meals. The latter primarily included students, who 
unlike workers on permit, were left to themselves to 
fend through the pandemic.

CSGB, after doing a quick investigation on the needs 
of this group of people, worked with the authorities, 
Gurdwaras’ staff, volunteers and suppliers to enact the 
LPU, langgar reformatted in a takeaway format. Safety 
Management Plans had to be put in place, volunteers 
registered, safe distance and entry requirements 
met, serving points designated and safe distribution 
ensured.

On an average, 1,500 meals were prepared daily for 
lunch and dinner at both SRST and CST. Langgar was 
cooked at CST and transported by volunteers from 
CST to SRST daily. With Waheguru’s blessings and 
the Sanggat’s support, both financial donations and 
donations in kind were able to sustain and support 
the Programme.

CSGB AND SIKH MISSIONARY SOCIETY (SMS) 
COLLABORATION

Both CSGB and SMS are in the final stages of signing 
two collaborative Memorandum Of Understandings 
(MOUs). The first MOU will cover collaboration on the 
CSGB Visiting Professorship at NUS, details of which 
have been covered under a separate article herewith. 
The second MOU will cover collaboration on the 
Sant Sohan Singh Memorial Library and a new Sikhi 
Parchar programme.

SMS will take over the current Library at Sikh Centre 
and relaunch it as the Sant Sohan Singh Memorial 
Library. In addition to adding on more books and 
refurbishing the premises, there are also plans 
to digitise the books and conduct Library related 
programmes. The Sant Sohan Singh Memorial Library 
will be launched by the first quarter of 2021.

The Sikhi Parchar programme will be a joint initiative 
of CSGB and SMS to bring Parchar programmes not 
only to other Sikh institutions but also to where the 
Community members reside. This programme will be 
launched in the second quarter of 2021.

dsqwvyz pRojYkt Ajy vI jwrI hY[ slwhkwrW dIAW frwPt 
irportW dI ies vyly smIiKAw kIqI jw rhI hY[

ipk-Ap lMgr pRogRwm

srkt bRykr dy dOrwn, AiDkwrIAW ny hornW mwmilAW dy nwl, 
gurduAwirAW iv~c lMgr  nw clwaux dy bwry PYslw ilAw[ ies 
dw nw isrP sMgq ‘qy Asr ipAw ikauNik lMgr is~KW dw mu~K 
AiBAws hY, blik ies ny aunHW lokW’ qy vI Asr pwieAw ijnHW 
ƒ s~cmu~c Kwxy dI loV sI[ mu~K qOr ‘qy ividAwrQI Swml sn, 
jo primt’ qy vrkr sn, mhWmwrI dOrwn auh Awpxw pRbMD Awp 
kr skdy sn[

sIAYsjIbI ny lokW dy ies smUh dIAW jrUrqW dI qurMq jWc 
krn auprMq AiDkwrIAW, gurduAwirAW dy stwP, vlMtIArW Aqy 
splwierW nwl iml ky AYl.pI.XU. lwgU krn leI kMm kIqw, 
lMgr ƒ tykvyA PwrmYt ivc bdilAw igAw[ syPtI mYnyjmYNt 
plwnW lgwauxIAW pYNdIAW sn, vlMtIAr rijstrf huMdy sn, 
sur~iKAq dUrIAW Aqy dwKly dIAW zrUrqW pUrIAW huMdIAW sn, 
inrDwrq puAwieMtW dI syvw kIqI jWdI sI Aqy sur~iKAq vMf ƒ 
XkInI bxwieAw jWdw sI[

AYsAwrAYstI Aqy sIAYstI dovW qy dupihr dy Kwxy Aqy rwq dy 
Kwxy leI AOsqn 1,500 Bojn iqAwr kIqy jWdy sn[ swrw lMgr 
sIAYstI ivKy pkwieAw jWdw sI Aqy vwlMtIArW duAwrw rozwnw 
sIAYstI qoN AYsAwrAYstI ljwieAw jWdw sI[ vwihgurU dIAW 
AsIsW Aqy sMgq dy sihXog nwl dovyN qrHW dy iv~qI dwn Aqy dwn 
pRogrwm ƒ brkrwr r~Kx Aqy smrQn dy Xog sn[

sI.AY~s.jI.bI. Aqy is~K imSnrI soswietI (AYs AYm AYs) dw 
g`TjoV

dovyN sIAYsjIbI Aqy AYsAYmAYs do sihXogI smJOqy ‘qy dsqKq 
krn dy AwKrI pVwA’ qy hn[pihlw AYn.XU.AY~s. ivKy sI.AY~s.
jI.bI ivizitMg pRoPYsriSp ‘qy sihXog ƒ kvr krygw, ijs 
dy vyrvy ies dy nwl iek v~Kry lyK dy hyT id~qy gey hn[dUjw 
sihmqI p~qr, sMq sohx isMG XwdgwrI lwiebRyrI Aqy ie~k nvW 
is~KI prcwr pRogrwm dy sihXog ƒ Swml krygw[

AYsAYmAYs is~K sYNtr ivKy mOjUdw lwiebRyrI ƒ sMBwl lvygw Aqy 
iesƒ sMq sohx isMG XwdgwrI lwiebRyrI dy qOr qy dubwrw lWc 
krygw[ vDyry pusqkW joVn Aqy murMmq krn qoN ielwvw, ikqwbW 
dw ifjItlweIzySn krn Aqy lwiebRyrI nwl sMbMDq pRogrwm 
krvwaux dI vI Xojnw hY[ sMq sohx isMG XwdgwrI lwiebRyrI 
2021 dI pihlI iqmwhI duAwrw ArMB kIqI jweygI[

is~KI prcwr pRogrwm sI.AY~s.jI.bI Aqy AYs.AYm.AY~s dI sWJI 
pihl hovygI, prcwr pRogrwm ƒ nw isrP hor is~K sMsQwvW ivc 
ilAwauxgy, ijQy kimaUntI mYNbr rihMdy hn auQy vI jwxgy[ ieh 
pRogrwm 2021 dI dUjI iqmwhI iv~c SurU kIqw jwvygw[
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CSGB VISITING PROFESSORSHIP IN SIKH STUDIES 
AT NUS

The Visiting Professorship in Sikh Studies is an 
endowment based project run by the Faculty of Arts 
and Social Sciences at the National University of 
Singapore. Since its soft launch in September 2019, a 
total of $160,000 have been raised from donors.

SMS of Singapore has agreed to collaborate with 
CSGB to help raise the initial endowment fund of $1.2 
million to kickstart the programme. The Government 
will match dollar for dollar and donors will be afforded 
an income tax break  of 2.5 times the amount donated. 
CSGB and SMS are working towards completing the 
fund raising of $1.2 million by the second quarter of 
2021. This effectively means the Visiting Professorship 
will be launched by late 2021.

In addition to enabling students to do a gradeable 
elective on the Sikh Way of Life and majors, there will 
also be two public seminars that the Visiting Professor 
will provide for the Sikh Sanggat annually. This 
programme will be owned and run by the National 
University of Singapore and the plan is to eventually 
upgrade to full Chair on Sikh Studies, wherein there 
will be a need to raise another $1.2 million to have a 
cumulative endowment fund of $2.4 million. CSGB is 
hopeful that with the blessings of Waheguru Ji and 
the support of Sanggat we can reach there soon.

DOCUMENTARY ON BHAI MAHARAJ SINGH

“The Saint Soldier” is an inspiring story of the 1st 

recorded Sikh in Singapore, Bhai Maharaj Singh. 
It weaves the narratives of the glorious Sikh 
empire in Punjab, the fight for freedom against 
British colonization and the exile of a spiritual and 
revolutionary leader, Bhai Maharaj Singh to Singapore 
in 1850. It was formally premiered on 14 December 2019 
at the Asian Civilisation Museum and was graced by 
the Minister of Education and 2nd Minister of Finance, 
Mr Lawrence Wong, His Excellency Mr Jawed Ashraf - 
High Commissioner of India, His Excellency Dr Saaed 
Ur Rahman - Deputy High Commissioner of Pakistan, 
Director Asian Civilisations Museum, Mr Kennie Ting 
and several Sikh Community leaders.

Why was this film on Bhai Maharaj Singh made?

When Singapore commemorated the Bicentennial in 
2019, the Sikh Community also reflected on what could 
be our Community’s Bicentennial story. It was then 
that we realised that most Communities in Singapore 
could not effectively trace their roots in Singapore to 
a single individual while the Sikh Community had a 
historical icon in the form of Bhai Maharaj Singh to 
commemorate it.

sI.AY~s.jI.bI. AYn.XU.AY~s. ivKy is~K AiDAYn ivc ivzitMg 
pRoPYsriSp 

is~K st~fIz ivc ivizitMg pRoPYsriSp isMgwpur dI nYSnl 
XUnIvristI ivKy klw Aqy smwijk ivigAwn PYkltI duAwrw 
clweI jwx vwlI iek AYNfomYNt bysf ivizitMg pRoPYsriSp hY[ 
sqMbr 2019 ivc ies dI SurUAwq qoN bwAd, dwnIAW qoN kul 
160,000 fwlr iek~Ty kIqy gey hn[

isMgwpur dy AYsAYmAYs ny pRogrwm ƒ ik~kstwrt krn leI  $ 
1.2 imlIAn dy SurUAwqI AYNfomYNt PMf ƒ vDwaux ivc shwieqw 
leI sIAYsjIbI nwl sihXog krn leI sihmqI id~qI hY[srkwr 
fwlr leI fwlr dw mYc krygI Aqy dwn krn vwilAW ƒ 
dwn kIqI geI rwSI dy 2.5 guxw qoN Awmdn kr qoV id~qw 
jwvygw[sIAYsbIbI Aqy AYsAYmAYs 2021 dI dUjI iqmwhI qk 
1.2 imlIAn dy PMf iek~Ty krn ƒ pUrw krn leI kMm kr rhy 
hn[ iesdw pRBwvSwlI ArQ hY ik ivjIitMg pRoPYsriSp 2021 
dy AKIr ivc ArMB kIqI jweygI[

ividAwrQIAW ƒ is~K mwrg Aqy jIvn jwc bwry gryiftybl 
ielYkitv krn dy Xog bxwaux qoN ielwvw, do pbilk sYmInwr vI 
hoxgy jo ivijt pRoPYsr hr swl is~K sMgq leI pRdwn krngy[ 
ies pRogrwm dI mlkIAq Aqy isMgwpur dI nYSnl XUnIvristI 
duAwrw sMcwlq kIqI jweygI Aqy AMq iv~c is~K st~fIz ‘qy pUrI 
cyAr leI ApgRyf krn dI Xojnw hY, ijs iv~c 2.4 imlIAn dy 
sMcq AYNfomYNt PMf leI hor 1.2 imlIAn iek~Ty krn dI zrUrq 
hoeygI[ sIAYsjIbI AwsvMd hY ik vwihgurU jI dI bKiSS Aqy 
sMgq dy sihXog nwl AsIN jldI auQy phuMc skdy hW[

BweI mhwrwj isMG qy dsqwvyzI iPlm

“sMq ispwhI” isMgwpur ivc pihly drj kIqy is~K BweI mhwrwj 
isMG dI iek pRyrxwdwiek khwxI hY[ ieh pMjwb ivc Swndwr 
is~K swmrwj, ibRitS bsqIvwd ivru~D AwzwdI dI lVweI Aqy 
iek AiDAwqmk Aqy ienklwbI AwgU BweI mhwrwj isMG dI 
ZulwmI, 1850 ivc isMgwpur jwx dI ibrqWq ƒ pyS krdI hY[ 
ies dw rsmI audGwtn eySIAn siBAqw Ajwieb Gr ivc 
14 dsMbr 2019 ƒ kIqw igAw Aqy is~iKAw mMqrI Aqy iv~q 
mMqrI dy dUjy mMqrI, sRI lwrYNs voNg, mhwrwStr SRI jwvyd ASrP 
- Bwrq dy hweI kimSnr, fw: swied aur rihmwn - pwiksqwn 
dy ifptI hweI kimSnr, fwierYktr eySIAn siBAqw Ajwieb 
Gr, sRI kynI itMg Aqy keI is~K BweIcwry dy AwgU Swiml sn[

BweI mhwrwj isMG ‘qy ieh iPlm ikauN bxweI geI?

jdoN isMgwpur ny swl 2019 ivc do-SqwbdI dw audGwtn kIqw, 
is~K kimaUntI ny ieh vI pRBwivq kIqw ik swfI kimaUntI dI 
do-swlw khwxI kI ho skdI hY[ ies qoN bwAd hI swƒ Aihsws 
hoieAw ik isMgwpur dIAW bhuqIAW kimaUintIAW isMgwpur iv~c 
AwpxIAW jVHW ƒ pRBwvSwlI qrIky nwl iksy ie~k ivAkqI q~k 
nhIN l~B skIAW jdoN ik is~K BweIcwry ny ies ƒ Xwd krwaux 
leI BweI mhwrwj isMG dy rUp iv~c ie~k ieiqhwsk Xwdgwr 
bxweI hoeI hY[
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His memorial in Singapore has existed for over 
165 years but the memory of his story had faded 
amongst the Singapore Sikh Community. This was an 
opportunity to reconnect, refresh and retell his story 
with greater research for the Singapore Sikh Youth 
and fellow Singaporeans. 

How is Bhai Maharaj Singh still relevant today?

Bhai Maharaj Singh exemplifies the core Sikh value of 
“Chardikala” which loosely translates to unwavering 
resilience and high-spiritedness. This value has been 
preserved by the Sikh Community in Singapore from 
the first Sikh police contingent in the 1880s and the 
Sikh battalions that fought against the Japanese in 
the Battle of Singapore as well as various successful 
Sikh SAF servicemen, civil servants and business 
leaders, who have contributed to nation building in 
Singapore. In the current tough times of COVID-19, the 
Sikh Community has once again demonstrated the 
“Chardikala” spirit by helping the wider Community 
in Singapore that were impacted by the pandemic 
through the Langar Pick-Up programme and the ration 
donation drives by SG Sewa.

Bhai Maharaj Singh was also responsible for bringing 
the message of Sri Guru Nanak Dev Ji to the shores 
of Singapore in the form of the Sri Guru Granth Sahib 
Ji in April 1855. This was a 115-year-old manuscript 
copy that was obtained specially by the Governor 
of the Straits Settlements, Mr WJ Butterworth from 
Lahore for Bhai Maharaj Singh. This was a key 
historical fact which was unknown to the Singaporean 
Sikh Community till the extensive research for this 
documentary. Hence, this tied in perfectly to fit the 
550th celebrations of Sri Guru Nanak Dev Ji in 2019.

The journey to put together this documentary took 
almost 18 months to complete and would not have 
been possible without the toiling and effort of its 
director, Ms Upneet Kaur Nagpal, the 550th Guru 
Nanak Dev Ji celebrations committee, the unfettered 
support of Mr Baljit Singh, the President of Central 
Sikh Gurdwaras Board  who empowered the Sikh 
youth to embark on this monumental initiative, the 
strong encouragement of the individual donors of the 
film, the support of the SG Bicentennial office and the 

isMgwpur ivc aus dI Xwdgwr 165 swlW qoN v~D smyN qoN mOjUd hY 
prMqU ausdI khwxI dI Xwd isMgwpur is~K BweIcwry ivc iP~kI 
pY geI sI[ isMgwpur is~K XUQ Aqy isMgwpur vwsIAW leI vDyry 
Koj nwl aus dI khwxI ƒ dubwrw joVn, qwzgI dyx Aqy ies ƒ 
duhrwaux dw ieh mOkw sI[

BweI mhwrwj isMG A~j dy smyN iv`c ikvyN swriQk hn?

BweI mhwrwj isMG ny “cVdIklw” dI KShwlI  leI is~KI kdrW 
kImqW dI audwhrx id~qI jo AsiQr lckIlypx Aqy au~c-
auqSwihqw leI  Anuvwd krdw hY[ ieh kdrW kImqW 1880 
dy dhwky ivc is~K is~K kimaUintI Aqy isMgwpur dI lVweI 
ivc jwpwnW ivru~D lVn vwlIAW is~K btwlIAnW Aqy v~K-v~K 
syvkW, isvl syvkW Aqy vpwrk nyqwvW, jo isMgwpur ivc is~K 
kimaUntI duAwrw sur~iKAq r~iKAw igAw hY[ isMgwpur iv~c 
rwStr inrmwx iv~c Xogdwn pwieAw hY[ koivf -19 dy mOjUdw 
muSkl smyN iv~c, is~K kOm ny ie~k vwr iPr “cVdIklw” Bwvnw 
dw pRgtwvw isMgwpur iv~c ivSwl BweIcwry dI shwieqw kridAW 
kIqw, ijnHW ƒ lMgr ipk-Ap pRogrwm duAwrw mhWmwrI nwl 
pRBwvq kIqw igAw sI[

BweI mhwrwj isMG ApRYl 1855 ivc sRI gurU nwnk dyv jI dy 
sMdyS ƒ sRI gurU gRMQ swihb jI dy rUp ivc isMgwpur ilAwaux leI 
vI bcnb`D sn[ ieh iek 115 swl purwxI h~Q-ilKq nkl sI 
jo ivSyS qOr stryts sYtlmYNts dy gvrnr, BweI mhwrwj isMG 
leI lwhOr qoN SRI fblXU jy btrvrQ duAwrw  pRwpq kIqI geI sI 
[ ieh iek mh~qvpUrx ieiqhwsk q~Q sI jo isMgwpur dI is~K 
kimaUintI ƒ ies fwkUmYNtrI dI ivAwpk Koj bwry jwxU nhI sn[ 
ies leI, ieh sRI gurU nwnk dyv jI dy 550 vyN pRkwS idhwVy ƒ 
2019  iv~c mnwaux dy smyN pUrw krn dy leI iblkul shI sI[

ies dsqwvyzI ƒ iek~Tw krn leI lgBg 18 mhIinAW dw 
sPr pUrw hoieAw Aqy ies dI inrdySk sRImqI aupnIq kOr 
nwgpwl, 550 vyN gurU nwnk dyv jI dy smwroh kmytI, sRI bljIq 
isMG dy inrivGn smrQn dy ibnW, imhnq Aqy koiSS qoN ibnW 
sMBv nhIN hoieAw sI, sYNtrl is~K gurUdvwrw borf dy pRDwn 
ijsny is~K nOjvwnW ƒ ies Xwdgwr pihlkdmI ƒ A~gy vDwaux 
dI qwkq id~qI, iPlm dy ivAkqIgq dwn krn vwilAW dI sKq 
auqSwhqw, AYsjI bweIsYNtInIAl dPqr Aqy eySIAn siBAqw 
Ajwieb Gr dI tIm dw smrQn ijsny ies sMgiTq krn iv~c 
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team from the Asian civilisation museum that helped 
to organise the launch of the documentary and most 
importantly a small team of passionate Singaporean 
Sikh Youth - Simranjit Singh (Executive Producer and 
CSGB Youth Task Force Chairman), Abhishek Anchilya 
(Cinematographer) Amarpreet Kaur, Bikram Singh 
(SurSingh Dera), Guramrit Singh, Simha Kaur, Amrit Kaur, 
Apinder Singh (Sikh Centre Lecturer), Kawalpal Singh, 
Malminderjit Singh as well as volunteers from Young 
Sikh Association, Sikh Sewaks, NUS Sikh Society, SMU 
Sikh Society and others. This was truly a Singaporean 
Sikh Youth driven initiative.

Special Exhibition, TV Broadcast and Best 
Documentary Award

A special exhibition was held at the Sikh Centre from 
1- 5 January 2020 to commemorate the 250th Birthday 
celebrations of Bhai Maharaj Singh showcasing the 
artefacts of Bhai Maharaj Singh. The artefacts were 
brought specially by the descendants of Bhai Maharaj 
Singh, Sardar Gurraj Pal Singh and his family. Many 
Sanggat members, including Veer Manpreet Singh (UK), 
who had sung the theme shabad in the film, attended 
the premiere of the film and viewed the artefacts on 
display.

shwieqw kIqI ,dsqwvyzI dI SurUAwq Aqy sB qoN mh~qvpUrx 
ie~k Bwvuk isMgwpur dI is~K XUQ dI ie~k CotI ijhI tIm - 
ismrnjIq isMG (kwrjkwrI inrmwqw Aqy sIAYsjIbI XUQ twsk 
Pors dy cyArmYn), AiBSyk AYNicilAw (isnymYtogRwPr), ibkrm 
isMG (surisMG fyrw), gurimRq isMG, ismHw kOr, AMimRq kOr, AipMdr 
isMG (is~K sYNtr lYkcrwr), kvlpwl isMG, mlimMdrjIq isMG 
dy nwl-nwl XMg is~K AYsosIeySn dy vlMtIAr, is~K syvk, 
AYnXUAYs is~K suswietI, AYsAYmXU is~K suswietI Awid[ ieh 
scmu~c isMgwpur dI is~K XUQ duAwrw clwieAw igAw auprwlw 
sI[

ivSyS pRdrSnI, tIvI pRswrx Aqy srboqm dsqwvyzI purskwr

BweI mhwrwj isMG dy 250 vyN jnm idvs dy smwroh leI 1 qoN 
5 jnvrI, 2020 q~k is~K sYNtr ivKy iek ivSyS pRdrSnI 
lgweI geI sI ,ijs ivc BweI mhwrwj isMG dIAW klwvW ƒ 
pRdrSq kIqw igAw sI[ klwvW ƒ ivSyS qOr ‘qy BweI mhwrwj 
isMG, srdwr gurrwj pwl isMG Aqy ausdy pirvwr dy vMSj 
duAwrw ilAwieAw igAw sI[ vIr mnpRIq isMG (XUky) smyq bhuq 
swrIAW sMgq mYNbr, ijnHW ny iPlm ivc QIm Sbd gwieAw sI, 
ny iPlm dy pRImIAr ivc iSrkq kIqI Aqy pRdrSnI qy klwkwrW 
ƒ vI dyiKAw[

“The Saint Soldier” documentary was also broadcasted 
on Zee TV on May 3rd 2020, reaching 18 countries 
and over 100,000 viewers. This helped to rejuvenate, 
refresh and reconnect the Sikh diaspora in Singapore 
and beyond to the rich legacy of “chardikala”, 
valour and courage of Bhai Maharaj Singh. This was 
especially needed during this challenging and difficult 
period of COVID-19. We also ran an advertisement on 
the Langar Pick Up programme that helped to raise 
online cashless donations for the LPU programme. 
The documentary was very well received with 
positive feedback from many Singapore Sanggat 
members both young and old. There was also strong 

“syNt soljr” dsqwvyzI vI zI tIvI ‘qy 3 meI, 2020 ƒ 
pRswrq kIqI geI sI, 18 dySW Aqy 100,000 qoN v~D drSkW 
q~k phuMc geI[ ies nwl isMgwpur Aqy BweI mhwrwj isMG dI 
bhwdrI Aqy dlyrI dI ivrwsq, “cVdIklw” dI AmIr ivrwsq 
nwl is~K isMgwpur ƒ muV qwzgI Aqy muV joVn ivc shwieqw 
imlI[ kovIf -19 dy ies cuxOqIpUrn Aqy muSkl smyN dOrwn 
iesdI Kws qOr ‘qy zrUrq sI[ AsIN lMgr ipk Ap pRogrwm 
‘qy iek ieSiqhwr vI clwieAw, ijs ny AYl pI XU pRogrwm 
leI nkd dwn iek~Tw krn ivc shwieqw kIqI[ dsqwvyzI ƒ 
bhuq swry isMgwpur sMgq mYNbrW duAwrw skwrwqmk PIfbYk pRwpq 
hoeIy[pRoPYsr rwjyS rwey Aqy isMgwpur dI nYSnl XUnIvristI qoN 
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affirmations from the Academic Community, A/
Prof Rajesh Rai and Prof Tan Tai Yong from National 
University of Singapore on the rigour of the research 
and the high quality of the film. The documentary 
was also launched on YouTube so that it would be 
accessible to all and be part of the Singapore Sikh 
story. It has so far received more than 10,000 views. 
The documentary also clinched the award for the Best 
Documentary Feature Film at the Global Indian Film 
Festival (GIFF). This was a remarkable achievement 
and a testament to the hardwork that went into the 
project.

pRoPYsr tYn qweI XoNg v~loN Koj dI Aqy iPlm dI au~c guxv~qw 
bwry vI zordwr puStI kIqI geI[ dsqwvyzI iPlm ƒ XUitaUb 
‘qy vI lWc kIqw igAw sI qW ik ieh swirAW q~k phuMcXog ho 
sky Aqy isMgwpur dI is~K khwxI dw ih~sw bxy[ ies ƒ hux 
q~k 10,000 qoN v~D ivXU iml cu~ky hn[ ies fwkUmYNtrI ny 
globl ieMfIAn iPlm PYstIvl (jIAweIAYPAYP) ivKy srboqm 
fwkUmYNtrI PIcr iPlm dw purskwr vI hwsl kIqw sI[ ieh 
iek kmwl dI pRwpqI sI Aqy pRwjYkt ivc kIqI geI imhnq dw 
iek pRmwx vI hY[

Award for the Saint Soldier

sMq sYink dsqwvyzI iPlm leI purskwr
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The Challenges

The Covid 19 pandemic and the measures implemented 
especially during Circuit Breaker caused immense 
distress and pain to the Sanggat. Be it gurpurabs, 
family programs, marriages, engagements, funerals 
and bhogs, the restriction on numbers allowed to 
attend, the sitting arrangements, the non-availability 
of live kirtan, the disallowing of langgar, safe entry 
measures and the shorter operating hours of the 
Gurdwaras, it was indeed a Black Swan event which 
none of us were ever prepared for.

In addition to the distress caused to the Sanggat as 
the Gurdwaras literally closed, the mental well-being 
of the foreign staff was also badly affected. Being 
away from their families and not being able to be there 
to help them out took a toll on several staff members. 
It did not help that there was uncertainty as to when 
they could travel to reunite with their families.

While the daily prayers and religious programs 
continued to be undertaken by the staff, getting 
langgar going to help with the significant number of 
needy recipients was a challenge. Not only was there 
a need to comply with ever changing rules but more 
importantly finding volunteers to assist in the langgar 
preparation.  

The finances of the Gurdwaras were also adversely 
affected by Circuit Breaker. At its worst, income fell by 
almost 80%. The Board had to dip into the reserves 
to fund operations during the worst months of the 
pandemic.

At Sikh Centre, classes for Sojhi, Sikhi Parchar and 
Gurmat Sangeet Academy were all cancelled as per 
the directive of the Government. This also affected the 
Sanggat who were participating in these programs. 

The Mitigating Initiatives

CSGB implemented the following measures to 
alleviate the challenges faced:

• 	 Implemented live streaming to allow not only kirtan 
to be broadcasted in the Darbar Hall but also for 
programs to be streamed to Sanggats homes. This 
initiative was extended working with SIWEC and 
other Gurdwaras to also have funerals streamed if 
families did so desire.

•	 Introduced packed langgar for take away.
•	 Worked with the Government in test bedding the 

further opening of the Gurdwaras and live kirtan. 
This has today resulted in Gurdwaras being able to 
host 250 pax and have live kirtan in Darbar Halls. 

cuxOqIAW

koivf 19 mhWmwrI Aqy ^wskr srkt brykr dy smyN lwgU 
kIqy aupwvW ny sMgq ƒ BwrI pRySwnI Aqy qklIP id~qI[ cwhy 
auh gurpurb hox, pirvwrk pRogrwm hox, ivAwh, ruJyvyN, AMiqm 
sMskwr Aqy Bog hox, igxqI ‘qy pwbMdI, bYTx dy pRbMD, lweIv 
kIrqn nw hoxw, lMgr ƒ mnzUr nw krnw, sur~iKAq pRvyS 
aupwA Aqy gurduAwirAW dy G~t sMcwln GMitAW dI loV hovy, ieh 
s~cmu~c ie~k nw hox Xog smwgm sI ijs leI swfy iv~coN koeI 
vI kdy iqAwr nhIN sI[

sMgq ƒ prySwn hox dy nwl-nwl gurduAwry Swbidk bMd hox nwl 
ivdySI stwP dI mwnisk qMdrusqI vI burI qrHW pRBwivq hoeI[ 
Awpxy pirvwrW qoN dUr hox Aqy aunHW dI mdd leI auQy nw Awaux 
dy kwrn stwP aupr bhuq Asr ipAw[ ieh mdd nhIN imlI ik 
ies g~l dI AinSicqqw sI ik auh Awpxy pirvwrW nwl dubwrw 
imlx leI kdoN Xwqrw kr skdy sn.

jdoN ik stwP duAwrw rozwnw ArdwsW Aqy Dwrimk pRogrwm kIqy 
jWdy rhy, lMgr pRwpq krnw mh~qvpUrx loVvMdW ƒ pRwpq krn 
vwilAW dI shwieqw leI jwxw ie~k cuxOqI sI. nw isrP sdw 
bdldy inXmW dI pwlxw krn dI zrUrq sI blik lMgr dI 
iqAwrI ivc shwieqw leI vlMtIArW dI Bwl krnw vI vDyry 
mh~qvpUrx sI.

srkt bRykr duAwrw gurduAwry dy iv~q vI mwVy pRBwv pey sn[ 
ies dy mwVy smyN, AwmdnI lgBg 80% G~t geI[ mhWmwrI dy 
sB qoN mwVy mhIinAW dOrwn borf ƒ PMf kwrjW leI iek`Ty kIqy 
pYisAW iv`coN auhnW nUM vrqxw ipAw[

is~K sYNtr ivKy srkwr dy inrdySW Anuswr soJI, is~KI prcwr 
Aqy gurmiq sMgIq AkYfmI dIAW klwsW r~d kr id~qIAW 
geIAW[ ies dw aunHW sMgq ƒ vI pRBwivq hoieAw jo ienHW 
pRogrwmW ivc ih~sw lY rhy sn[

Gtwaux vwlIAW pihlkdmIAW

sIAYsjIbI ny drpyS cuxOqIAW ƒ dUr krn leI hyT ilKy aupwA 
lwgU kIqy hn[

•	 nw isrP drbwr hwl iv~c kIrqn pRswirq krn dI AwigAw 
dyx leI lweIv stRIimMg lwgU kIqI blik GrW iv~c pRogrwmW 
ƒ vI pRswirq krn dI AwigAw id~qI[ ies pihl kdmI 
ƒ sIvYk Aqy hor gurduAwirAW nwl kMm krdy hoey vDwieAw 
igAw sI qW jo pirvwrW dI ie~Cw Anuswr AMiqm sMskwr vI 
kIqw jw sky[

•	 pYikMg lMgr dI SurUAwq kIqI geI[
•	 gurduAwirAW ny lweIv kIrqn ƒ prKky srkwr nwl kMm 

kIqw[ ies dy nqIjy vjoN A~j gurduAwry 250 sMgq dI 
myzbwnI krn Aqy drbwr hwlW iv~c lweIv kIrqn krn 

COVID 19 CHALLENGES AND MITIGATING INITIATIVES IMPLEMENTED
koivf 19 cuxOqIAW Aqy G`t krn vwlIAW pihlkdmIAW lwgU kIqIAW geIAW[
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Safe Management Plans have been formulated 
for all 3 units. The Plans among others include 
SafeEntry, temperature measurement and safe 
distancing.

•	 Implemented digital payment modes like Paynow, 
Paylah & Payanyone so that the Sanggat could 
continue to contribute remotely.

•	 Increased contact time with staff to hear them out 
and keep them motivated and encouraged.

•	 Implemented for 3 months an additional ex gratia 
payment for each foreign staff that was impacted 
by the reduced bheta.        

The Board continues to work with the authorities to 
bring further normalcy to Gurdwara operations. 

Live Streaming During Circuit Breaker

Due to COVID 19 lockdown, CST acquired new 
camera systems at levels 2 and 3 for live streaming/ 
broadcasting which allowed Sanggat members to 
watch morning & evening prayers at home.

Due to the COVID-19 outbreak in Singapore since 
mid-January 2020, the Government’s Circuit Breaker 
measures required the Gurdwara to close access 
to the Sanggat from 6th April to 4th May. This was 
subsequently extended to the end of May. As no 
Sanggat could visit the religious places for prayers, 
SRST initiated live streaming of the daily evening 
diwans (path, kirtan, katha, Ardas and Hukamnama) 
over CSGB YouTube channel. On Sundays, an 
additional morning diwan was also telecasted.

dy Xog hoey hn[ swrIAW 3 iekweIAW leI sur~iKAq pRbMDn 
XojnwvW bxweIAW geIAW hn[ horW qoN ielwvw XojnwvW iv~c 
syPAYNtrI, qwpmwn mwp Aqy sur~iKAq dUrI Swml hn[

•	 pylwh Aqy pynwau vrgy ifjItl Bugqwn mof lwgU kIqy qW jo 
sMgq dUroN Xogdwn dyxw jwrI r~K sky[

•	 stwP nwl sMprk dw smW vDwieAw qW jo aunHW ƒ suixAw jw 
sky Aqy aunHW ƒ pRyirq Aqy auqSwihq r~iKAw jw sky[

•	 2 mhIinAW leI lwgU kIqw igAw hryk ivdySI Amly leI 
ie~k vwDU AYks gRYSIAw Bugqwn jo Gty hoey iBtw duAwrw 
pRBwivq hoieAw sI[

 borf gurduAwrw pRbMDkW ƒ hor sDwrx ilAwaux leI AiDkwrIAW 
nwl kMm krnw jwrI r~Kdw hY[

srkt bRyk dOrwn lweIv stRIimMg

koivf -19 lOkfwaun dy kwrn, sIAYstI ny lweIv stRIimMg /
pRswrx leI lYvl 2 Aqy 3 dy p~Dr qy nvyN kYmrw pRxwlI dI
pRwpqI kIqI ijs nwl sMgq mYNbrW ƒ svyry Aqy Swm dIAW
pRwrQnwvW Gr iv~c vyK skx[

jnvrI 2020 dy A~D qoN isMgwpur iv~c koivf -19 dy PYlx 
kwrn, srkwr dy srkt qoVn vwly aupwvW dy kwrn 6 ApRYl qoN 
4 meI q~k gurduAwry ƒ sMgqW dy nyVy jwxw cwhIdw sI[ bwAd 
ivc ies ƒ meI dy AMq ivc vDw id~qw igAw sI[ ikauNik koeI 
vI sMgq Dwrimk sQwnW ‘qy pRwrQnwvW leI nhIN jw skdI sI, 
AYsAwrAYstI ny rozwnw Swm dy dIvwnW (kIrqn, kQw, Ardws 
Aqy hukmnwmw swihb) dw is~Dw pRswrx sIAYsjIbI XUitaUb 
cYnl qoN SurU kIqw[ AYqvwr ƒ svyry dw ie~k Kws dIvwn vI 
pRswirq kIqw igAw[
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 borf gurduAwrw pRbMDkW ƒ hor sDwrx ilAwaux leI AiDkwrIAW nwl kMm krnw jwrI r~Kdw hY[ 

LIVE STREAMING DURING CIRCUIT BREAKER 
srkt bRyk dOrwn lweIv stRIimMg  

koivf -19 lOkfwaun dy kwrn, sIAYstI ny lweIv stRIimMg / pRswrx leI lYvl 2 Aqy 3 dy p~Dr qy nvyN kYmrw pRxwlI dI pRwpqI kIqI ijs nwl sMgq mYNbrW ƒ svyry Aqy Swm dIAW pRwrQnwvW Gr 
iv~c vyK skx[ 

 
Some glimpses of Live streaming: 
lweIv stRIimMg dIAW kuJ Jlk: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

New initiative by SRST - Live streaming on CSGB YouTube channel AYsAwrAYstI duAwrw nvIN pihlkdmI - CSGB XUitaUb cYnl 'qy lweIv stRIimMg 

39 
 

• stwP nwl sMprk dw smW vDwieAw qW jo aunHW ƒ suixAw jw sky Aqy aunHW ƒ pRyirq Aqy auqSwihq r~iKAw jw sky[ 
• 2 mhIinAW leI lwgU kIqw igAw hryk ivdySI Amly leI ie~k vwDU AYks gRYSIAw Bugqwn jo Gty hoey iBtw duAwrw pRBwivq hoieAw sI[ 

 borf gurduAwrw pRbMDkW ƒ hor sDwrx ilAwaux leI AiDkwrIAW nwl kMm krnw jwrI r~Kdw hY[ 

LIVE STREAMING DURING CIRCUIT BREAKER 
srkt bRyk dOrwn lweIv stRIimMg  

koivf -19 lOkfwaun dy kwrn, sIAYstI ny lweIv stRIimMg / pRswrx leI lYvl 2 Aqy 3 dy p~Dr qy nvyN kYmrw pRxwlI dI pRwpqI kIqI ijs nwl sMgq mYNbrW ƒ svyry Aqy Swm dIAW pRwrQnwvW Gr 
iv~c vyK skx[ 

 
Some glimpses of Live streaming: 
lweIv stRIimMg dIAW kuJ Jlk: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

New initiative by SRST - Live streaming on CSGB YouTube channel AYsAwrAYstI duAwrw nvIN pihlkdmI - CSGB XUitaUb cYnl 'qy lweIv stRIimMg Distribution of Langgar during COVID-19

It was CSGB’s initiative during Circuit Breaker to 
distribute packed food to needy foreign students and 
Singaporeans at SRST and CST. Packed food was 
distributed daily during lunch from 11:30am to 1:30pm 
and dinner from 6:30pm to 8pm. This initiative was 
much appreciated by our Community as well as by the 
other Communities. Cash donations and dry rations 
were donated by the Sanggat.

New initiative by SRST - Live streaming on CSGB YouTube channel 

AYsAwrAYstI duAwrw nvIN pihlkdmI - CSGB XUitaUb cYnl ‘qy lweIv stRIimMg

koivf -19 dOrwn lMgr dI vMf syvw

srkt bRykr dOrwn AYsAwrAYstI Aqy sIAYstI ivKy loVvMd 
ivdySI ividAwrQIAW Aqy isMgwpur dy lokW ƒ pYk Bojn vMfxw 
sIAYsjIbI pihlkdmI sI[ pYk Bojn hr roz dupihr dy Kwxy 
dOrwn svyry 11:30 vjy qoN 1:30 vjy qk Aqy rwq dy Kwxy dI 
Swm 6:30 vjy qoN 8 vjy qk vMifAw igAw[ swfI pihlkdmI, 
swfI kimaUintI dy nwl nwl hor kimaUuntIAW duAwrw vI bhuq 
pRSMsw kIqI geI[ sMgq v~loN nkd dwn Aqy su~ky rwSn dwn kIqy 
gey[
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Due to the COVID-19 outbreak in Singapore since mid-January 2020, the Government’s Circuit Breaker measures required the Gurdwara to close access to the Sanggat from 
6th April to 4th May. This was subsequently extended to the end of May. As no Sanggat could visit the religious places for prayers, SRST initiated live streaming of the daily 
evening diwans (path, kirtan, katha, Ardas and Hukamnama) over CSGB YouTube channel. On Sundays, an additional morning diwan was also telecasted. 

jnvrI 2020 dy A~D qoN isMgwpur iv~c koivf -19 dy PYlx kwrn, srkwr dy srkt qoVn vwly aupwvW dy kwrn 6 ApRYl qoN 4 meI q~k gurduAwry ƒ sMgqW dy nyVy jwxw cwhIdw sI[ bwAd ivc ies 
ƒ meI dy AMq ivc vDw id~qw igAw sI[ ikauNik koeI vI sMgq Dwrimk sQwnW 'qy pRwrQnwvW leI nhIN jw skdI sI, AYsAwrAYstI ny rozwnw Swm dy dIvwnW ( kIrqn, kQw, Ardws Aqy hukmnwmw 
swihb) dw is~Dw pRswrx sIAYsjIbI XUitaUb cYnl qoN SurU kIqw[ AYqvwr ƒ svyry dw ie~k Kws dIvwn vI pRswirq kIqw igAw[ 

Distribution of Langgar during COVID-19 

It was CSGB’s initiative during Circuit Breaker to distribute packed food to needy foreign students and Singaporeans at SRST and CST. Packed food was distributed daily during 
lunch from 11:30am to 1:30pm and dinner from 6:30pm to 8pm. This initiative was much appreciated by our Community as well as by the other Communities. Cash donations 
and dry rations were donated by the Sanggat. 
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srkt bRykr dOrwn AYsAwrAYstI Aqy sIAYstI ivKy loVvMd ivdySI ividAwrQIAW Aqy isMgwpur dy lokW ƒ pYk Bojn vMfxw sIAYsjIbI pihlkdmI sI[ pYk Bojn hr roz dupihr dy Kwxy dOrwn svyry 
11:30 vjy qoN 1:30 vjy qk Aqy rwq dy Kwxy dI Swm 6:30 vjy qoN 8 vjy qk vMifAw igAw[ swfI pihlkdmI, swfI kimaUintI dy nwl nwl hor kimaUuntIAW duAwrw vI bhuq pRSMsw kIqI geI[ 
sMgq v~loN nkd dwn Aqy su~ky rwSn dwn kIqy gey[ 
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Safety Measures during distribution of meals  

Bojn dI vMf syvw dOrwn sur~iKAw aupwA

COVID-19 MEASURES 

Safe management measures at SRST during COVID-19 
pandemic:

A)	 Isolation Room at Level 6, Sikh Centre to isolate 
any resident staff who showed signs of being 
unwell. 

B)	 Evacuation Plan for religious workers and staff 
who were feeling unwell or showing symptoms of 
illness.

C)	 SafeEntry measurements for Sanggat members

koivf -19 aupwA

koivf -19 mhWmwrI dy dOrwn AYsAwrAYstI ivKy sur~iKAq 
pRbMDn aupwA:

ey)	 iksy vI irhwieSI stwP ƒ Al~g r~Kx leI 6 storI rUm, 
is~K sYNtr ivKy iek~ilAW dw kmrw ijs dy ibmwr hox dy 
l~Cx idKweI id~qy[

bI)	aunHW Dwrimk krmcwrIAW leI Xojnw jo ibmwr nhIN sn jW 
ibmwrI dy l~Cx idKw rhy sn[

sI)	sMgq dy mYNbrW leI sur~iKAw aupwA
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ANAND KAARAJ COUNSELLING

The Board has appointed two Deputy Registrars 
of Marriages, Dr Jasbir Singh and Mr Ranjit Singh 
Wahla. They conduct solemnisation of marriages at 
the Gurdwaras as part of the Anand Kaaraj or at other 
locations.

Dr Jasbir Singh received the Community Care Award 
from Minister Masagos Zulkifli, Ministry of Social and 
Family Development for the ROM done during the 
COVID-19-year 2020. The award was in recognition of 
being part of a team that handled a backlog of more 
than 600 ceremonies and the introduction of virtual 
ceremonies. 

Together, Dr Jasbir and Mr Ranjit handled 93 
solemnisations in 2019 and 85 in 2020, and the 
Ceremonies were held at the Gurdwaras or at various 
other locations for Sikhs and all other races.

AnMd kwrj koNsilMg

borf ny ivAwh dy do ifptI rijstrwr, fw: jsbIr isMG Aqy 
sRI rxjIq isMG vwhlw ƒ inXukq kIqw hY[ auh AnMd kwrj dy 
ih~sy vjoN jW hor QwvW ‘qy gurduAwirAW ivc ivAwh-SwdI dI 
rsm Adw krdy hn[

fw: jsbIr isMG ƒ mMqrI mwswgws zulkIPlI, kimaUintI kyAr 
Avwrf, smwijk Aqy pirvwr ivkws mMqrwly ny koivf19 
2020 dOrwn krvwey gey Awr.E.AYm. duAwrw pRwpq kIqw[ ieh 
purskwr aus tIm dw ih~sw bxn dy snmwn iv~c sI ijs ny v~D 
qoN v~D 600 smwroh Aqy vrcuAl rsmW dI SurUAwq dw bYklwg 
sMBwilAw[

fw. jsbIr Aqy sRI rxjIq ny iml ky 2019  iv`c 93 Aqy 
2020 iv`c 85 sMmyln kIqy Aqy ieh smwroh gurduAwirAW ivc 
jW is~KW Aqy hor swrIAW nslW leI v~K-v~K QwvW qy AwXoijq 
kIqw igAw[

Dr Jasbir solemnising at a Wedding   

jsbIr iek ivAwh ivc sMboDn krdy hoey

Virtual Ceremonies conducted by Dr Jasbir    

fw: jsbIr duAwrw vrcuAl smwroh krvwey gey [
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AMRIT SANCHAAR

The Board’s programmes are designed to promote 
Sikhi and encourage the Sanggat to become and 
remain Amritdhari Sikhs. Amrit Sanchaar ceremony is 
one of the major Ceremony of Vesakhi celebration. 
Prior to the ceremony, special talks are held in Punjabi 
and English to help new and past Amritdharis clarify 
doubts and misconceptions about Amrit. Free Kekar 
distribution is carried out for those taking Amrit while 
those who had taken Amrit in past are welcomed to 
replace their Kekar.

The Board has also expanded their pool of Punj 
Pyaras by conducting special training sessions on the 
Amrit ceremony procedures to ensure competency 
and proper conduct of the Amrit Sanchaar.

Three Amrit Sanchaar ceremonies, mainly during 
Vesakhi and a special Amrit Sanchaar in December as 
part of the Nam Raas were conducted. The Board is 
encouraged by the positive response to these Amrit 
Sanchaar ceremonies.

AMimRq sMcwr

borf dy pRogrwm is~KI ƒ auqSwhq krn Aqy sMgq ƒ AMimRqDwrI 
is~K bxn Aqy bxy rihx leI auqSwhq krn leI iqAwr kIqy 
gey hn[ AimRq sMcwr smwroh ivswKI dy pRogrwm dI iek v~fI 
rsm hY[ smwroh qoN pihlW, nvyN Aqy ipCly AimRqDwrI, AMimRq 
bwry SMkwvW Aqy BulyKy ƒ spSt krn iv~c shwieqw leI pMjwbI 
Aqy AMgryzI iv~c ivSyS g~lbwq krdIAW hn[ auhnW leI muPq 
kkwr dI vMf kIqI jWdI hY jdoN ik ijMnW ny pihlW AMimRq CikAw 
hoieAw hY, aunW nUM vI kkwr id`qy  jWdy hn[

borf ny AMimRq sMcwr dy Gyry nUM ivSwl krn leI AimRq smwroh 
dIAW pRikRAwvW ‘qy ivSyS isKlweI sYSn dw ivsQwr kIqw[

iqMn AMimRq sMcwr smwroh, mu~K qOr qy vyswKI dy dOrwn Aqy dsMbr 
iv~c nwm rs dy ih~sy vjoN ie~k ivSyS AMimRq sMcwr kIqw jWdw 
hY[ borf ienHW AMimRq sMcwr smwrohW dy skwrwqmk huMgwry duAwrw 
auqSwhq huMdw hY[

Occasion Total

Naam Ras Dec 2018 28

Vesakhi Apr 2019 12

Total 40

pRugrwm ku`l
dsMbr 2018 dy nwm rs smyN ATweI
ApRYl 2019 dy ivswKI smyN bwrW
ku`l cwlI

Note: There was no Amrit Ceremony for 2020 

due to the COVID-19 restrictions.
not: koivf -19 pwbMdIAW kwrn 2020 

leI koeI AMimRq sMcwr nhIN hoieAw[

Amrit Sanchaar Ceremony taking place

AMimRq sMcwr smwgm
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MARRIAGE PREPARATORY COURSE

In 2012, Marriage Central, a one-stop marriage 
resource point established to promote strong 
marriages in Singapore, developed an initiative 
under the National Family Council called “Love 
Notes”. Under the assistance of MCYS (now known as 
Ministry of Social and Family Development), CSGB’s 
eight facilitators have undergone training to promote 
marriage wellness in Singapore’s Sikh community. 
This 3-hour course comprises facilitation using videos 
and worksheets. The facilitators are couples who 
have been married for over a decade, thus being 
able to translate their substantial experience into 
constructive advice and practical anecdotes.

Over the last two years, Love Notes has received an 
exceedingly positive response from the community. 
With the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic in 
Singapore, only 19 couples attended the Love Notes 
workshop in 2020 (2019: 40 couples and 2018: 48 
couples).  Love Notes has gained momentum in its aim 
to promote marriage wellness in Singapore. During 
the course, couples pick up tips to sustain a healthy, 
strong and lifelong marriage. Topics discussed include 
effective communication methods, conflict resolution 
and understanding roles and responsibilities within a 
marriage. 

ivAwh dI iqAwrI leI kors - 2019 qoN 2021 dI irport

isMgwpur ivc s&l ivAwhuqw sMbMDW dy leI 2012 ivc imnstrI 
Aw& soSl Aqy PYmlI ifvYlpmYNt dI shwieqw dy nwl nYSnl 
PYmlI kwauNsl duAwrw mYrIz sYNtrl, ey vn-stwp mYirz rIsors 
ny lv-nots nwm dw iek pRogrwm SurU kIqw[ sI.AYs.jI.bI. dy 8 
PislItytr ies pRogrwm dy rwhIN isMgwpur dy is`KW dy ivAwhuqw 
sMbMDW nUM suhwxw bxwaux leI tyRinMg lY cuky hn[ iqMn GMty dy ies 
kors ivc vrksIt Aqy vIfIE rwhIN smJwieAw Aqy ivcwr 
ivtWdrw vI kIqw jWdw hY[ 

ipCly do swlW iv~c, lv nots ƒ kimaUintI duAwrw bhuq 
skwrwqmk huMgwrw imilAw hY[ isMgwpur ivc koivf -19 mhWmwrI 
dy PYlx nwl, isrP 19 joVy 2020 ivc lv nots vrkSwp ivc 
Swml hoey (2019: 40 joVy Aqy 2018: 48 joVy)[ isMgwpur ivc 
ivAwh dI rsmW ƒ auqSwihq krn dy Awpxy audyS nwl lv nots 
ny zor PV ilAw hY[kors dy dOrwn, joVy qMdrusq, mzbUq Aqy 
aumr Br ivAwhuqw jIvn ƒ bxweI r~Kx leI suJwA vI id`qy 
jWdy hn[ ivcwry gey iviSAW iv~c pRBwvSwlI sMcwr, ivvwdW dy 
h~l Aqy ivAwh dy AMdr izMmyvwrIAW Aqy Prj Swml hn.
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Existing Facilitators: (L-R) Gurmeet Kaur, Harjeet Singh, Malkit Kaur, Gurcharan Singh, Juginder Kaur, Gurdev Singh, Dalveer 
Kaur and Kirpal Singh Sidhu.  
Existing Facilitators: (L-R) Gurmeet Kaur, Harjeet Singh, Malkit Kaur, Gurcharan Singh, Juginder Kaur, Gurdev 
Singh, Dalveer Kaur and Kirpal Singh Sidhu.  
mOzUdw PislItytrs:  K`by pwsy qoN; gurmIq kOr, hrjIq isMG, mlkIq kOr, gurcrn isMG, juigMdr kOr, gurdyv isMG dlvIr kOr, ikRpwl 
isMG is`DU 
 

 
New addition to our Faciliators Team in 2018: Daljit Kaur and Sulinder Singh.  New addition to our Faciliators Team in 
2018: Daljit Kaur and Sulinder Singh.  
2018 dy nvyN PislItytrs: dljIq kOr Aqy suilMdr isMG   
 
 

Existing Facilitators: (L-R) Gurmeet Kaur, Harjeet Singh, Malkit Kaur, Gurcharan Singh, 
Juginder Kaur, Gurdev Singh, Dalveer Kaur and Kirpal Singh Sidhu. 

mOzUdw PislItytrs: K`by pwsy qoN; gurmIq kOr, hrjIq isMG, mlkIq kOr, gurcrn isMG, 
juigMdr kOr, gurdyv isMG dlvIr kOr, ikRpwl isMG is`DU
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We welcome our new Facilitators Team in 2020: Amritpal Singh Randhawa and Divjyot Kaur.  
AsIN 2020 ivc swfI nvIN PYsIlItytr tIm dw svwgq krdy hW: AMimRqpwl isMG rMDwvw Aqy idvjoq kOr[ 
 

 
 

         

 Love Notes 2019    Love Notes 2020  

S.No Date 
No of 

Participants   S.No Date 
No of 

Participants  
1 19-Jan 5  1 18-Jan 5 
2 23-Mar 3  2 16-Sep 5 
3 27-Mar 6  3 19-Sep 5 

43
47

40

Couples Attended "Loves Notes"
lv-not ivc ih`sw lYx vwly joVy 

2017
2018
2019
2020
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New addition to our Faciliators Team in 
2018: Daljit Kaur and Sulinder Singh.  

2018 dy nvyN PislItytrs: dljIq kOr Aqy 
suilMdr isMG  

We welcome our new Facilitators Team in 2020: 
Amritpal Singh Randhawa and Divjyot Kaur. 

AsIN 2020 ivc swfI nvIN PYsIlItytr tIm dw svwgq krdy hW: 
AMimRqpwl isMG rMDwvw Aqy idvjoq kOr[

Couples Attended “Loves Notes”

lv-not ivc ih`sw lYx vwly joVy 

2017

2018

2019

2020

43
47

40

Love Notes 2019

S.No Date No of Participants

1 19-Jan 5

2 23-Mar 3

3 27-Mar 6

4 10-Apr 2

5 20-Jul 10

6 26-Jul 3

7 13-Aug 1

8 18-Sep 7

9 10-Oct 1

10 16-Nov 1

11 9-Dec 1

Total 40

Love Notes 2020

S.No Date No of Participants

1 18-Jan 5

2 16-Sep 5

3 19-Sep 5

4 21-Nov 4

Total 19
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CENTRAL SIKH TEMPLE ACTIVITIES
sYNtrl is`K tYNpl dIAW gqIAWivDIAW

Central Sikh Temple Programmes    v`fw gurduAwrw swihb dy pRogrwm

DESCRIPTION    vyrvw 2019 2020

Akhand Path   AKMf pwT 11 4

Sukhmani Sahib   suKmnI swihb 49 25

Sahej Path   sihj pwT 35 46

Weddings   AnMd kwrj 47 18

Engagements   mMgxI 3 0

Regular Diwan   rYgUlr dIvwn 252 189

Naam Simran   nwm ismrn 64  38

Amrit Chhakna   AMimRq Ckxw 17 23

Antim Ardas / Barsi    AMiqm Ardws / brsI 18 21

Thanks Giving    Sukrwnw 7 4

Residence   gRih ivKy

Akhand Path   AKMf pwT 2 1

Sukhmani Sahib   suKmnI swihb 36 21

Sahej Path   sihj pwT 0 0

Guru Gobind Singh Ji Gurpurab - 9th January 2019 – 
13th January 2019

Guru Gobind Singh Ji Gurpurab’s event was held over 
five days with over 1000 Sanggat Members attending. 
During the five days, activities such as Nitnem and 
the morning Diwan which were followed by Sri Sehaj 
Paath till evening were conducted. The day was then 
concluded with Rehraas, Kirtan and Katha Diwan.

gurU goibMd isMG jI dw gurpurb -9 jnvrI-13 jnvrI 2019

gurU goibMd isMG jI dw gurpurb mnwaux leI Kws qOr qy svyry 
inqnym dw dIvwn sjwieAw igAw Aqy Swm qk sihj pwT dw 
pRvwh clwieAw igAw[ auprMq Swm nUM rihrws, kIrqn Aqy 
kQw rwhIN hwzrI BrI geI[ ieh pMj idnW dw pRogrwm sI ijs 
ivc lgBg 1000 SrDwlUAW nyy iSrkq kIqI[ sMgq vloN ieh 
pRogrwm bVy auqSwq nwl mnwieAw igAw[ 
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gurU goibMd isMG jI dw gurpurb -9 jnvrI-13 jnvrI 2019 

gurU goibMd isMG jI dw gurpurb mnwaux leI Kws qOr qy svyry inqnym dw dIvwn sjwieAw igAw Aqy Swm qk sihj pwT dw pRvwh clwieAw igAw[ auprMq Swm nUM 
rihrws, kIrqn Aqy kQw rwhIN hwzrI BrI geI[ieh iqMn idnW dw pRogrwm sI ijs ivc lgBg 1000 SrDwlUAW nyy iSrkq kIqI[ sMgq vloN ieh pRogrwm bVy 
auqSwq nwl mnwieAw igAw[  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Kirtan in progress. Langgar serving in progress  rwgI isMG kIrqn krdy hoey[lMgr syvw  

Kirtan in progress. Langgar serving in progress   rwgI isMG kIrqn krdy hoey [ lMgr syvw 

Guru Har Rai Gurpurab - 14th February 2019 – 17th 
February 2019

Gur Har Rai ‘s Gurpurab was a three - day programme 
where over 500 Sanggat members attended. Kirtan 
was melodiously sung by the resident CST Jatha. A 
talk was also delivered by Bhai Surjit Singh Ji (UK).

gurpurb gurU hirrwey swihb jI -14 PrvrI 17 PrvrI 2019

rihrws swihb dy pwT nwl ies pwvn idhwVy nUM mnwaux dI 
ArMBqw kIqI geI[ v`fw gurduAwrw swihb dy rwgI jQy duAwrw 
kIrqn Aqy BweI surjIq isMG jI (XU.ky.) duAwrw 7.30 qoN 
8.30 q`k kQw syvw rwhIN hwzrI BrI geI[ ies pRogrwm ivc 
lgBg 500 qoN v`D SrDwlUAW nyy iSrkq kIqI[
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Attentive Sanggat Members   gurU dI hzUrI ivc bYTI sMgq

Khalsa Week - 29th March 2019 – 31st March 2019

Programme was held over three days. Daily Special 
diwan were sung by our invited Jathas: Giani Gurdev 
Singh Ji (Sydney) Bhai Sukha Singh Ji (UK) Bibi Shanti 
Kaur Khalsa Ji (USA) Bhai Gagandeep Singh Ji (Sri 
Ganganagar Wale). 

Kwlsw spqwh - 29 mwrc 2019 - 31 mwrc 2019

igAwnI gurdyv isMG jI (isfnI), BweI su~Kw isMG jI (XUky), 
bIbI SWqI kOr Kwlsw jI (XU.AYs.ey) BweI ggndIp isMG jI, 
sRI gMgwngr vwilAW ny rozwnw dIvwnW ivc hwzrI Br sMgq nUM 
inhwl kIqw[ies poRgrwm ivc bhuq SrDwlUAW ny ihsw ilAw[

Sanggat at Gurpurab and Kirtan in session.   gurpurb smyN sMgq hwzrI BrdI hoeI 

Vesakhi - 12th April 2019 – 14th April 2019

Programme was celebrated in the evening with 1000 
over Sanggat members. Guru Ka Langgar was served 
throughout the three days of celebration on the Birth 
of Khalsa.

vYswKI sMmyln: 12 qoN 14 ApRYl 2019

vYswKI sMmyln qy 1000 qoN izAwdw sMgq ny iSrkq kIqI[bhuq 
swry pRogrwmW ivc sMgq dw BwrI auqSwh vyKx nUM imilAw[
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Ardent Sanggat  

drbwr hwl ivc bYTI sMgq
Nishan Sahib Sewa    

inSwn swihb syvw
Sewa in the Kitchen  

bIbIAW lMgr syvw krdIAW hoeIAW
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Guru Tegh Bahadur Ji Gurpurab - 24th April 2019

Gupurab started with Rehras in the evening. 

gurpurb gurU qyg bhwdr jI: 24 ApRYl 2019

rihrws swihb dy pwT nwl gurpurb mnwaux dI ArMBqw hoeI[ 
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Guru Arjan Dev Ji Gurpurab-26th April 2019 gurpurb guru Arjn dyv jI: 26 ApRYl 2019 
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Volunteers cleaning the Langgar Hall & Sanggat absorbed in the Kirtan.

kIrqn dw AnMd lYNdy hoey SrDwlU Aqy lMgr hwl dI s&weI krdy hoey syvwdwr

Guru Angad Dev Ji Gurpurab - 05th May 2019

The Gurpurab started with Rehras in the evening 
followed by Kirtan. 

gurU AMgd dyv jI gurpurb: 05 meI 2019

rihrws swihb dy pwT nwl gurpurb mnwaux dI ArMBqw auprMq 
kIrqn nwl sMgq nUM inhwl kIqw[
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Guru Amar Das Ji Gurpurab -17th May 2019 

 The Gurpurab started with Rehras in the evening followed by Kirtan. 
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Guru Amar Das Ji Gurpurab - 17th May 2019

The Gurpurab started with Rehras in the evening 
followed by Kirtan.

gurU Amrdws jI gurpurb: 17 meI 2019 

rihrws swihb dy pwT nwl gurpurb mnwaux dI ArMBqw auprMq 
kIrqn nwl sMgq nUM inhwl kIqw[ 
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Volunteers doing Roti Sewa   
syvwdwr pRSwdw iqAwr krdy hoey[ 

CST Jatha conducting Kirtan 
v`fw gurduAwrw swihb dw rwgI 
jQw kIrqn krdy hoey 
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Volunteers doing Roti Sewa   
syvwdwr pRSwdw iqAwr krdy hoey[ 

CST Jatha conducting Kirtan 
v`fw gurduAwrw swihb dw rwgI 
jQw kIrqn krdy hoey 

CST Jatha conducting Kirtan 

v`fw gurduAwrw swihb dw rwgI jQw kIrqn krdy hoey
Volunteers doing Roti Sewa   

syvwdwr pRSwdw iqAwr krdy hoey[

Guru Hargobind Sahib Ji Gurpurab - 18th June 2019 gurU hrgoibMd swihb jI gurpurb: 18 jUn 2019 
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Guru Harkrishan Sahib Ji Gurpurab -26th July 2019 

About 200 beneficiaries attended the Gurpurab. 

gurpurb gurU hirikRSn swihb jI: 26 julweI 2019 

lgBg 200 SrDwlUAW ny ies pRogrwm ivc iSrkq kIqI[  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attendees at Gurpurab  sMgq hwzrI BrdI hoeI Katha by Head Granthi  igAwnI jI kQw krdy hoey 
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Guru Harkrishan Sahib Ji Gurpurab - 26th July 2019

About 200 devotees attended this programme. 

gurpurb gurU hirikRSn swihb jI: 26 julweI 2019

lgBg 200 SrDwlUAW ny ies pRogrwm ivc iSrkq kIqI[ 
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Attendees at Gurpurab

SrDwlU hwzrI Brdy hoey [  



CSGB ANNUAL REPORT 2019/202034

National Day - 9th August 2019

To celebrate Singapore’s 54th Birthday, we had a 
Kirtan and Katha Diwan from 7-9am. Then we had a 
National Day Ardas and cake-cutting in the Langar 
Hall. More than 600 beneficiaries attended the event.

rwStrI idvs: 9 Agsq 2019

isMGwpur dw 54vW jnm idn mnwaux leI iek ivSys smwgm 
sjwieAw igAw ijs ivc svyry 7 qoN 9 vjy kIrqn Aqy kQw 
dIvwn sjwey gey[Ardws auprMq kyk vI kitAw igAw[600 qoN 
vDyry SrDwlUAW ny ies pRogrwm ivc iSrkq kIqI[ 

Happy and loyal attendees at the cake cutting ceremony   sMgq kyk ktdI hoeI

1st Prakash Purab of SGGS - 27th August 2019 – 31st 
August 2019

To celebrate the day on which the “Adi Granth” 
was placed in the Harmandir Sahib. About 200 
beneficiaries attended the Gurpurab.

SRI gurU gMRQ swihb jI dw pihlw pRkwS purb: 27 Agsq qoN 31 
Agsq 2019

SRI Awid gurU gMRQ swihb jI dw pihlw pRkwS purb mnwaux dy leI 
lgBg 200 SrDwlUAW ny ivc iSrkq kIqI[ 
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Guru Ram Das Sahib Ji Gurpurab - 15th October 2019

300 - 400 beneficiaries attended the Gurpurab.

gurpurb gurU rwmdws swihb jI: 15 AkqUbr 2019

300 qoN 400 SrDwlUAW ny ies pRogrwm ivc iSrkq kIqI 
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Attendees at Gurpurab and Kirtan in session. sMgq hwzrI BrdI hoeI Aqy rwgI isMG kIrqn krdy hoey 
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Guru Nanak 550th Birthday Harmony Parade - 9th 
and 10th November 2019

As part of Guru Nanak’s 550th Birthday Celebrations, 
the Sikh Community of Singapore held a Guru Nanak 
550th Birthday Harmony Parade on Saturday, 9th 
November 2019 and Sunday, 10th November 2019.

The Harmony Parade was in the form of a float 
(mounted on a lorry) made as a replica of Gurdwaras 
Janam Asthan, Nankana Sahib. Gurdwaras Janam 
Asthan is at the birth place of Guru Nanak Dev Ji in 
Nankana Sahib, near Lahore, Pakistan. The float was 
constructed using fibreglass and was built in India by 
Avninder Singh, the same artisan who constructed 
the palkis at Central Sikh Temple and Sri Guru Singh 
Sabha. The float (including the dome) was 36 feet 
long, 10 feet wide and 14 feet tall.

The Harmony Parade float visited all the seven Sikh 
Gurdwaras in Singapore for about one hour each and 
was large enough inside for the devotees to pay their 
respects to Sri Guru Granth Sahib Ji and for devotional 
hymns to be sung by Kirtan Jathas. There was space 
in front for the Panj Pyare to be in attendance whilst 
the float was at each Gurdwaras for the Sanggat to 
pay their reverence to Sri Guru Granth Sahib Ji in 
the float. The route of the float also covered some of 
Singapore’s heartlands and tourist destinations like 
Chinatown, Orchard Road, Geylang and Little India.

The objective of the Harmony Parade was to give 
those Sikhs who have not had the opportunity to 
visit Nankana Sahib in Pakistan, a glimpse of the holy 
site. Furthermore, we also wanted to promote Guru 
Nanak’s philosophy of Universal Brotherhood, that 
states everyone is equal; regardless of caste, religion, 
gender or economic status.  

The Harmony Parade was organised by Central Sikh 
Gurdwara Board (CSGB), with Gurdip Singh Usma 
(Advisor, CSGB) as Chairman and the Harmony Parade 
Organising Committee comprising representatives of 
all Sikh Institutions in Singapore.

gurU nwnk dyv jI dw 550vW jnmidn eykqw pryf - 9 Aqy 10 
nvMbr 2019

gurU nwnk dyv jI dy 550vyN pRkwS idhwVy nUM smripq, isMgwpur 
dI is~K kOm vloN hwrmnI pryf SnIvwr Aqy AYqvwr, 9 Aqy 10 
nvMbr 2019 nUM AwXoijq kIqI geI[

hwrmnI pryf dy leI gurU nwnk dyv jI dy jnm AsQwn nnkwxw 
swihb dw Plot iqAwr krky iek lorI ‘qy SsoiBq kIqw igAw[ 
sRI gurU nwnk dyv jI dw jnm AsQwn nnkwxw swihb lwhOr, 
pwiksqwn ivKy siQq hY[ Plot dw inrmwx PweIbr glws dI 
vrqoN nwl kIqw igAw sI jo Bwrq nwl sMbMiDq ausy kwrIgr 
AvinMdr isMG duAwrw bxwieAw igAw, ijs ny v`fw gurduAwrw 
swihb Aqy sRI gurU isMG sBw ivKy pwlkI dw inrmwx kIqw sI[ 
Plot (guMbd smyq) 36 Pu~t lMbw, 10 Pu~t cOVw Aqy 14 Pu~t 
aucw sI[

hwrmnI pryf Plot lgBg ie~k GMty leI isMgwpur dy swry s~q 
gurduAwirAW swihbwn ivKy suBwiemwn irhw[ Plot ivc sMgq dy 
drSn leI kw&I QW sI[bhuq swrI sMgq Plot ivc pRkwiSq sRI 
gurU gRMQ swihb jI A`gy nqmsqk hoeI Aqy v`K-v`K rwgI isMGW 
duAwrw kIrqn dI hwzrI vI BrI geI[ies Plot dI rwhnumweI 
pMj ipAwry kr rhy sn[Plot isMgwpur dIAW kuJ Kws idlcsp 
sQwnW ijvyN cweInw twaun, Aorcrf rof, gylWg Aqy iltl 
ieMfIAw ivcoN vI gujirAw[

hwrmnI pryf dw audyS aunHW is~KW ƒ ies pwvn AsQwn (nnkwxw 
swihb) dw AnuBv krvwauxw sI ijnHW nUM pwiksqwn ivc nnkwxw 
swihb dy drSn krn dw suBwg pRwpq nhIN sI hoieAw[ies qoN 
ielwvw, gurU nwnk dyv jI dy srv ivAwpk AwpsI BweIcwry dy 
isDWq nUM vI jo hr qrHW dy jwqI, Drm, ilMg jW AwriQk BydBwv 
qoN mukq sI pRcwrnw [ 

sYNtRl is~K gurduAwrw borf (sIAYsbIsI) vloN ies hwrmnI pryf 
dw pRbMD gurdIp isMG ausmw (slwhkwr, sI.AYs.jI.bI.) dI 
cyArmYniSp hyT hoieAw ijs ivc isMgwpur dIAW swrIAW is~K 
sMsQwvW dy numwieMidAW dI iek pRbMDk kmytI vI sI[

66 
 

hwrmnI pryf Plot lgBg ie~k GMty leI isMgwpur dy swry s~q gurduAwirAW swihbwn ivKy suBwiemwn irhw[ Plot ivc sMgq dy drSn leI kw&I QW sI[bhuq swrI 
sMgq Plot ivc pRkwiSq sRI gurU gRMQ swihb jI A`gy nqmsqk hoeI Aqy v`K-v`K rwgI isMGW duAwrw kIrqn dI hwzrI vI BrI geI[ies Plot dI rwhnumweI pMj 
ipAwry kr rhy sn[Plot isMgwpur dIAW kuJ Kws idlcsp sQwnW ijvyN cweInw twaun, Aorcrf rof, gylWg Aqy iltl ieMfIAw ivcoN vI gujirAw[ 

hwrmnI pryf dw audyS aunHW is~KW ƒ ies pwvn AsQwn (nnkwxw swihb) dw AnuBv krvwauxw sI ijnHW nUM pwiksqwn ivc nnkwxw swihb dy drSn krn dw suBwg 
pRwpq nhIN sI hoieAw[ies qoN ielwvw, gurU nwnk dyv jI dy srv ivAwpk AwpsI BweIcwry dy isDWq ijs ivc hr koeI brwbr Aqy hr qrHW dy jwqI, Drm, ilMg 
jW AwriQk BydBwv qoN mukq sI[  

sYNtRl is~K gurduAwrw borf (sIAYsbIsI) vloN ies hwrmnI pryf dw pRbMD gurdIp isMG ausmw (slwhkwr, sI.AYs.jI.bI.) dI cyArmYniSp hyT hoieAw ijs ivc 
isMgwpur dIAW swrIAW is~K sMsQwvW dy numwieMidAW dI iek pRbMDk kmytI vI sI[ 

 
Deputy Prime Minister Heng Swee Keat visited in the evening 10 November 2019 at Central Sikh Temple. 

aup pRDwn mMqrI hYNg svI kIt 10 nvMbr 2019 ƒ Swm ƒ sYNtrl is`K tYNpl ivKy iSrkq 
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DPM Partaking in Langgar. DPM and other leaders serving Langgar. 

fIpIAYm Aqy hor AwgU lMgr dI syvw krdy hoey[

DPM giving a speech in the Darbar Hall. Group picture with Council Members.

drbwr hwl iv~c BwSx idMdy fIpIAYm[ kwaNsl mYNbrW nwl smUh qsvIr[

DPM Heng Swee Kiat presented with a plaque 

aup pRDwn mMqrI hyN| svI ikAwt jI nUM plwk Byt krdy hoey
The Float   

Plot nnkwxw swihb
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Devotees paying respect to Sri Guru Granth Sahib Ji

 SrDwlU SRI gurU gRMQ swihb jI nUM SrDw Byt krdy hoey

Float at Yishun Gurdwara  

iXSUn gurduAwrw swihb ivKy Plot 
Kirtan in float 

Plot iv`c kIrqn dI hwzrI

Guru Nanak Dev Ji Gurpurab - 8th November 2019 – 
12th November 2019

Programme was held over five days. Evening Diwans 
were conducted by Bhai Harcharan Singh Khalsa with 
a special Gurbani Talk on the Status of Guru Nanak 
Dev Ji. 

gurpurb gurU nwnk dyv jI: 8 nvMbr 2019 qoN 12 nvMbr 
2019

pRogrwm pMj idnW leI AwXoijq kIqw igAw sI[ Swm dy dIvwn 
BweI hrcrn isMG Kwlsw duAwrw sRI gurU nwnk dyv jI dy jIvn 
bwry Aqy gurbwxI ivcwrW nwl krvwey gey[
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Guru Nanak Dev Ji Gurpurab -8th November 2019 – 12th November 2019 

gurpurb gurU nwnk dyv jI: 8 nvMbr 2019 qon 12 nvMbr 2019 

Programme was held over three days. Evening Diwans were conducted by Bhai Harcharan Singh Khalsa with a special Gurbani Talk on the Status of Guru Nanak Dev Ji.  

pRogrwm iqMn idnW leI AwXoijq kIqw igAw sI[ Swm dy dIvwn BweI hrcrn isMG Kwlsw duAwrw sRI gurU nwnk dyv jI dy jIvn bwry Aqy gurbwxI ivcwrW nwl krvwey gey[ 

 

 

 

 

 

Float at Yishun Gurdwara  iXSUn gurduAwry ivKy Plot  Kirtan in float Plot iv`c kIrqn dI hwzrI 
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Float at Yishun Gurdwara  iXSUn gurduAwry ivKy Plot  Kirtan in float Plot iv`c kIrqn dI hwzrI 

Sanggat at Gurpurab & volunteers doing sewa.  

gurpurb Aqy syvw smyN juVI hoeI sMgq
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Seniors outing in conjunction with GNK 550th Celebration, organised by Sikh Welfare Council 
gurU nwnk dyv jI dw 550 swlw gurpurb mnwaux leI is`K vYlPyAr kwauNsl duAwrw AwauitMg dw pRbMD kIqw igAw 
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Sanggat at Gurpurab & volunteers doing sewa.  gurpurb Aqy syvw smyN juVI hoeI sMgq 
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Seniors outing in conjunction with GNK 550th Celebration, organised by Sikh Welfare Council

gurU nwnk dyv jI dw 550 swlw gurpurb mnwaux leI is`K vYlPyAr kwauNsl duAwrw AwauitMg dw pRbMD kIqw igAw

Udasis Exhibition was setup by Sikh Centre on Travels 
of Guru Nanak Dev Ji’s. More than 20 models were 
prepared on Sakhis’s related to travels. It was well 
received by the Sanggat.

is`K sYNtr duAwrw gurU nwnk dyv jI dIAW audwsIAW nwl sMbMiDq 
iek pRdrSnI lgweI geI ijs ivc 20 qoN v`D nmUinAW nUM pyS 
kIqw igAw[ sMgq duAwrw ies pRdrSnI nUM bhuq slwihAw igAw[
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Devotees viewing the models SrDwlU pRdrSnI mwfl dyKdy hoey 
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Devotees viewing the models SrDwlU pRdrSnI mwfl dyKdy hoey 

 

 

  

Devotees viewing the models 

SrDwlU pRdrSnI mwfl dyKdy hoey

Anhad Kirtan 22nd December 2019 - 25th December 
2019

Programme was held over four days. Kirtans were 
sung by Bhai Manjit Singh Jatha, Bhai Inderjeet 
Singh Jatha and Veer Manpreet Jatha.  Anand Sahib, 
Ardas, Sukhasan and Kirtan Sohila concluded the 
programme. More than 1000 Sanggat members 
attended the event.

Anhd kIrqn 22 nvMbr 2019-25 dsMbr 2019

cwr idnW dy ies pRogrwm dOrwn vIr mnpRIq isMG, BweI ieMdrjIq 
isMG Aqy BweI mnjIq isMG jI dy jQy duAwrw kIrqn hwzrI BrI 
geI[AnMd swihb, Ardws, soihlw bwxI dw jwp krn auprMq 
s`uK Awsn kr pRogrwm dI smwpqI wwhoeI[ ies pRogrwm ivc 
1000 qoN v`D sMgq mYNbrW ny hwzrI BrI[
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Guru Gobind Singh Ji Gurpurab 1st January 2020 – 3rd January 2020 

gurpurb gurU goibMd isMG jI: 1 qoN 3 jnvrI 2020 

Programme was held over three days with a daily recitation of Sehaj Paath. 

sihj pwT dy nwl iqMn idnW iv~c pRogrwm AwXoijq kIqw igAw[ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

hwzr sMgq SrDwlU pRSwdw iqAwr krdy hoey . 

Sanggat enjoying the Kirtan 
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Kirtan in session. kIrqn sYSn 

Attentive Attendees and volunteers preparing 
meals.  
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Attentive Attendees and volunteers preparing meals. 
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Guru Gobind Singh Ji Gurpurab 1st January 2020 - 
3rd January 2020

Programme was held over three days with a daily 
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sihj pwT dy nwl nwl iqMn idnW leI pRogrwm AwXoijq kIqw 
igAw[
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hwzr sMgq SrDwlU pRSwdw iqAwr krdy hoey . 

Sanggat enjoying the Kirtan 

Guru Har Rai Sahib Ji Gurpurab - 7th February 2020 gurpurb gurU hirrwey swihb jI -7 PrvrI 2020
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Guru Har Rai Sahib Ji Gurpurab -7th February 2020 

gurpurb gurU hirrwey swihb jI -7 PrvrI 2020 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Vesakhi 13th April 2020 

vYswKI sMmyln: 13 ApRYl 2020 

Under COVID-19 Measures, the programme was live streamed via CSGB Facebook. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Head Granthi doing Katha and Kirtan in progress    
igAwnI jI kQw Aqy rwgI isMG kIrqn krdy hoey 
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Head Granthi doing Katha and Kirtan in progress    
igAwnI jI kQw Aqy rwgI isMG kIrqn krdy hoey 

Vesakhi 13th April 2020

Under COVID-19 Measures, the programme was live 
streamed via CSGB Facebook.

vYswKI sMmyln: 13 ApRYl 2020

koivf-19 kwrx pRorrwm dw borf dy Pysbuk pyz qoN is`Dw pRswrx 
kIqw igAw[ 
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Head Granthi doing Katha and Kirtan in progress   

igAwnI jI kQw Aqy rwgI isMG kIrqn krdy hoey

Sri Guru Tegh Bahadur Ji Gurpurab - 12th April 2020 gurpurb SRI gurU qyg bhwdr jI: 12 ApRYl 2020

Kirtan in progress  

rwgI isMG kIrqn krdy hoey

Guru Arjan Dev Ji Gurpurab - 14th April 2020 gurpurb gurU Arjn dyv jI: 14 ApRYl 2020

CSGB Facebook Live streaming in session  

sYNtrl is`K gurduAwrw borf dy Pysbuk pyz qoN is`Dw pRswrx

Guru Angad Dev Ji Gurpurab - 24th April 2020

CSGB Facebook live streaming. Well received by 
Sanggat members. 

gurpurb gurU AMgd dyv jI: 24 ApRYl 2020

sYNtrl is`K gurduAwrw borf dy Pysbuk pyz qoN is`Dw pRswrx[sMgq 
duAwrw ies poRgrwm dI SlwGw kIqI geI[
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Guru Angad Dev Ji Gurpurab-24th April 2020 

gurpurb gurU AMgd dyv jI: 24 ApRYl 2020 

 CSGB Facebook live streaming. Well received by Sanggat members. sYNtrl is`K gurduAwrw borf dy Pysbuk pyz qoN is`Dw pRswrx[sMgq duAwrw ies poRgrwm dI SlwGw 
kIqI geI[ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CSGB Facebook Live streaming in session  sYNtrl is`K gurduAwrw borf dy Pysbuk pyz qoN is`Dw pRswrx 

CSGB Facebook Live streaming in session 

CSGB Facebook Live streaming in session  

sYNtrl is`K gurduAwrw borf dy Pysbuk pyz qoN is`Dw pRswrx
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Guru Amar Das Ji Gurpurab - 6th May 2020 gurpurb gurU Amrdws jI: 6 meI 2020
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Guru Hargobind Sahib Ji Gurpurab-6th June 2020 

gurpurb gurU hrgooibMd swihb jI: 6 jUn 2020 

CSGB Facebook live streaming sYNtrl is`K gurduAwrw borf vloN is`Dw pRswrx[ 

 

 

 

 

 

CSGB Facebook Live streaming in session 
sYNtrl is`K gurduAwrw borf dy Pysbuk pyz qoN is`Dw pRswrx[ 
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CSGB Facebook Live streaming in session  
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Guru Harkrishan Sahib Ji Gurpurab -14th July 2020 gurpurb gurU hirikRSn swihb jI: 14 julweI 2020
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Guru Harkrishan Sahib Ji Gurpurab -14th July 2020 

gurpurb gurU hirikRSn swihb jI: 14 julweI 2020 

 

 

 

By CSGB Facebook live streaming 

 

 

 

 

1st Prakash Purab of Sri Guru Granth Sahib -19th August 2020 

pihlw pRkwS purb SRI gurU gMRQ swihb jI: 19 Agsq 2020 

 

CSGB Facebook live streaming sYNtrl is`K gurduAwrw borf dy Pysbuk pyz qoN is`Dw pRswrx[ 

 

 

 

CSGB Facebook Live streaming in session  sYNtrl is`K gurduAwrw borf dy Pysbuk pyz qoN is`Dw pRswrx[ 

CSGB Facebook Live streaming in session  sYNtrl is`K gurduAwrw borf dy Pysbuk pyz qoN is`Dw pRswrx[ 
CSGB Facebook Live streaming in session  
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1st Prakash Purab of Sri Guru Granth Sahib - 19th 
August 2020

pihlw pRkwS purb SRI gurU gMRQ swihb jI: 19 Agsq 2020
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Guru Ram Das Sahib Ji Gurpurab - 2nd November 
2020

gurpurb gurU rwmdws swihb jI: 2 nvMbr 2020
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 CSGB Facebook Live streaming in session  sYNtrl is`K gurduAwrw borf dy Pysbuk pyz qoN is`Dw pRswr  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rehan Sebai by Sikh Sewaks-31st December 2020 
Sanggat members attended the event which was also streamed live. 

CSGB Facebook Live streaming in session  sYNtrl is`K gurduAwrw borf dy Pysbuk pyz qoN is`Dw pRswrx[ 
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Rehan Sebai by Sikh Sewaks-31st December 2020

Sanggat members attended the event which was also 
streamed live.

is`K syvk vloN rYx sbweI kIrqn: 31 dsMbr 2020 

sMgq ny ies pRogrwm ivc hwzrI BrI Aqy is`Dw pRswrx vI kIqw 
igAw[ 
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is`K syvk vloN rYx sbweI kIrqn: 31 dsMbr 2020  

sMgq ny ies pRogrwm ivc hwzrI BrI Aqy is`Dw pRswrx vI kIqw igAw[  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Sanggat Members conforming to COVID-19 Measures 
sMgq koivf -19 aupwA dI pwlxw krdI hoeI  
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SILAT ROAD SIKH TEMPLE
gurduAwrw swihb islt rof

Silat Road Sikh Temple Programmes    gurduAwrw swihb islt rof dy pRogrwm

DESCRIPTION    vyrvw 2019 2020

Akhand Path   AKMf pwT 31 15

Sukhmani Sahib   suKmnI swihb 219 124

Sahej Path   sihj pwT 42 34

Weddings   AnMd kwrj 2 0

Engagements   mMgxI 0 0

Regular Diwan   rYgUlr dIvwn 113 93

Naam Simran   nwm ismrn 207 206

Amrit Chhakna   AMimRq Ckxw 6 4

Antim Ardas / Barsi    AMiqm Ardws / brsI 15 11

Thanks Giving    Sukrwnw 40 24

Residence   gRih ivKy

Akhand Path   AKMf pwT 5 0

Sukhmani Sahib   suKmnI swihb 40 8

Sahej Path   sihj pwT 5 2

Chet Sangrand “Nanakshahi New Year - 14 March 
2019

Nanakshahi New Year is considered from the year of 
birth of Guru Nanak Dev Ji. Chet is the first month in 
the Nanakshahi calendar, which governs the activities 
within Sikhism.

cyq sMgrWd nwnkSwhI nvW swl-14 mwrc 2019

gurU nwnk dyv jI dy pRkwS purb swl qoN nwnkSwhI kYlMfr dI 
SurUAwq mMnI jWdI hY[ cyq nwnkSwhI kYlMfr dw pihlw mhInw hY 
ijs qoN is`K Drm dIAW gqIivDIAW SurU huMdIAW hn[
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Shaheedi Diwas Guru Arjan Dev Ji - 2nd to 9th June 2019 

ShIdI idvs gurU Arjn dyv jI- 2 qoN 9 jUn  

Guru Arjan Sahib Ji’s Shaheedi was commemorated with much devotion at Gurdwaras Sahib Silat Road this year, with several programmes lined up for the Sanggat.   

ies swl gurU Arjn dyv jI dw ShIdI idhwVw islt rof gurduAwrw swihb ivKy pUrI SrDw nwl mnwieAw igAw ijs ivc bhuq swry pRogrwm sMgq dI syvw ivc hwzr 
kIqy gey[ 
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Melodious Kirtan by SRST Jatha and Volunteers serving Langgar

AYsAwrAYstI dw jQw rsiBMnw kIrqn krdy hoey Aqy lMgr dI syvw krdy hoey vlMtIAr

163rd Barsi of Bhai Maharaj Singh Ji - 1st to 7th July 
2019

Celebrations started with daily kirtan by resident 
Jatha followed by special Kirtan by Veer Manpreet 
Singh (UK Wale). Other activities such as Nishan 
Sahib Slami, outing for Senior citizens, Children’s 
party, health screening, dengue awareness booth, SG 
Secure awareness talk and a turban tying booth were 
set up.

BweI mhwrwj isMG jI dI 163vIN brsI 1 qoN 7 julweI 2019

smwroh dI SurUAwq rwgI jQy v~loN rozwnw kIrqn nwl kIqI geI 
Aqy auprMq vIr mnpRIq isMG (XUky vwly) v~loN ivSyS kIrqn 
kIqw igAw[ hor gqIivDIAW ijvyN ik inSwn swihb dI slwmI, 
bzurg nwgirkW leI AwaUitMg, b~icAW leI pwrtI, ishq jWc, 
fyNgU jwgrUkqw bUQ, AYsjI sur~iKAq jwgrUkqw twk Aqy dsqwr 
isKlweI vwlw bUQ sQwpq kIqw igAw sI[
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Relocation Day Memorial Bhai Maharaj Singh Ji - 
13th October 2019

This year, in memory of Relocation Day, daily recitation 
of Sri Sehaj Paath was recited by Sanggat members.

irlokySn idhwVw Xwdgwr BweI mhwrwj isMG jI- 13 AkqUbr 
2019

ies swl muV sQwpnw idvs dI Xwd ivc sMgq vloN sRI sihj 
pwT dI syvw kIqI geI[
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Bandi Chhor Diwas 25th October to 27th 2019

Prorgamme was held over three days. Bhog, Nishan 
Sahib Slami and Kirtan Diwan were carried out. 

bMdI CoV idvs 25 AkqUbr qoN 27 AkqUbr 2019 

pRorgwm ƒ iqMn idnW qoN v~D smyN leI r~iKAw igAw sI[ Bog, 
inSwn swihb dI slwmI Aqy kIrqn dIvwn sjwey gey[
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 Volunteers doing Sewa. syvw krdy vlMtIAr[  
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Gurgaddi Diwas Sri Guru Granth Sahib Ji - 28th 
October 2019 to 30th October 2019

Sri Akhan Paath was held on the auspicious occasion 
of Gurgaddi Divas of Sri Guru Granth Sahib Ji. 

gurg~dI idvs sRI gurU gRMQ swihb jI-28 AkqUbr 2019 qoN 
30 AkqUbr 2019

sRI gurU gRMQ swihb jI dy gurg~dI idvs dy ivSyS mOky sRI AKMf 
pwT swihb
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Volunteers doing Sewa.   

syvw krdy vlMtIAr[

Remembrance of Martyrdom of Chhote Sahibzade 
- 26th December 2019 and YEAR END KIRTAN 
DARBAR - 27th to 31st December 2019

Kirtan Diwan was organised at the Main Darbar Hall. 
Kirtan was sung by resident Jatha and invited guest, 
Veer Manpreet Singh (UK Wale).To welcome 2020, 
Ardas was done by Head Granthi on 1st January at 
12:30 am. 

ShIdI idhwVw Coty swihbjwdy - 26 dsMbr 2019 Aqy swl dw 
AMiqm kIrqn drbwr 27 qoN 31 dsMbr 2019

myn drbwr hwl ivKy kIrqn dIvwn sjwey gey[ invwsI jQy Aqy 
s~dy gey mihmwn vIr mnpRIq isMG (XUky vwly) vloN kIrqn kIqw 
igAw [2020 dy svwgq leI Ardws hY~f gRMQI v~loN 1 jnvrI 
ƒ svyry 12:30 vjy kIqI geI[
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2020 NEW YEARS DAY CELEBRATIONS -1st January 2020 

2020 nvW swl mnwaux leI -1 jnvrI 2020 
Nishan Sahib Slami ceremony was held, followed by kirtan diwan in the main Darbar Hall. Various Ragi Jathas from the local Gurdwaras did Kirtan in allotted slots. 

inSwn swihb slwmI dI rsm Adw kIqI geI, auprMq mu~K drbwr hwl iv~c kIrqn dIvwn sjwey gey[ sQwnk gurduAwirAW dy v~K-v~K rwgI jiQAW ny Alwt hoeIAW slwtW ivc kIrqn dI 
hwzrI lvweI[ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Paanj Pyare in attendance and melodious Kirtan being delivered. Cleaning of Nishan Sahib Slami. Devotees in BMS Memorial Hall 
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2020 NEW YEARS DAY CELEBRATIONS - 1st January 
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Nishan Sahib Slami ceremony was held, followed by 
kirtan diwan in the main Darbar Hall. Various Ragi 
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250TH BIRTHDAY CELEBRATION OF BHAI MAHARAJ 
SINGH JI - 31st December 2019 to 5th January 2020

The celebration was held with a display of rare relics 
of Bhai Maharaj Singh Ji from India. In addition, the 
documentary “The Saint Solider, Uncovering the Bhai 
Maharaj Singh story” was screened by SRST at level-7 
Sikh Centre Auditorium. The documentary was about 
the life and struggle of Bhai Maharaj Singh against the 
British in India. It was a CSGB initiative, in support of 
the Government’s Bi-Centennial celebration.
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dsMbr 2019 qoN 5 jnvrI 2020 
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islt rof XUint kmytI duAwrw, BweI mhwrwj isMG jI nwl 
sMbMiDq iek dsqwvyzI iPlm ‘dw syNt solzr’ vI isK sYNtr dy 
AwfItorIAm ivKy 31 dsMbr 2019 qoN 5 jnvrI 2020 q~k 
Swm 7 vjy idKweI geI[ fwkUmYNtrI BweI mhwrwj isMG dy ibRitS 
ivru~D jIvn Aqy sMGrS bwry sI[ ieh borf duAwrw srkwr vloN 
mnweI jw rhI 250 swlw SqwbdI smwroh dy smrQn iv~c, iek 
slwgwXog kdm sI[
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Shaheedi Diwas Guru Arjan Dev Ji -26th May 2020

Under the COVID-19 Measures, the programme was 
live streamed. On this day, we honour Sri Guru Arjan 
Dev Ji for becoming Sikhism’s first martyr. 

ShIdI idvs gurU Arjn dyv jI -26 meI 2020

koivf -19 aupwA dy qihq pRogrwm is~Dw(lweIv) pRswirq kIqw 
igAw sI[ ieh idn nUM AsIN sRI gurU Arjn dyv jI duAwrw id`qI 
Shwdq leI smripq krdy hW[
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164th Barsi of Bhai Maharaj Singh Ji - 3rd to 5th July 
2020

Under the COVID-19 Measures, the programme was 
live streamed.

BweI mhwrwj isMG jI dI 164vIN brsI- 3 julweI qoN 5 julweI 
2020

koivf -19 aupwA dy qihq pRogrwm is~Dw(lweIv) pRswirq kIqw 
igAw sI[
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Relocation Day of Memorial of Bhai Maharaj Singh Ji -12th October 2020  
irlokySn idhwVw Xwdgwr BweI mhwrwj isMG jI- 12 AkqUbr 2020 
The relocation of Bhai Maharaj Singh’s memorial from its previous site to the current site is celebrated every year by the Sanggat. Unlike previous years, only Sukhmani Sahib 
Paath was recited followed by a Kirtan and Katha Session which were live streamed. 

BweI mhwrwj isMG jI dI Xwdgwr ƒ sMgqW duAwrw mnwieAw jWdw hY[kyvl suKmnI swihb pwT dw pwT kIqw igAw, auprMq kIrqn Aqy 
kQw smwgm sI jo is~Dw pRswirq kIqw igAw[ 
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Relocation Day of Memorial of Bhai Maharaj Singh 
Ji -12th October 2020 

The relocation of Bhai Maharaj Singh’s memorial 
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Bandi Chhor Diwas - 12th November to 14th November 
2020 

Programme was held over three days. Nishan Sahib 
Slami was done followed by Bhog. Kirtan Diwan was 
recited by CST Jatha and students of Gurmat Sangeet 
Academy.

bMdI CoV idvs -12 nvMbr qoN 14 nvMbr 2020

pRogrwm iqMn idnW qoN v~D AwXoijq kIqw igAw sI[ inSwn swihb 
dI slwmI rsm Bog auprMq kIqI geI[ sIAYstI jQy Aqy gurmiq 
sMgIq AkYfmI dy ividAwrQIAW v~loN kIrqn dIvwn sjwey gey[
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Gurgaddi Diwas Sri Guru Granth Sahib Ji - 16th 
November 2020

gurg~dI idvs sRI gurU gRMQ swihb jI -16 nvMbr 2020
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Remembering the Martyrdom of Guru Teg Bahadur Ji -19th December 2020 

gurU qyg bhwdr jI dI Shwdq ƒ Xwd kridAW -19 dsMbr 2020 

 

 
 

   
Kirtan by GSA Students. Katha by Giani Ji.  
jIAYsey dy ividAwrQI kIrqn gwien krdy hoey[ igAwnI jI kQw krdy hoey 
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Remembrance of Martyrdom of Chhote Sahibzade - 
26th December 2020

Sukhmani Sahib, Kirtan and Katha Diwan were 
organised. A 25 minute katha about the Martyrdom 
of Chhote Sahibzade was conducted by the Head 
Granthi. 

Coty swihbzwidAW dI Shwdq dI Xwd ivc: -26 dsMbr 2020

suKmnI swihb, kIrqn Aqy kQw dIvwn sjwey gey[ Coty 
swihbzwidAW dI Shwdq bwry 25 imMt dI kQw hY~f gRMQI v~loN 
kIqI geI[
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VIRTUAL YEAR END KIRTAN DARBAR - 31st 
December 2020

Wishing goodbye to 2020 and ushering in 2021 with 
Guru Ji’s blessings, the virtual year-end Kirtan Darbar 
was organised. Kirtan session by Gurmat Sangeet 
Academy students and instructors and a katha session 
by  the Head Granthi were live streamed. 

swl dw AMqlw vrcUAl kIrqn drbwr -31 dsMbr 2020

2020 ƒ Alivdw AwKxw Aqy 2021 iv~c gurU jI dI AsIs 
lYx leI vrcuAl kIrqn drbwr krvwieAw igAw[ gurmiq 
sMgIq AkYfmI dy ividAwrQIAW Aqy ieMstRktrW v~loN kIrqn 
smwgm Aqy hYf gRMQI v~loN kQw sYSn dw is~Dw pRswrx kIqw 
igAw[
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Ground-breaking Ceremony of A&A Works at SRST/
SC - 8 March 2020

To start the A&A works at SRST/SC, a ground-breaking 
ceremony was organised at SRST on 8 March 2020 at 
3:30pm in the presence of Paanj Pyare. Before the 
commencement of the ceremony, there was a Kirtan 
and Katha session by the Raagi Jatha and Giani Ji. 
Then a special Ardaas was recited by Giani Ji to 
commence the SRST A&A works with blessings of 
Waheguru Ji.

islt rof gurduAwrw swihb qy is`K sYNtr dy suMdrIkrn Aqy 
murMmq dw t`k lgwauNdy hoey- 8mwrc 2020 

8 mwrc 2020 nUM pMj ipAwirAW dI rwhnumweI hyT islt rof 
gurduAwrw swihb ivKy islt rof Aqy is`K sYNtr dI murMmq Aqy 
suMdrIkrn dw t`k lgwieAw igAw[ ies smwgm dI SurUAwq rwgI 
jQy duAwrw kIrqn auprMq, igAwnI jI duAwrw kQw smwgm rwhIN 
kIqI geI[ igAwnI jI duAwrw Ardws rwhIN gurU jI dI ikRpw nwl 
ies kwrj nUM AwrMB krn dI AwigAw mMgI geI[ 
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SIKH CENTRE
is~KI sYNtr

Sikhi Parchar Academy (SPA)

This SPA programme is aimed at emphasising the 
importance of getting connected with Waheguru 
(Lord) and expounding Sikh religious teachings 
which bind the Community together. It teaches us 
the purpose of human life and imparts the vast 
knowledge and teachings that the Gurus (teacher’s) 
have passed through generations about how to live a 
Sikhi - oriented life. Classes and events are conducted 
throughout the year. Different Banis are explained to 
the Sanggat (congregation) through regular classes.

Special events organised during the year were:

1. Sakhi of Vesakhi - Panel Discussion

SPA organised two programmes for the Sanggat on 
the eve of Vesakhi and Bandi Chor. In these panel 
discussions that were held at Central Sikh Temple in 
April 2019 and Sikh Centre in October 2019, Sanggat 
ably asked and discussed various questions on Sikh 
history, Gurbani and traditions.

2. Onset of Online Classes

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, online classes were 
organised to reach a larger portion of the Sanggat, 
which comprised members of various age groups and 
came from Singapore as well as different countries 
such as Australia, Germany, Malaysia and India.  

3. Kahoot Quiz

To engage the Sanggat meaningfully, a new virtual 
initiative was initiated by SPA in form of Kahoot 
Quiz Contest on the Sikh Gurus. Thus, the younger 
generation learnt about our Gurus’ lives in an 
interesting manner. Questions based on the Sikh 
Gurus were answered by members of the Sanggat 
and simultaneously explained by the facilitator during 
these sessions.

4. Snakes and Ladders

In June 2020, during the lockdown, the Sanggat 
was presented with a Gurbani-based activity entitled 
Snakes and Ladders.  In this activity, three groups: 
Sarbat da Bhala, Chardikala and Fateh explained 
different aspects of this game based on Gurbani 
perspectives. This activity was highly appreciated and 
enjoyed by the Sanggat.

5. In addition, two virtual dialogues and discussions 
were also arranged by SPA in June 2020.

is~KI pRcwr AkYfmI (AYs.pI.ey.)

is~KI pRcwr AkYfmI dy pRogrwmW dw muK audyS is`K Drm dIAW 
is`iKAwvW rwhIN sMgq nUM vwihgurU nwl joVxw Aqy AwpsI pRym 
Bwv vDwauxw hY[ AkYfmI dy pRogrwm swƒ mnu~KI jIvn dy audyS 
bwry jwxU krvwauNdy hn Aqy aus dYvI igAwn nwl joVdy hn jo 
is`KI jIvn jwc leI is`K gurU swihbwn ny mwnvqw dI JolI ivc 
pwieAw[is~KI pRcwr AkYfmI dIAW klwsW Aqy pRogrwm swl Br 
krvwey jWdy hn[ ijs ivc sMgq leI inXmq klwsW rwhIN v~K-
v~K bwxIAW aupr ivcwr Aqy ivAwiKAw kIqI jWdI hY[

swl dOrwn AwXoijq kIqy gey ivSyS pRogrwm:

1 vYswKI dI swKI: ivcwr-vtWdrw

is~KI pRcwr AkYfmI duAwrw ivswKI Aqy bMdI CoV idvs aupr 
sMgq leI do ivSys pRogrwm AwXoijq kIqy gey[v`fw gurduAwrw 
swihb ivKy ApRYl 2019 Aqy is~K sYNtr ivKy AkqUbr 2019 
nUM hoey pYnl ivcwr-vtWdry dOrwn sMgq ny is~K ieiqhws, 
gurbwxI Aqy prMprw bwry AnykW pRSn pu~Cy Aqy ivcwry[

2 AOnlweIn klwsW dI SurUAwq

koivf-19 mhWmwrI dy kwrn, sMgq q`k phuMcx leI AOnlweIn 
klwsW dw pRbMD kIqw igAw[ ijs iv~c dyS-ivdyS (AwstrylIAw, 
jrmnI, mlySIAw Aqy Bwrq) qoN v~K-v~K aumr dI sMgq ny bVI 
idlcspI nwl Bwg ilAw[

3 kwhUt kuiez

is~KI pRcwr AkYfmI duAwrw sMgq ƒ is`K ieiqhws nwl joVx 
leI is`K gurU swihbwn dy jIvn Aqy isiKAwvW nwl sMbMiDq 
ivSys AOnlweIn pRSnqorI mukwbly kwhUt kuiez vI krvwey 
gey[ ijs ivc nOjvwn pIVHI ny gurU swihbwn dy jIvn bwry bVy 
idlcsp FMg nwl is`iKAw leI[is~K gurU swihbwn ‘qy AwDwirq 
pRSnW dy au~qr sMgq duAwrw id~qy gey Aqy nwl hI pRogrwm 
dy sMcwlk duAwrw ienHW bwry sMgq nUM sMKyp rUp ivc jwxU vI 
krvwieAw igAw[

4 s~p Aqy pOVIAW (snyks AYNf lYfr)

jUn 2020 ivc, qwlwbMdI dOrwn sMgq duAwrw iek ivSys 
auprwlw kIqw igAw, ijs ivc aunHW Kyf s~pW Aqy pOVIAW dI 
gurbwxI ADwirq pySks kIqI[ies pySkwrI ivc, mYNbrW dy 
iqMn smUh sn: srb~q dw Blw, cVHdI klw Aqy Piqh ijnHW ny 
gurbwxI ADwirq v`K-v`K pirpyKW qoN ies Kyf dI ivAwiKAw 
kIqI[sMgq ny ies auprwly dI bhuq pRSMsw kIqI[

5 ies qoN ielwvw, jUn 2020 ivc is~KI pRcwr AkYfmI duAwrw 
ivcwr vtWdry leI do vrcuAl sMvwd vI krvwey gey [
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A brief talk on Kiv Sachiara Hoyie and Basics of Sikhi 
were followed by a Question & Answer session. 

6. Special Talk sessions were introduced every 
Friday and Sunday.

7.  Virtual Samvaad on Relevance of Gurbani and 
Sikhi Today was held on 22nd November 2020.  

Due to COVID-19 restrictions face to face classes 
were halted for some time. Instead, classes went 
online. The challenge was to bring the audience to 
accept this option and for the lecturers to become 
comfortable with this new technology.

With Waheguru’s blessings, the change proved to 
be fruitful with more members of the Sanggat joining 
in the lessons compared to the face-to-face ones. 
The Sanggat, in the comfort of their homes, started 
attending the programmes. Even Sanggat from 
various countries joined in and thus the new transition 
during the COVID-19 pandemic helped to achieve the 
untapped audience. 

Nearly 60 people attended each online class. Regular 
class attendance for 2019 was between 35 and 40 
people.

ikv sicAwrw hoeIAY Aqy is~KI dy muFly isDwqW bwry sMKyp 
ivcwr qoN bwAd pRSn Aqy au~qr sYSn vI krvwey gey[

6 hr Su~krvwr Aqy AYqvwr ƒ is`KI ADwirq ivSyS lYkcr dw 
pRbMD vI kIqw igAw.

7 vrqmwn smyN ivc gurbwxI Aqy is~KI dI swrQkqw vrcuAl 
sMvwd 22 nvMbr 2020 ƒ AwXoijq kIqw igAw

koivf -19 dy kwrn injI iekq`rqw vwlIAW klwsW kuJ smyN 
leI rokIAW geIAW sn[ ies dI QW AwnlweIn klwsW dw ivSys 
pRbMD kIqw igAw[sMgq nUM ienHW klwsW nwl joVxw Aqy ies nvIN 
qknIk qoN lYkcrr nUM jwxU krvwauxw iek cuxOqI BirAw kwrw 
sI[ 

vwihgurU jI dI bKiSS nwl, ieh apurwlw bhuq kwmXwb 
irhw[ies ivc Awm klwsW dI igxqI nwloN vDyry sMgq juVI[ 
sMgq ny Gr bYiTAW hI bVy Awrwm nwl ienHW pRogrwmW ivc 
iSrkq krnI SurU kr idqI[ ie~QoN qk ik v~K-v~K dySW qoN 
sMgq ny ienHW kwlWsW ivc Bwg lYxw SurU kr idqw ies qrHW 
koivf -19 mhWmwrI dy dOrwn vI vDyry sMgq dw juVxw gurU jI dI 
bhuq v`fI b^iss ho geI[ 

lgBg 60 sMgq mYNbr hryk AOnlweIn klws iv~c Swml hoey[ 
2019 dOrwn inXmq klws ivc hwzrI 35 Aqy 40 dy ivckwr 
sI [ 

Snakes and Ladders: A Presentation by Singapore Sanggat was facilitated by Apinder Singh 
(Testimonials & Feedback by Sanggat)

Thanks to all my wonderful 
team members for your valuable 
feedback and support to make 

our presentation clear and 
precise. Hope we will work 

together again as a team. Lots of 
love and hugs to all. God bless

Apinder Ji and Jaswinder 
Ji, WJKK, WJKF. A good 
and informative session. 

Humble inputs. 

Thank you so much Masterji for 
your continuous support and 
help throughout. Thanks for 

coming up with this wonderful 
activity. Really appreciate it By 

Bhenji Jasminder Kaur

Apinder Ji well done for 
coordinating and facilitation the 
session which was smooth and 

coordinated.

Jaswinder Ji well done for 
setting the session with 
a relevant background 

lecture.

Looking forward to the next 
panel discussion. 

By S. Surjit Singh Wasan
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Thank you ji really enjoyed the 
session thank you again for 
asking my questions Daswa 

Dawar.. i am very satisfied with 
the answer...

I love the Brahma Vishnu 
Shiva questions I love the 
mind and Atma too Thank 
you Ji By Param Bhenji

Apinder Ji, you managed and 
coordinated the QandA session 
very well and personally value 

added the answers provided by 
the 3 Deep Giani’s.

Jaswinder Ji, you presented 
a good introductory lecture to 
set the stage for the follow-on 

QandA session.
WJKK WJKF

Hi Veerji, Thank u very much 
for the session we just finished. 
It was an enriching experience 
for me and my many questions 

were answered. Thank u Ji.
By Bhenji Kirpal Kaur

Todays “Samvad” was very good 
indeed. Control n answers were 

excellent. Congratulations.
And if there is a recording 

please send me one.
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Sojhi

Sojhi, a programme initiated by the Sikh Centre which 
has been functioning for the the last nine years, has 
become an integral and important source of imbibing 
the values of Sikhi among the children. This programme 
emphasises the importance of religious values and 
the role of Community in shaping the future. The Sojhi 
programme is a holistic programme run throughout 
the year for children aged three to twelve years. They 
learn Sikh history, values and traditions. During the 
COVID-19 pandemic, Sikhi based videos and sakhis, 
with questions and assignments, were shared with 
Sojhi pupils through their parents’ WhatsApp chat 
groups. Regular classes impart the knowledge of Bani 
(religious scripture) through various ways for example 
PowerPoint slides, discussions, Sakhis, songs, art and 
craft, etc. Special events such as Sewa Day, Kirtan 
Diwan, Outing and Naat Kala are also held to inject 
more engaging and varied activities for the holistic 
development of the children. Eighty pupils enrolled for 
this programme. This was a step towards developing 
a new generation in building a more harmonious, kind, 
caring and generous Community. For the safety of our 
young participants, the programme for the year 2020 
was called off due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Instead 
of face-to-face lessons, videos of sakhis (stories) and 
other activities were shared with the children through 
their parents’ WhatsApp groups. 

soJI

is~K sYNtr v~loN SurU kIqw igAw pRogrwm soJI, ipCly nON swlW 
qoN cl irhw hY[ ieh pRogrwm b~icAW nUM is~KI kdrW kImqW 
nwl joVx leI mh~qvpUrn BUimkw inBw irhw hY[ieh pRogrwm 
Biv~K leI Dwrimk kdrW Aqy AwpsI BweIcwry dI loV aupr 
zor idMdw hY[ soJI pRogrwm iqMn qoN bwrW swl dy b~icAW leI pUrw 
swl clwieAw jwx vwlw ie~k ivSys pRogrwm hY[ijs ivc b`cy 
is~K ieiqhws, is`KI kdrW kImqW Aqy prMprwvW bwry jwxU huMdy 
hn[koivf -19 mhWmwrI dy dOrwn, is~KI vIfIE Aqy swKIAW 
dy rwhIN, soJI ividAwrQIAW dy mwipAW dy vtsAYp grupW ivc 
svwl Aqy AsweInmYNt sWJy kIqy gey[ies pRogrwm ivc v`K-v`K 
mwiDAm ijvyN pwvrpuAwieMt slweIfW, ivcwr vtWdry, swKIAW, 
kIrqn, klw Aqy iSlpkwrI, Awid Aqy rYgUlr klwsW dy rwhIN 
isiKAw idqI jWdI hY[b`icAW dy sMpUrn ivkws leI syvw idn, 
kIrqn dIvwn, AwauitMg Aqy nwt klw vrgy ivSyS smwgmW dw 
pRbMD vI kIqw jWdw hY. ies pRogrwm ivc 80 bcy dwiKl hoey[nvIN 
pIVHI dy ivkws leI aunHW ivc AwpsI sdBwvnw, idAw, ipAwr, 
sdgux Brn leI ieh iek v`fI pihl kdmI sI[ b`icAW dI 
sur~iKAw nUM iDAwn ivc rKidAW hoieAW swl 2020 dw pRogrwm 
koivf-19 mhWmwrI dy kwrn bMd kr idqw igAw sI[ijs leI 
injI klwsW dI QW AOnlweIn mwiDAm rwhIN b`icAW nUM is`KI nwl 
joVx dw auprwlw kIqw igAw[ 

Children performing various activities during Sojhi 

v`K-v`K gqIivDIAW krdy hoey b`cy
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Sojhi soJI 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Dialogue session in progress. Attentive audience during Vichar Gosthi 
ivcwr goStI ivc juVI sMgq 
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Pupils during Sojhi 

soJI b`cy 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
  

Sojhi for Parents   mwipAW leI soJI pRogrwm 
 

Sojhi for Parents   

Specially designed, Sojhi for parents’ programme, aims 
to educate parents on their responsibilities towards 
the religious raising of their children, twice monthly. 
In various enlightening sessions parents learn to live 
a Sikhi - oriented life. Furthermore, emphasis is laid 
on resolving today’s family issues through illustrations 
and references to our Gurus’ lives. 25 to 30 parents/
grandparents between the ages of 26 and 40 enrolled 
for this programme which emphasizes the importance 
of mindful parenting. However, during the COVID-19 
period, this programme was discontinued.

mwipAW leI soJI pRogrwm

is`KI pRcwr AkYfmI v`loN b`icAW nUM Dwrimk jIvn nwl joVx dy 
leI ivSyS qOr ‘qy mwipAW leI vI soJI pRogrwm iqAwr kIqw 
igAw hY[, ijs ivc aunHW nUM mhIny ivc do vwr ivSys sYSnW rwhIN 
b`icAW leI is`KI ADwirq jIvn jwc bwry jwgrUk krvwieAw 
jWdw hY[ies qoN ielwvw aunHW nUM Awpxy pirvwrk msilAW ƒ 
h`l krn Aqy ipAwr BirAw jIvn bqIq krn leI is`K gurU 
swihbwn dy pirvwirk jIvn ivcoN audwhrxW dy ky smJwieAw 
jWdw hY[26 qoN 40 swl dI aumr dy 25 qoN 40 mwpy/ dwdw-dwdI/
nwnI-nwnw ies pRogrwm rwhIN swfy nwl juVy ijnHW nUM suc`jy FMg 
nwl b`icAW dI pirvrSI krn bwry qwkId kIqI geI[hwlWik, 
koivf -19 dOrwn, ieh pRogrwm bMd kr id~qw igAw sI]
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Specially designed, Sojhi for parents’ programme, aims to educate parents on their responsibilities towards the religious raising of their children, twice monthly. In various 
enlightening sessions parents learn to live a Sikhi - oriented life. Furthermore, emphasis is laid on resolving today’s family issues through illustrations and references to our 
Gurus’ lives. 25 to 30 parents/grandparents between the ages of 26 and 40 enrolled for this programme which emphasizes the importance of mindful parenting. However, 
during the COVID-19 period, this programme was discontinued. 

is`KI pRcwr AkYfmI v`loN b`icAW nUM Dwrimk jIvn nwl joVx dy leI ivSyS qOr 'qy mwipAW leI vI sojI pRogrwm iqAwr kIqw igAw hY[, ijs ivc aunHW nUM mhIny 
ivc do vwr ivSys sYSnW rwhIN b`icAW leI is`KI ADwirq jIvn jwc bwry jwgrUk krvwieAw jWdw hY[ies qoN ielwvw aunHW nUM Awpxy pirvwrk msilAW ƒ h`l 
krn Aqy ipAwr BirAw jIvn bqIq kn leI is`K gurU swihbwn dy pirvwirk jIvn ivcoN audwhrxW dy ky smJwieAw jWdw hY[26 qoN 40 swl dI aumr dy 25 qoN 
40 mwpy/ dwdw-dwdI/nwnI-nwnw ies pRogrwm rwhIN swfy nwl juVy ijnHW nUM suc`jy FMg nwl b`icAW dI pirvrSI krnw bwry qwkId kIqI geI[hwlWik, koivf -19 
dOrwn, ieh pRogrwm bMd kr id~qw igAw sI] 

 
 
 
 

Sojhi for parents and grandparents

mwpy, dwdw-dwdI, nwnw-nwnI soJI pRogrwm ivc ihsw lYNdy hoey[  

Nikke Sikh  

Nikke Sikh programme aims at imparting Sikhi 
knowledge to young children through various 
activities such as arts and craft, stories, songs and 
visuals. It is a co-ordinated effort by the teacher 
volunteers and parents to nurture young minds with 
various hands-on activities, twice monthly. Visualising 
the identity of being a Sikh and the signs and symbols 
which represent the identity of being a Khalsa are 
introduced to young budding minds through various 
interactive activities and play for toddlers of 1 to 
3 years. It is an introduction for toddlers to a new 
environment. The programme was discontinued to 
minimise the exposure of young children through 
intermingling.

in~ky is~K

in~ky is~K pRogrwm dw audyS Coty b~icAW ƒ v~K-v~K gqIivDIAW 
ijvyN ik Awrts, iSlpkwrI, khwxIAW, Aqy bwl-kivqw rwhIN 
aunHW dy mn ivc is`KI dw bIz bIjxw hY[ieh pRogrwm mhIny ivc 
do vwr is`KI AiDAwpk, vwlMtIArs Aqy mwipAW dy sihXog nwl 
clwieAw jWdw hY[ ies pRogrwm ivc 1 qoN 3 swl dy b`icAW leI 
v~K v~K qrRW dy is`KI icMnHW rwhIN aunHW nUM aunHW dI Kwlsw pihcwx 
bwry disAw jWdw hY[ieh poRgrwm b~icAW nUM iek nvyN qrIky nwl 
Awpxy Drm nwl juVx leI jwxU krvwauNdw hY[ Coty b~icAW dI 
iekqrqw nUM rokx leI ieh pRogrwm bMd kr idqw igAw[ 

Nikke Sikh participating in various hands-on activities  

inky is`K v`K-v`K gqIivDIAW ivc Bwg lYNdy hoey[
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Gurmukhi for Children    
Gurmukhi for children is an initiative to teach pupils aged  seven years and above the Gurmukhi Language so that the children can read Bani (Sikh Scripture). Volunteers teach 
the children to read, write and speak the Gurmukhi script. It prepares the new generation to learn the scripture and keep alive the age-old language. 

b~icAW leI gurmuKI 

ies pihlkdmI dy rwhIN 7 swl qoN vDyrI aumr dy b~icAW nUM gurmuKI isKwaux dw auprwlw kIqw igAw qW jo auh gurbwxI pVHxw is`K skx [vwlMtIAr b~icAW ƒ 
gurmuKI ilpI pVHx, ilKx Aqy bolx dI isiKAw idMdy hn[ieh klwsW nvIN pIVHI ƒ aunHW dy puriKAW dI mW bolI Aqy Drm-gRMQ nUM pVHxw is~Kx leI iqAwr krdIAW 
hn[  

 

 

  

Nikke Sikh participating in various hands-on activities  inky is`K v`K-v`K gqIivDIAW ivc Bwg lYNdy hoey[ 
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Nikke Sikh participating in various hands-on activities  inky is`K v`K-v`K gqIivDIAW ivc Bwg lYNdy hoey[ 
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Sojhi for parents and grandparents

mwpy, dwdw-dwdI, nwnw-nwnI soJI pRogrwm ivc ihsw lYNdy hoey[  

Gurmukhi for Children   

Gurmukhi for children is an initiative to teach pupils 
aged seven years and above the Gurmukhi Language 
so that the children can read Bani (Sikh Scripture). 
Volunteers teach the children to read, write and speak 
the Gurmukhi script. It prepares the new generation 
to learn the scripture and keep alive the age-old 
language.

Taekwondo Classes

b~icAW leI gurmuKI

ies pihlkdmI dy rwhIN 7 swl qoN vDyrI aumr dy b~icAW nUM 
gurmuKI isKwaux dw auprwlw kIqw igAw qW jo auh gurbwxI pVHxw 
is`K skx [ vwlMtIAr b~icAW ƒ gurmuKI ilpI pVHx, ilKx 
Aqy bolx dI isiKAw idMdy hn[ieh klwsW nvIN pIVHI ƒ aunHW dy 
puriKAW dI mW bolI Aqy Drm-gRMQ nUM pVHxw is~Kx leI iqAwr 
krdIAW hn[ 

tuykvMfo klws

109 
 

Taekwondo Classes tuykvMfo klws 

 
         

 
 

 

Elder - Care (Sunheray Pal)   
Caring for the ageing section of society, this programme aims to cater to the needs of the elderly. Various activities such as health talks, outings, religious lectures, and gatherings 
are organised to engage the elderly. An online talk programme about exercise for various old - age problems, health benefits of different foods and Sikhi related topics were 
conducted. Providing happy opportunities for interaction and active living and making the ageing journey a positive and a happy one, is the aim of this programme. The 
programme was discontinued to minimise the exposure of the elderly to crowded areas and to avoid intermingling 

bzurgW dI dyKBwl (sunihry pl) 

ies pRogrwm dw audyS bzurgW dI dyKBwl Aqy zrUrqW ƒ pUrw krnw hY[ bzurgW dy leI bhuq swrIAW gqIivDIAW ijvyN qMdrusq rihx leI lYkcr, Dwrimk ivcwrW, 
iekqrwqwvW Awid dw pRbMD kIqw jWdw hY[ AOnlweIn lYkcrs dy rwhIN bzurgW nwl sMbMiDq v`K-v`K simsAwvW, ksrqW, v`K-v`K qrHW dy Bojn, KwixAW Awid bwry 
g`lbwq kIqI geI[ies pRogrwm dw audyS vDdI aumr dy nwl Awpxy Awp nUM ^uS Aqy cVHdI klw ivc r`Kxw hY[bjurgW nUM suirKAq Aqy BIV qoN dUr r`Kx leI ieh 
pRogrwm bMd kr idqw igAw[ 

Classes in session  b`cy AiBAws krdy hoey  
Classes in session    b`cy AiBAws krdy hoey
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Elder - Care (Sunheray Pal)  

Caring for the ageing section of society, this 
programme aims to cater to the needs of the elderly. 
Various activities such as health talks, outings, 
religious lectures, and gatherings are organised 
to engage the elderly. An online talk programme 
about exercise for various old - age problems, health 
benefits of different foods and Sikhi related topics 
were conducted. Providing happy opportunities for 
interaction and active living and making the ageing 
journey a positive and a happy one, is the aim of 
this programme. The programme was discontinued 
to minimise the exposure of the elderly to crowded 
areas and to avoid intermingling.

bzurgW dI dyKBwl (sunihry pl)

ies pRogrwm dw audyS bzurgW dI dyKBwl Aqy zrUrqW ƒ pUrw 
krnw hY[ bzurgW dy leI bhuq swrIAW gqIivDIAW ijvyN qMdrusq 
rihx leI lYkcr, Dwrimk ivcwrW, iekqrwqwvW Awid dw pRbMD 
kIqw jWdw hY[ AOnlweIn lYkcrs dy rwhIN bzurgW nwl sMbMiDq 
v`K-v`K simsAwvW, ksrqW, v`K-v`K qrHW dy Bojn, KwixAW 
Awid bwry g`lbwq kIqI geI[ies pRogrwm dw audyS vDdI aumr 
dy nwl Awpxy Awp nUM ^uS Aqy cVHdI klw ivc r`Kxw hY[bjurgW 
nUM suirKAq Aqy BIV qoN dUr r`Kx leI ieh pRogrwm bMd kr 
idqw igAw[

Elderly assembling before an outing. Elderly queuing during meals. 

bzurgW AwauitMg qy jwx qoN pihlW Aqy kqwrW ivc pRSwdw Ckx leI
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Elderly assembling before an outing. Elderly queuing during meals. bzurgW AwauitMg qy jwx qoN pihlW Aqy kqwrW ivc pRSwdw Ckx leI 
 
 
 
 
Outreach visits for 2019 and 2020 

Year  
swl 

No. of Visits  
ivzts dI igxqI 

No of Visitors  
ivztr dI igxqI  

2019 74 2592 
2020 12 769 

Outreach visits were suspended in 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

Outreach visits for 2019 and 2020

This programme appreciates the inclusiveness of 
the Singapore Community. It gives an opportunity to 
understand the Sikh faith and the people practising 
it. Students from school, colleges and universities, 
tourists, and Community Organisations visit the 
temple on specified dates and the volunteer from the 
temple explains the Sikh way of life. The programme 
was discontinued in compliance with the restrictions 
of COVID-19.

koivf-19 mhWmwrI dy kwrn 2020 iv~c AwautrIc pRogrwm 
muA~ql kr id~qw igAw sI[

ieh pRogrwm isMgwpur dI sdBwvnw vwly BweIcwry dI SlwGw 
krdw hY [ ieh pRogrwm is~K Drm Aqy kOm bwry dUsirAW nUM jwxU 
krvwaux dw iek cMgw auprwlw hY [ ies ivc skUl, kwljW, 
XUnIvristIAW dy ividAwrQI, Aqy sYlwnI inrDwirq kIqIAW 
qwrIKW nUM gurduAwrw swihb AwauNdy hn[ ijs ivc aunHW nUM is`KI 
dy muFly AsUlW rwhIN jwxU krvwaux leI vlMtIAr duAwrw 
prYzntySn vI idqI jWdI hY[ koivf -19 dIAW pwbMdIAW dI 
pwlxw kridAW ies pRogrwm nUM bMd kr id~qw igAw[

Outreach visits conducted by our Docents for various organisations.  

v`K-v`K sMsQwvW dy leI vlMtIArs duAwrw AwXoijq kIqy AwautrIc pRogrwm 

Gurmat Sangeet Academy (GSA)

Sharing the importance of Gurmat Sangeet and 
kirtan as well as creating awareness of the traditional 
instruments are the major objectives. Classes are 
held throughout the year and special programmes are 
scheduled on different dates.

Basant Raag Darbaar was shared. Shabads in Raag 
Basant were sung. Vesakhi shabads relating to 
Vesakhi were sung.

During participation in Tapestry of Sacred Music and 
workshop, 3 different shabads were sung on the three 
days depicting various values of life. Workshop was 
conducted on playing traditional instruments.

gurmiq sMgIq AkYfmI (jI.AYs.ey) 

gurmiq sMgIq AkYfmI dw muK audyS gurmiq sMgIq, kIrqn Aqy 
rvwieqI swjW dI mh~qqw pRqI jwgrUkqw pYdw krnI hY[ies 
kwrj leI swrw swl klwsW cldIAW hn Aqy inrDwirq kIqIAW 
qwrIKW aupr ivSyS pRogrwm qih kIqy jWdy hn[ 

bsMq rwg drbwr dOrwn rwg bsMq ivc Sbd gwien kIqy gey[
ivswKI smyN vYswKI nwl sbMDq Sbd gwien kIqy gey [ 

typYstrI Aw& sYkrf imaUzk Aqy vrkSwp ivc, jIvn dIAW 
kdrW kImqW nwl sMbMiDq iqMn idnW ivc iqMn v~K-v~K Sbd 
gwien kIqy gey[rvwieqI swz vjwaux leI vrkSwp vI lgweI 
geI[
 

Thank you as always for your hospitality 
and clear explanations of the Sikh Religion. 
Now it’s restricted access but when prayer 
hall and food hall is accessible, it would be 

ideal for participants to ask questions. 
~My Community, Telok Belangah Walk.~

 I found this very enlightenin, and Mdm 
Hardip Kaur and Dr Jaswinder Singh 

were very friendly and helpful. They are 
very knowleagable and answered all 

my questions. ~ NUS Arvinsham~ 
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Participation in Sikh Heritage Day comprised Shabads 
sung with traditional Sikh musical instruments.

Participation in Guru Nanak Dev Ji’s Udasis through 
Shabads sung on rabab, which was used during Guru 
Nanak’s times. During Guru Nanak Dev Gurpurab, 
Shabads written by Guru Nanak dev were sung with 
traditional Sikh Instruments.

SANJH Online Interviews were organised to 
enlighten the Sikh Sanggat regarding traditional Sikh 
Instruments.

Online Shabad for children were held.

For the National Day Special, Online classes – two 
complete shabads were taught over the 4 weekends 
of August 2020.

Bhalo Bhalo Re kirtaneeya were small groups 
recording of shabads.

Saaj and Nikkian Jindan Vadde Saake was introduced 
during December Holiday Special classes.

Kirtan Diwan performance was held on Bandi Chhor 
Divas.

Guru Granth Sahib Ji Gurgaddi Diwas, Guru Tegh 
Bahadur ji Shaheedi Gurpurab performance and 
Sahibzade shaheedi Diwas performance were held. 
Sikh Congregation, Members of IRO, Kids and GSA 
Students rendered Shabads.

Testimonial by Gurmit Singh: I want to say that I have 
fallen in love with the sound of string instruments. I 
enjoyed learning although I will need more practice. 
I understand that this is a free class so the attention 
spent on one person will be divided. For me, of 
course I think a more one-on-one class works. 5 days 
is good enough to learn basics and 1 shabad. Enough 
for someone to want to continue signing up with GSA. 
I am thinking about it but because I am starting with 
school next year. Maybe I want to get settled with my 
schedule first. But I think for every class we should be 
given an extra 1/2 hr to practice with ourselves and 
get comfortable with the instrument. Maybe in future 
I want to get a dilruba of my own and I can play it 
anytime I want. In general, I loved it and we should 
have more of such event :)

is~K ivrwsq idvs dOrwn rvwieqI is~K swzW nwl Sbd gwien 
kIqy jWdy hn[ 

gurU nwnk dyv jI dIAW audwsIAW dI l`gI pRdrSnI dOrwn ‘rbwb’ 
nwl Sbd gwien kIqy gey auh swj jo gurU jI ny audwsIAW dOrwn 
vriqAw sI[gurU nwnk dyv jI dy gurpurb smyN, gurU nwnk jI 
bwxI dw rvwieqI swjW nwl gwien kIqw igAw[

is~K sMgq leI rvwieqI is~K swjW bwry cwnxw pwaux leI sWJ 
AOnlweIn pRogrwm AwXoijq kIqw igAw[ 

b~icAW leI AOnlweIn Sbd gwien vI AwXoijq kIqy gey[ ivSys 
nYSnl fyA AOn-lweIn klws dOrwn do Sbd Agsq 2020 dy 4 
hPiqAW dy AMqly idnW iv~c isKwey gey[ 

Blo Blo ry kIrqnIey ivc SbdW dI irkwrifMg kIqI geI[

swj Aqy in~kIAW ijMdW v~fy swky pRoogrwm ƒ dsMbr dI Cu~tIAW 
dIAW ivSyS klwsW dOrwn pyS kIqw igAw[

bMdI CoV idvs ‘qy kIrqn dIvwn dw pRbMD kIqw igAw[

gurU gRMQ swihb jI dy gurg~dI idvs, gurU qyg bhwdr jI dy 
ShIdI purb, Aqy swihbzwidAW dy ShIdI idhwVy nUM smripq 
ivSys dIvwn sjwey gey[is~K sMgq, AweI.Awr.E. dy mYNbrW nUM, 
b`icAW Aqy jI.AYs.ey. dy ividAwrQIAW ny kIrqn nwl inhwl 
kIqw[

gurmIq isMG duAwrw pRsMsw p~qr: mYN ieh kihxw cwhuMdw hW ik 
mYƒ qMqI swjW dI Awvwz nwl ipAwr ho igAw hY[ mYƒ is~Kx dw 
AnMd AwieAw hwlWik mYƒ vDyry AiBAws dI zrUrq hovygI[ mYN 
smJdw hW ik ieh klws muPq hox kwrx iek ivAqkI aupr 
pUrw iDAwn nhIN id`qw jw skdw ijs leI in`jI klwsW rwhIN 
is`Kxw vyDyry lwhyvMd hY[muFlI is`iKAw Aqy iek Sbd is`Kx 
leI 5 idn bhuq hn[gurmiq sMgIq is`Kx leI jI. AYs. ey. 
nwl juVxw zrUrI hY[mYN ies bwry soc irhw hW pr ikauNik mYN 
Agly swl skUl SurU kr irhw hW[ies leI mYN pihlW AwpxI 
smW swrxI inrDwirq krWgw[pr mYN socdw hW ik hr klws dw 
AiBAws Aqy swj dw irAwz krn leI vwDU A`Dw GMtw id~qw 
jwxw cwhIdw hY[ ho skdw hY ik Biv~K iv~c mYN idlrubw KrIdxI 
cwhW qW jo mYN ies dw AiBAws iksI smyN vI kr skW[Awm 
qOr ‘qy, mYNnUM ieh ipAwrw l`gw Aqy swfy leI ies qrHW dy vDyry 
pRogrwm hoxy cwhIdy hn[:)
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Children performing Shabads at CST. Sikh Heritage Day.  is`K ivrwsq idvs dOrwn b`cy v`fw gurduAwrw swihb kIrqn krdy hoey[  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tapestry of Sacred Music at the Esplanade  AYsplwnyf ivKy typYstrI Aw& sYkrf imaUzk 
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Children performing Shabads at CST. Sikh Heritage Day.

is`K ivrwsq idvs dOrwn b`cy v`fw gurduAwrw swihb kIrqn krdy hoey[ 

Tapestry of Sacred Music at the Esplanade

AYsplwnyf ivKy typYstrI Aw& sYkrf imaUzk
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Sikhi Parchar Academy Lecturer & 
Researcher - Apinder Singh 
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SPA Weekly Special Talks on Zoom- 2020 Attendance  
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Sikhi Parchar Academy Lecturer 
Dr. Jaswinder Singh 
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Fun Holiday Camp - June 2019 

A three - day Camp was organised to engage children 
during the holidays in a meaningful manner and to 
impart the religious values of Vandh Chakhna, Naam 
Japna and Kirat Karni in a practical sense for them to 
follow during this programme and beyond. It included 
Kirtan, Simran, Harminder Sahib Craft activity, Turban 
Tying, Gardening Book Art Treasure Hunt, Get 
Hukamnama, Cup Cake making Gatka, Historical 
Defence and making Kara Prashad 

During the Camp, Family Fun Time achieved 
meaningful engagement for children during the 
holidays through involvement in physical, mental and 
spiritual activities.

mnorMjn hOlIfy kYNp-jUn 2019 

Cu~tIAW dOrwn b~icAW ƒ is`KI jIvn jwc nwl joVx, ikrq 
krnw, nwm jpxw Aqy vMf Ckx dw isDWq isKwaux leI iqMn 
idnW dw iek ivSys kYNp vI lgwieAw igAw[ies iv~c kIrqn, 
ismrn, hrimMdr swihb krwPt gqIivDI, dsqwr sjwauxI, 
bwgbwnI, bu~k Awrt Kzwny dI Bwl, hukmnwmw lYxw, k~p kyk 
bxwauxw, g~qkw, Aqy kVwh pRSwd bxwaux bwry isKwieAw igAw[ 
 
kYNp dOrwn, pirvwr ny vI b~icAW dI srIrk, mwnisk Aqy 
AiDAwqmk ivkws leI isiKAw gRihx kIqI Aqy swriQk qrIky 
rwhIN smyN dI vrqoN kIqI[ 

Japji Sahib 

This programme was organised to unite the young 
minds with Gur Shabads. Children were taught how 
to read the Bani with correct pronunciation. The 
programme was planned for a year. Understanding 
the importance of Bani and being connected with 
Waheguru from a young age helps to develop a 
mindful Community.

jpujI swihb

nOjvwn pIVI nUM gurSbd nwl joVx leI ieh pRogrwm SurU kIqw 
igAw[ ies pRogrwm rwhIN b~icAW ƒ bwxI dw shI aucwrn 
isKwieAw igAw[pRogrwm iek swl leI ivauNiqAw igAw sI[ 
CotI aumr qoN hI bwxI dI soJI vwihgurU nwl juVn Aqy ie~k cyqMn 
BweIcwry dy ivkws iv~c shwieqw krdI hY[

Pupils, parents and volunteers having fun during the Camp.

b`cy Aqy mwpy Aqy vlMtIAr kYNp ivc msqI krdy hoey[ 

Children reciting Bani   b`cy bwxI aucwrdy hoey
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THE YEAR AHEAD

CSGB AND SIKH MISSIONARY SOCIETY COLLABORATION

Both CSGB and SMS are in the final stages of signing two collaborative MOUs. The first MOU will cover collaboration 
on the CSGB Visiting Professorship at NUS, details of which have been covered under a separate article herewith. 
The second MOU will cover collaboration on the Sant Sohan Singh Memorial Library and a new Sikhi Parchar 
program.

SMS will take over the current Library at Sikh Centre and relaunch it as the Sant Sohan Singh Memorial Library. In 
addition to adding on more books and refurbishing the premises, there are also plans to digitise the books and 
conduct Library related programs. The Sant Sohan Singh Memorial Library will be launched by the first quarter of 
2021.

The Sikhi Parchar program will be a joint initiative of both CSGB and SMS to bring Parchar programs not only to 
other Sikh institutions but also to the community members where they reside. This program will be launched in the 
second quarter of 2021.

SRST Additions and Alterations Project 

CSGB continues to review and plan ahead to serve the Sikh Community and all Communities in the spirit of Sarbat 
Tha Bhalla and in line with the vision and mission statement of the Board. 

The Silat Road Sikh Temple was last renovated in the late 1990’s. The complex in its facilities were getting outdated 
and were not able to serve the current and future needs of the Sanggat. In consultation with the Sanggat, the 
Council prioritised the Silat Road Sikh Temple Additions and Alterations (SRST A&A) project as a key initiative for 
the year ahead.  A $2.5m budget, built up with the help of professional consultants, was approved by the Council.

A rigorous tender process will be adopted to select an appropriate contractor to carry out the works. Along with 
the SRST works, the replacement of the ageing lift, painting and replacement of old air-conditioners, WIFI system 
was also included in the works. The initial schedule was to complete the works in February 2021. Due to COVID-19 
circuit breaker and construction industry shutting down for approximately four and a half months, the works are 
now targeted to be completed and SRST fully operational in July 2021. The Certificate of Statutory Completion is 
targeted to be obtained in approximately three months from completion.

With Waheguru Ji’s Grace, Rehmat and Sadhka, the following are significant areas of improvement and updating of 
SRST facilities that are planned to be performed as part of the SRST AA project.  

a. 	 Extending the Darbar Sahib 2nd floor and refurbishment.
	 The Darbar Sahib on the 2nd floor will be extended behind the Guruji’s Palki area by subsuming the existing 

small external balcony area into the Darbar Sahib. The aim was to provide additional seating capacity but also 
enable better place behind the Guruji’s Palki area to enable Anand Karaj to be performed comfortably. Along 
with the extension, enhancement of the lighting in the Darbar Sahib, a new carpet and general refurbishment 
was planned for as well. In accordance with Singapore’s current regulations, 2 Fire escape staircases need to 
be mandatorily added to the rear of the Darbar Sahib  and this is a significant part of the SRST AA project.

b.	 Extended SRST Langgar Hall, extended Kitchen, Preparation and Washing areas.
	 The extension of the langgar hall is the most significant part of the structural capacity enhancement of the SRST 

langar hall. The extension is planned to the maximum possible within the limits of building regulations of BCA 
and URA regulations.

	 Based on Sanggat’s feedback, 2 queue langgar serving system with the necessary 2 queue counter, 2 water 
and tea points and 2 queue tray collection system are planned to overcome the congestion and long single 
queue in langgar hall. The entrance and lobby area will be re-configured to enable better Sanggat access, better 
ventilation while maintaining a dedicated lobby area for standee banners and Anang Karaj Milni purposes. 

	 Based on Sanggat’s feedback, the kitchen will be extended with a larger loh and new kitchen exhaust system. 
The tray return, washing hands, washing trays areas will be re-located to ease congestion faced earlier and 
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enable a more comfortable place for Sewa in the new langgar Preparation and Washing area. The new washing 
and preparation area will be based on the open low wall concept with more space, better ventilation, better 
lighting including skylights and high-volume low speed (HVLS) fans.

	 A stainless steel lined big pots washing area will be built near the kitchen. A cold room is planned for easy 
storage of preparations and perishable rations as deemed by the temple langgri.

c.	 Replacement of Gurdwara Frontage canopy with a new Glass canopy to meet current BCA and URA 
requirements.

d.	 New Wheelchair access Ramp near Memorial Hall to enable wheelchair access in addition to the current carpark 
area wheelchair access.

	 A new entrance from the path outside the Memorial Hall will be constructed for wheelchair access, making it 
the 4th entrance to the SRST complex.

e.	 The heavily used 1st storey toilets required major renovation and updating.
	 All the 1st storey toilets will be totally renovated for better ventilation, lighting, capacity where possible and 

generally updated to be current with the toilets that Singaporeans have come to accept as a norm. In addition, a 
Nappy room will be added on the 1st storey for care of infants and mums wanting to feed their infants in a private 
area. The male toilet is planned to adopt an open concept surrounded by greenery that already exists.

f.	 Restoration of the 3 mosaic covered Domes in the SRST complex. 
	 With Waheguru Ji’s grace and guidance , the complex task of restoring the 20yrs old plus mosaic covered 

Domes structure with its crack lines and which have become stained beyond possible stain removal will also 
be explored and attempted using industry standard building restoration methods.

g.	 External and internal painting of the SRST and Sikh Centre complex will be carried out as part of the project 
along with waterproofing of the Sikh Centre and SRST.

h.	 Landscaping: Some amount of landscaping is planned near the Memorial Hall due to the construction of 
the wheelchair RAMP and general greens space replacement of the area taken up by the RAMP will require 
additional landscaping works in other parts of the SRST complex.

i.	 Air conditioners that are older than 10 years will be replaced both in the Sikh Centre and SRST.

j.	 A new contiguous WIFI system will be put in place for both the Sikh Centre and SRST complex to enable live 
streaming, remote parchar and other such activities in a better manner than previously available. The SRST 
complex will be refitted with a new CCTV system to cater for the extensions and re-configurations of the 
langgar hall, preparation and washing areas.

k.	 Sikh Centre Lift: The age-ing Sikh Centre lift will be replaced within the same lift shaft with a high capacity, 
modern lift to provide more comfortable passenger experience. The new lift will have to comply with the latest 
BCS requirements for safety.

Finally to re-cap, the main thrust of the SRST A&A project is the Silat Road Sikh Temple with heavy focus on 
extension of the Langgar Hall, Preparation,  Washing area , 1st Storey Toilets and the Sikh Centre Lift replacement. 
Along with the foregoing is the extension of Darbar Sahib and additional wheelchair RAMP access to the SRST 
complex.

We pray that with Waheguru Ji’s Rehmat and Sadhka, the SRST A&A project will be completed safely, on time 
and within the allocated budget. We pray, as with the shabad sung at the ground breaking “ Santa Ke Kaaraj Aap 
Khaloya Har Kanm Karavan Aia Ram that Waheguru Ji guides all of us to complete His tasks for His Saints and His 
Glory.
 
CSGB VISITING PROFESSORSHIP IN SIKH STUDIES AT NUS

The Visiting Professorship in Sikh Studies is an endowment based project to be run by the Faculty of Arts and 
Social Sciences at the National University of Singapore. Since its soft launch in September 2019, a total of $160,000 
have been raised from donors.
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Sikh Missionary Society of Singapore has agreed to collaborate with The Central Sikh Gurdwara Board to help 
raise the initial endowment fund of $1.2 million to kickstart the programme. The Government will match dollar 
for dollar and donors will be afforded an income tax break of 2.5 times the amount donated. CSGB and SMS are 
working towards completing the fund raising of $1.2 million by the second quarter of 2021. That will effectively 
mean the Visiting Professorship will be launched by late 2021.

In addition to providing students to do a gradeable elective on the Sikh Way of Life and majors, there will also be 
two public seminars that the Visiting Professor will make to the Sikh Sanggat annually. This programme will be 
owned and run by the National University of Singapore and the plan is to eventually upgrade to full Chair on Sikh 
Studies, there will be a need to raise another $1.2 million to have a cumulative endowment fund of $2.4 million. 
CSGB is hopeful that with the blessings of Waheguru Ji and the support of Sanggat we can get there soon.



CSGB ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 67

Aglw swl

sI.AY~s.jI.bI Aqy is~K imSnrI smwijk sMgRih

dovyN sIAYsjIbI Aqy AYsAYmAYs do sihXogI smJOqy 'qy dsqKq krn dy AwKrI pVwA' qy hn[ pihlw AYm.XU.XU. AYn.XU.AY~s. ivKy sI.AY~s.
jI.bI ivizitMg pRoPYsriSp 'qy sihXog ƒ kvr krygw, ijs dy vyrvy iesdy nwl iek v~Kry lyK dy ADIn id~qy gey hn[ dUjw smJOqw sMq 
sohn isMG XwdgwrI lwiebRyrI Aqy ie~k nvW is~KI prcwr pRogrwm dy sihXog ƒ Swml krygw[

AYsAYmAYs is~K sYNtr ivKy mOjUdw lwiebRyrI ƒ sMBwl lvygI Aqy iesƒ sMq sohx isMG XwdgwrI lwiebRyrI dy qOr qy dubwrw lWc krygI[ 
vDyry pusqkW joVn Aqy murMmq krn qoN ielwvw, ikqwbW ƒ ifjItlweIj krn Aqy lwiebRyrI nwl sbMDq pRogrwm krvwaux dI vI Xojnw 
hY[ sMq sohx isMG XwdgwrI lwiebRyrI 2021 dI pihlI iqmwhI duAwrw ArMB kIqI jweygI[

is~KI prcwr pRogrwm sI.AY~s.jI.bI Aqy AYs.AYm.AY~s dovW dI sWJI pihl hovygI, prcwr pRogrwm ƒ nw isrP hor is~K sMsQwvW, blik 
kimaUtintI mYNbrW leI vI ilAwauxw hY ,ijQy auh rihMdy hn[ ieh pRogrwm 2021 dI dUjI iqmwhI iv~c SurU kIqw jwvygw[

AYsAwrAYstI murMmq Aqy nvInIkrn pRojYkt

sIAYsjIbI ny srb~q dy Bly dI Bwvnw nwl Aqy borf dy idRStI Aqy imSn dy ibAwn dy Anuswr is~K BweIcwry Aqy smUh BweIcwirAW dI 
syvw krn dI smIiKAw Aqy Xojnw jwrI r~KI hY[

islt rof is~K tYNpl dw AwKrI qOr 'qy 1990 dy AMq iv~c nvInIkrx kIqw igAw sI[ ies dIAW shUlqW dI vrqoN purwxI huMdI jw rhI 
sI Aqy sMgq dIAW mOjUdw Aqy Biv~K dIAW zrUrqW dI pUrqI dy Xog nhIN sI[ sMgq nwl slwh mSvrw kridAW, kONsl ny islwt rof 
is~K tYNpl AYfISnz AYNf AYlrtySnz (AYsAwrAYstI ey AYNf ey) pRojYkt ƒ Agly swl leI ie~k pRmu~K pihlkdmI vjoN qrjIh id~qI[ 
pySyvr slwhkwrW dI shwieqw nwl bxwieAw igAw  2.5 imlIAn dw bjt kONsl duAwrw mnzUr kIqw igAw sI[

kwrjW ƒ pUrw krn leI vweI PweI ie~k Tykydwr dI cox krn leI ie~k sKq tYNfr pRikirAw ApxweI jweygI[ AYsAwrAYstI kMmW dy 
nwl, ilPt, pyNitMg Aqy purwxy eyArkMfISnrW dI QW, fblXUAYPAweI isstm ƒ vI kwrjW iv~c Swml kIqw igAw sI[ SurUAwqI kwrjkwl 
PrvrI 2021 ivc kMm ƒ pUrw krnw sI. koivf-19 srkt brykr Aqy auswrI audXog lgBg cwr mhIinAW qoN bMd hox kwrn, hux kMm 
mukMml hox dw tIcw hY Aqy julweI 2021 ivc AYsAwrAYstI pUrI qrHW kwrjSIl ho jwvygw[ sMivDwink sMpUrnqw ƒ pUrw hox qoN lgBg 
iqMn mhIinAW iv~c pRwpq krn dw tIcw hY[

vwihgurU jI dI ikrpw, rihmq dy nwl, hyTW AYsAwrAYstI shUlqW dy suDwr Aqy Apfyt krn dy mh~qvpUrx Kyqr hn jo AYsAwrAYstI 
eyey pRojYkt dy ih~sy vjoN krn dI Xojnw bxweI geI hY[

ey.	 drbwr swihb dI dUjI mMizl Aqy nvInIkrn dw ivsQwr.
	 dUjI mMzl 'qy drbwr swihb gurU jI dy pwlkI Kyqr dy ip~Cy mOjUdw Coty Coty bwhrI bwlknI Kyqr ƒ drbwr swihb ivc joV ky PYlwieAw 

jwvygw[ iesdw audyS sItW dI vwDU smr~Qw pRdwn krnw sI prMqU gurU jI dI pwlkI Kyqr dy ip~Cy AnMd kwrj dy Xog bxwauxw sI qW 
ik AnMd kwrj ƒ Awrwm nwl kIqw jw sky[ ies dy nwl hI drbwr swihb ivc roSnI ƒ vDwaux dy nwl-nwl iek nvW glIcw Aqy 
Awm nvInIkrn dI vI Xojnw bxweI geI[ isMgwpur dy mOjUdw inXmW dy Anuswr,  A~g qoN bcx vwlIAW pOVIAW ƒ drbwr swihb dy 
ipCly ih~sy ivc lwzmI qOr 'qy Swml krn dI zrUrq hY Aqy ieh AYsAwrAYstI eyey pRwjYkt dw iek mh~qvpUrx ih~sw hY[

bI. AYkstNYiff AYsAwrAYstI lMgr hwl, rsoeI, iqAwrI Aqy  BWfy Dox dy Kyqr.

	 lMgr hwl dw ivsQwr krnw AYsAwrAYstI lMgr hwl dI  smr~Qw vDwaux dw sB qoN mh~qvpUrn ih~sw hY[ ies ivsQwr dI Xojnw 
bIsIey Aqy XUAwrey inXmW dIAW iblifMg inXmW dIAW sImwvW dy AMdr v~D qoN v~D sMBv qOr qy kIqI geI hY[

	 sMgq dy ivcwrW dy ADwr qy, lMgr hwl ivc sMgq Aqy lMbI isMgl kqwr ƒ pwr krn leI loVINdIAW 2 kqwr kwauNtr, 2 pwxI Aqy 
cwh dy kqwr Aqy 2 kqwr sMgRihx pRxwlI dy nwl 2 kqwrW vwly lMgr srivMg pRxwlI dI Xojnw bxweI geI hY[ dwKly Aqy lwbI 
Kyqr ƒ sMgTq phuMc, ibhqr hvwdwrI leI smr~Q krn leI dubwrw kniPgr kIqw jwvygw, jdoN ik stYNfeI bYnrW Aqy AnMg kwrj 
imlnI dy audySW leI smripq lwbI Kyqr ƒ kwiem r~iKAw jwvy[
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	 sMgq dy PIfbYk dy ADwr qy, rsoeI ƒ ivSwl loh Aqy nvIN rsoeI dy inkws pRxwlI nwl vDwieAw jwvygw[ tRy dI vwpsI, h~Q Dox, 
try Dox vwly KyqrW ƒ dubwrw l~iBAw jweygw ,sMgq ƒ sOKw krn leI Aqy nvyN lMgr dI iqAwrI Aqy Dox vwly Kyqr ivc syvw leI 
vDyry Awrwmdwiek jgHw ƒ smr~Q krn leI, nvW Dox Aqy iqAwrI dw Kyqr vDyry KwlI jgHw, vDIAw hvwdwrI, ibhqr roSnI Aqy 
au~c-vwlIAm G~t gqI (AYcvIAYlAYs) pRSMskW dy nwl 'qy ADwrq hovygw.

	 rsoeI dy nyVy iek stIl kqwrb~D v~fy brqn Dox dw Kyqr bxwieAw jwvygw[ gurduAwrw swihb dy lWgrI duAwrw mMny jwx vwly iqAwrI 
Aqy nwSvwn rwSnW dI AswnI nwl BMfwrn leI ie~k TMfy kmry dI Xojnw bxweI geI hY[

	 sI. mOjUdw bIsIey Aqy XUAwrey dIAW zrUrqW ƒ pUrw krn leI iek nvIN SISy dy g~fx nwl gurduAwrw PRMtyj C~qrI ƒ qbdIl krnw[

	 fI. mYmorIAl hwl dy nyVy vHIlcyAr, AYksYs rYmp mOjUdw kwrpwrk eyrIAw vHIlcyAr, phuMc qoN ielwvw vHIlcyAr phuMc ƒ smr~Q krn 
leI[

	 mYmorIAl hwl dy bwhr vwly rsqy qoN iek nvW pRvyS duAwr vHIlcyAr qk phuMc leI bxwieAw jwvygw, ijs nwl ieh AYsAwrAYstI 
kMplYks dw cOQw pRvyS duAwr bx jwvygw[

	 eI. BwrI qOr 'qy vrqy jWdy 1 mMizlw pKwinAW leI v~fy murMmq Aqy Apfyt krn dI zrUrq hY[

	 swry pihly mMzly pKwinAW dI ibhqr hvwdwrI, roSnI, smr~Qw leI pUrI qrHW nwl murMmq kIqI jweygI Aqy Awm qOr 'qy qwzw pKwny 
nwl Apfyt kIqy jwxgy jo isMgwpur dy iek inXm dy qOr qy svIkwrx leI Awey hn[ ies qoN ielwvw, iek nYpI kmrw iek mMzl 'qy 
b~icAW Aqy mwvW dI dyKBwl leI joiVAw jweygw jo Awpxy b~icAW ƒ iek injI Kyqr ivc KuAwauxw cwhuMdy hn[ mrd twielt dI 
Xojnw hY hirAwlI nwl iGirAw iek Ku~lw sMklp Apxwaux dI jo pihlW hI mOjUd hY[

f.	 AYsAwrAYstI kMplYks iv~c 3 guMbdW dI rpYAr.
	 vwihgurU jI dI ikrpw Aqy syD dy nwl, 20 swlW purwxI pl~st mozyk kvrf fomz ies dIAW qyRV AweIAW lweInW nwl bhwl krn 

dw guMJldwr kMm Aqy jo ik sMBv dwZ htwaux qoN pwr dwZ ho gey hn, dI vI Koj kIqI jweygI Aqy audXoigk stYNfrf iblifMg 
bhwlI krn dI koiSS kIqI jweygI.

jI.	ies pRojYkt dy iek ih~sy vjoN is~K sYNtr Aqy AYsAwrAYstI dy vwtrpRUiPMg dy nwl AYsAwrAYstI Aqy is~K sYNtr kMplYks dI bwhrI 
Aqy AMdrUnI pyNitMg ƒ pUrw kIqw jwvygw[

h. 	lYNfskyipMg: vHIlcyAr rYmp dI auswrI krky mYmorIAl hwl dy nyVy kuJ h~d qk lYNfkyipMg dI Xojnw bxweI geI hY Aqy rYmp duAwrw 
ley gey Kyqr dI Awm gRInz spys bdlx leI AYsAwrAYstI kMplYks dy hor ih~isAW ivc vwDU lYNfskyipMg dy kMm dI zrUrq hoeygI]

	 10 swl qoN v~D aumr dy eyAr kMfISnrW ƒ is~K sYNtr Aqy AYsAwrAYstI dovW ivc qbdIl kIqw jwvygw.

jy.	 is~K sYNtr Aqy AYsAwrAYstI kMplYks, dovW leI is~Dw pRswrx Aqy hor AijhIAW gqIivDIAW ƒ pihlW nwloN aupl~bD ibhqr Xog 
krn leI iek nvW vweIPweI pRxwlI lwgU kIqI jweygI[ lMgr hwl, iqAwrI Aqy Dox vwly KyqrW dy AYkstYNSnW Aqy punr-kniPgrySnW 
dI pUrqI leI AYsAwrAYstI kMplYks ƒ iek nvyN sIsItIvI pRxwlI nwl iriPt kIqw jwvygw[

ky.	 is~K sYNtr ilPt:  is~K sYNtr ilPt ƒ ausy ilPt SYPt dy AMdr au~c smr~Qw, AwDuink ilPt dy nwl bdilAw jweygw qW jo vDyry 
Awrwmdyh XwqrIAW dw qjrbw id~qw jw sky[ nvIN ilPt ƒ sur~iKAw leI qwzw bIsIAYs loVW dI pwlxw krnI peygI[

AMq iv~c muV dubwrw vsx leI, AYsAwrAYstI ey AYNf ey pRojYkt dw mu~K zor islt rof is~K tYNpl hY ijs iv~c lMgr hwl, iqAwrI, 
vwiSMg eyrIAw, pihlI mMzlI tOielts Aqy is~K sYNtr ilPt dI qbdIlI au~qy BwrI iDAwn id~qw igAw hY[ auprokq nwl drbwr swihb 
dw ivsQwr Aqy AYsAwrAYstI kMplYks ivc vwDU vHIlcyAr rYmp dI phuMc hY[

AsIN Ardws krdy hW ik vwihgurU jI dI rihmq Aqy swDkw nwl, AYsAwrAYstI ey AYNf ey pRojYkt smyN isr Aqy inrDwrq bjt dy AMdr 
sur~iKAq nwl pUrw ho jwvygw[ AsIN  audGwtn krdy smyN Ardws krdy hW, ijvyN Sbd 'sMqw ky kwrij Awip KloieAw hir kMmu krwvix 
AwieAw rwm]' iv`c ikhw jWdw hY ik vwihgurU jI swfy swirAW ƒ ausdy sMqW Aqy aus dI mihmw leI Awpxw kwrj pUrw krn leI mwrg 
drSn krdy hn[
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sI.AY~s.jI.bI. AYn.XU.AY~s. ivKy is~K AiDAYn ivc ivzitMg pRoPYsriSp 

is~K st~fIz ivc ivizitMg pRoPYsriSp iek AYNfomYNt ADwrq pRwjYkt hY jo isMgwpur dI nYSnl XUnIvristI ivKy klw Aqy smwj ivigAwn 
PYkltI duAwrw clwieAw jw irhw hY[ sqMbr 2019 ivc ies dI SurUAwq qoN bwAd, dwnIAW qoN kul 160,000 fwlr iek~Ty kIqy gey hn[
isMgwpur dI is~K imSnrI suswietI ny sYNtrl is~K gurduAwrw borf nwl pRogrwm SurU krn leI $ 1.2 imlIAn dy SurUAwqI PMf iek~Ty 
krn ivc mdd krn leI sihmqI id~qI hY[ srkwr fwlr leI fwlr dw mYc krygI Aqy dwn krn vwilAW ƒ dwn kIqI geI rwSI dy 
2.5 guxw qoN Awmdn kr qoV id~qw jwvygw[ sIAYsjIbI Aqy AYsAYmAYs 2021 dI dUjI iqmwhI qk $ 1.2 imlIAn dy PMf iek~Ty krn 
ƒ pUrw krn leI kMm kr rhy hn[ iesdw ArQ ieh hovygw ik ivjIitMg pRoPYsriSp 2021 dy AKIr ivc ArMB kIqI jweygI[

ividAwrQIAW ƒ is~K jIvn Aqy jIvn-jwc bwry gryiftybl ielYkitv krn leI, ies qoN ielwvw, do pbilk sYmInwr vI hoxgy jo 
ivijt pRoPYsr hr swl is~K sMgq ƒ dyxgy[ ies pRogrwm dI mlkIAq Aqy isMgwpur dI nYSnl XUnIvristI duAwrw sMcwlq kIqI jweygI 
Aqy AMq iv~c is~K st~fIz 'qy pUrI cyAr leI ApgRyf krn dI Xojnw hY, ies leI $ 2.4 imlIAn dw sMcq AYNfomYNt PMf pRwpq krn 
leI $ 1.2 imlIAn dI zrUrq hoeygI[ sIAYsjIbI AwsvMd hY ik vwihgurU jI dI bKiSS Aqy sMgq dy sihXog nwl AsIN jldI Awpxy 
imQy hoey audyS aupr phuMcwgy[
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GOVERNANCE

The Board was constituted under an Act of Parliament in 1981 – “The Central Sikh Gurdwara Board Act” [Chapter 
357].  It manages two Gurdwaras (CST and SRST) and the Sikh Centre.  

The Management of the Board as conferred by Section 16 of the Act, is governed by the CSGB Rules 1987 (hereafter 
“Rules”). 

At the last Biennial General Meeting (“BGM”) held on 23 July 2017, 25 Council Members (“Council”) were elected.  
Following the BGM and pursuant to CSGB Act Section 4(1), Council elected a President, a Treasurer, a Secretary 
and other officials from amongst the Council members, who are set out in the inside cover page of this Report. The 
position of Treasurer is limited to not more than two consecutive years. 

The Council is committed to maintaining high standards of governance as well as, establishing and maintaining an 
ethical environment in the course of meeting the needs of the Sadh Sanggat.

OFFICE BEARERS AND CO-OPTED MEMBERS

To facilitate effective management of the Council, the Rules allow for the establishment of these Committes: 
Executive Committee, CST Management Committee, SRST Management Committee and also establish the SC 
Management Committee, Building Committee and other committees. These committees were formed in response 
to the changing needs of the Sikh Community. 

The Council members have years of experience in Community service, finance, education and management.  Each 
member brings to the Council (his or her) expertise from relevant fields to add value to making balanced decisions.

No Board Members are remunerated for their Board services in the financial year.

ROLE OF THE GOVERNING BOARD:

Control, approve and coordinate financial and administrative activities, including reports by each Committee and 
sub-Committee;

1.	 CST and SRST MC can approve expenses up to $2,000;
2.	 EXCO can approve expenses up to S$10,000; and
3.	 Any sum above $10,000 is approved at Council level;  
4.	 Treasurer deposits all monies in excess of $200 into Bank accounts on a weekly basis and maintains 		
	 financial records. 

Approve new membership applications.
Convene BGM and any other meetings of Members.
Manage policies and procedures for the smooth operation and management of the Gurdwaras, including: 

1.	 Set strategic aims, and ensure that the necessary financial and human resources are in place for the 		
	 Council to meet its objectives; 
2.	 Establish a framework of prudent and effective controls to manage risk; 
3.	 Appointment of staff members, including Granthis, Ragis; and
4.	 Set the Council’s values and standards and ensure that obligations to its members are understood and met.
	 Monitor communications and relations between the Board and its members, between the Council and 		
	 Management, with a view to encouraging constructive relations and dialogue amongst them.

Submit the audited financial statements to the Commissioner of Charities within six months after the end of each 
financial year.

TERM LIMIT OF THE BOARD

No member of the Board shall hold office as a Treasurer for more than two years consecutively.
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SERVICE OF MORE THAN 10 YEARS

Names of Sewadars who have been involved passionately doing SEWA with CSGB for more than ten (10) years are:

1)	 Baljit Singh
2)	 Gurdip Singh
3)	 Ranjit Singh
4)	 Bhupinder Singh
5)	 Harjit Singh
6)	 Harbahjan Singh
7)	 Jasmindar Singh
8)	 Pritpal Singh

COUNCIL’S MANAGEMENT

The Council meets six times a year and supervises the management of the affairs of the Board. CST, SRST and SC 
Committees meet once a month. the Board Secretary sends out email notices of meetings seven days in advance, 
including reminders via phone calls/WhatsApp. For the period September 2019 to December 2020, 8 Council 
meetings and 14 Exco meetings were held. 

COMMUNICATIONS WITH MEMBERS

The Council is mindful of its obligations to provide regular and effective communication to its members. Members 
are updated of Gurdwaras Programmes and other activities of the Board through various social media platforms, 
CSGB’s monthly bulletin, the Board’s website at www.sikhs.org.sg, Facebook, Youtube, Instagram and Whatsapp 
broadcasting channel. 

EXCO MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE FOR 2019 & 2020

Designation Date Appointed Names of Board Members Attendance

President Since 2017 Baljit Singh 14/14

Vice President Since 2019 Harmit Singh 14/14

Secretary Since 2017 Dr Narinder Kaur 14/14

Treasurer Since 2019 Balbir Singh 14/14

Assistant Secretary Since 2020 Harjit Kaur 12/12

Assistant Treasurer Since 2017 Harjit Singh Dhotian 10/14

Chairman, CST Since 2019 Jaspal Singh Hayer 14/14

Chairman, SRST Since 2019 Jaspreet Singh Chhabra 14/14

Chairwoman, SC Since 2017 Hardip Kaur Gill 14/14

Advisor, CSGB Since 2017 Gurdip Singh Usma 13/14

Building Committee Since 2019 Jasmindar Singh Gholia 11/14

Youth Task Force Since 2019 Simranjit Singh 11/14

Honorary Internal Auditor Since 2019 Swindar Singh 4/4
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Names of Board Members Attendance Names of Board Members Attendance

Baljit Singh 8/8 Harjit Singh 7/8

Harmit Singh 8/8 Gurcharan Singh 4/8

Dr Narinder Kaur 8/8 Pritpal Singh 2/8

Balbir Singh 8/8 Sukhbir Singh Rode 2/8

Harjit Kaur 8/8 Bhupinder Singh 8/8

Jaspal Singh 7/8 Avtar Singh 6/8

Jaspreet Singh 8/8 Ranjit Singh Vahan 6/8

Hardip Kaur 8/8 Nirmal Singh 6/8

Gurdip Singh 7/8 Harminder Kaur 5/8

Jasmindar Singh 8/8 Jagjit Singh Sandhu 8/8

Simranjit Singh 6/8 Ranjit Singh Wahla 8/8

Harbahjan Singh 7/8 Swindar Singh – Honorary 
Internal Auditor

3/3
Sukhbir Singh Njier 8/8

COUNCIL MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE FOR 2019 & 2020

SUB COMMITTEES:

BUILDING COMMITTEE

Chairman            Jasmindar Singh Gholia 

Member   Hardip Kaur Gill

Member Baljit Singh

Member Avtar Singh

STAFF REMUNERATION

None of the charity’s staff receives more than $100,000 in annual remuneration. CSGB is guided by the HR Manual. 
Charity’s staff performance is reviewed yearly and assessed by the Board. The Executive Committee is involved in 
setting remuneration of staff.

The charity has no paid staff, who are close members of the family of the Executive Head or Board members, who 
each receives total remuneration of more than $50,000 during the year.

*CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

There are documented procedures for Board members and staff to declare actual or potential conflicts of interest 
to the Board on a regular basis and when the need arises. Please see Appendix as attached.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT and INTERNAL CONTROLS

There are documented procedures in place for financial matters in key areas.  The Internal Auditor conducts 
reviews of the Charity’s control processes.

Charity does not give loans.
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Names of Board Members Attendance Names of Board Members Attendance

Baljit Singh 8/8 Harjit Singh 7/8

Harmit Singh 8/8 Gurcharan Singh 4/8

Dr Narinder Kaur 8/8 Pritpal Singh 2/8

Balbir Singh 8/8 Sukhbir Singh Rode 2/8

Harjit Kaur 8/8 Bhupinder Singh 8/8

Jaspal Singh 7/8 Avtar Singh 6/8

Jaspreet Singh 8/8 Ranjit Singh Vahan 6/8

Hardip Kaur 8/8 Nirmal Singh 6/8
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3/3
Sukhbir Singh Njier 8/8

gvrnYNs

borf dw gTn 1981 iv~c sMsd dy ie~k AYkt - "kyNdrI is~K gurduAwrw borf AYkt" [AiDAwie 357] dy qihq kIqw igAw sI[ ieh 
do gurduAwry (sIAYstI Aqy AYsAwrAYstI) Aqy is~K sYNtr dw pRbMDn krdw hY[

AYkt dI Dwrw 16 duAwrw id~qy borf dw pRbMDn sIAYsjIbI inXm 1987 duAwrw clwieAw jWdw hY[

23 julweI 2017 ƒ Aw^rI do swlw Awm mIitMg (“bIjIAYm”) ivKy, 25 kONsl mYNbr (“kONsl”) cuxy gey sn[ bIjIAYm dI pwlxw 
kridAW Aqy sIAYsjIbI AYkt dI Dwrw 4 (1) dy Anuswr, kONsl ny kONsl dy mYNbrW iv~coN ie~k pRDwn, ie~k KzwncI, ie~k sYktrI Aqy 
hor AiDkwrIAW dI cox kIqI, jo ies irport dy AMdrly kvr pyj iv~c drswey gey hn[ KzwncI dI siQqI lgwqwr do swlW qoN v~D 
nhIN sIimq hY[

kONsl swD sMgq dIAW loVW pUrIAW krn dy nwl nwl Swsn dy au~c imAwrW ƒ kwiem r~Kx, nYiqk mwhOl sQwpq krn Aqy kwiem r~Kx 
leI vcnb~D hY[

Awi&s Aqy sihXogI mYNbr

kONsl dy pRBwvSwlI pRbMDn dI shUlq leI, inXm ienHW kmytIAW dI sQwpnw leI AwigAw idMdy hn: kwrjkwrI kmytI, sIAYstI mYnyjmYNt 
kmytI, AYsAwrAYstI mYnyjmYNt kmytI Aqy AYssI mYnyjmYNt kmytI, iblifMg kmytI Aqy hor kmytIAW dI sQwpnw, ieh kmytIAW is~K kOm 
dIAW bdldIAW loVW dy jvwb iv~c bxIAW sn[

kONsl dy mYNbrW kol kimaUintI syvw, iv~q, is~iKAw Aqy pRbMDn dw swlW dw qjrbw huMdw hY[ hr iek mYNbr sMquilq PYsly lYx ivc kdr 
vDwaux leI sMbMDq KyqrW qoN kONsl (ausdI) dI muhwrq ilAwauNdw hY.

iv~qI vrHy iv~c borf dy iksy vI mYNbr ƒ aunHW dIAW borf syvwvW leI imhnqwnw nhIN id~qw jWdw hY[

srkwrI borf dI BUimkw:

iv~qI Aqy pRbMDkI gqIivDIAW ƒ inXMqrx, mnzUrI Aqy qwlmyl, smyq hryk kmytI Aqy sb-kmytI dIAW irportW;

1.	 sIAYstI Aqy AYsAwrAYstI AYmsI $2,000 qk dy KricAW ƒ pRvwn kr skdy hn;
2.	 AYksko $10,000 q~k dy KricAW ƒ pRvwn kr skdw hY; Aqy
3.	 10,000 fwlr qoN aupr dI koeI vI rkm kONsl p~Dr qy mnzUr kIqI jWdI hY;
4.	 KzwncI hr hPqy dy ADwr 'qy 200 fwlr qoN v~D dIAW kmIAW ƒ bYNk KwiqAW iv~c jmHw krdw hY Aqy iv~qI irkwrf ƒ 		
	 kwiem r~Kdw hY[

nv sd~sqw AYplIkySn ƒ mnzUrI[
bIjIAYm Aqy mYNbrW dIAW koeI hor mIitMgW bulwE[
gurduAwirAW dy inrivGn sMcwln Aqy pRbMDn leI nIqIAW Aqy pRikirAwvW dw pRbMDn, smyq:

1. 	 rxnIqk audySW ƒ inrDwrq kro, Aqy ieh suinSicq kro ik kONsl leI iesdy audySW ƒ pUrw krn leI loVINdy iv~qI Aqy 		
	 mnu~KI sroq mOjUd hn;
2. 	joKm dy pRbMDn leI sUJvwn Aqy pRBwvSwlI inXMqrxW dw FWcw sQwpq krnw;
3. 	stwP mYNbrW dI inXukqI, gRMQI, rwgI smyq; Aqy
4. 	 kONsl dy kdrW kImqW Aqy mwpdMf inrDwrq kro Aqy ieh suinSicq kro ik iesdy mYNbrW dIAW izMmyvwrIAW ƒ smiJAw Aqy 	
	 pUrw kIqw jwvy[

borf Aqy iesdy mYNbrW drimAwn, auswrU sMbMDW Aqy sMvwdW ƒ auqSwhq krn dy audyS nwl, sMmyln Aqy sMbMDW dI ingrwnI kro[
hryk iv~qI swl dI smwpqI qoN bwAd Cy mhIinAW dy AMdr Awift hoey iv~qI ibAwn cYrItIAW dy kimSnr ƒ sONpo[
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                                                                                                                Central Sikh Gurdwara Board  

                                                                                                                             2 Towner Road, Singapore 327804  
                                                                                                                                                          Tel: 63272004  Fax: 63272009  

                                                                                                                                              Website: www.sikhs.org.sg   
(Constituted in Parliament Under the Central Sikh Gurdwara Board Act (Chap 357) in 1981)  

  

  
  
Central Sikh Gurdwara Board’s Code of Conduct  
  
1. As an Elected Council Member of the Central Sikh Gurdwara Board (“CSGB”), I promise to 

follow the guidelines in this Code of Conduct in the course of volunteering my services 
to the Sangat.  

  
I am committed to:  
  

• Being responsible to the duties assigned to me.   
  

• Treat all members of the Sangat with dignity, respect, patience, and courtesy.  
  

• Avoid profane or abusive language and disruptive behavior.  
  

• Respect all confidential information and maintain the confidentiality of all 
proprietary or privileged information I am exposed to in the course of 
volunteering my services.  

  
• Avoid making any comments or remarks, verbally or in writing whether on any 

social media or otherwise, contrary to the Mission and Vision of CSGB and any 
decisions of the CSGB.  

  
  
Central Sikh Gurdwara Board’s Conflict of Interest Policy  
  

  
2. Whenever any member of the Central Sikh Gurdwara Board Council, Executive 

Committee, Unit Management Committee or any other Sub Committee is in any way, 
directly or indirectly, connected or has an interest in a payment, transaction, project, 
beneficiary, employee or any other matter to be discussed or approved at any 
meeting:  

  
a. the member shall disclose the nature of his interest before the discussion on 

the matter begins;  
  
b. the member concerned should not participate in the vote on the matter nor 

count towards the quorum for that portion of the meeting; and  
  
c. the member concerned should not participate in the discussion on the matter 

and should also offer to withdraw from the meeting.   
  

 Created on 27 August 2015.   
 

  
                                                                                                                Central Sikh Gurdwara Board  

                                                                                                                             2 Towner Road, Singapore 327804  
                                                                                                                                                          Tel: 63272004  Fax: 63272009  

                                                                                                                                              Website: www.sikhs.org.sg   
(Constituted in Parliament Under the Central Sikh Gurdwara Board Act (Chap 357) in 1981)  

  

  
  
Central Sikh Gurdwara Board’s Code of Conduct  
  
1. As an Elected Council Member of the Central Sikh Gurdwara Board (“CSGB”), I promise to 

follow the guidelines in this Code of Conduct in the course of volunteering my services 
to the Sangat.  

  
I am committed to:  
  

• Being responsible to the duties assigned to me.   
  

• Treat all members of the Sangat with dignity, respect, patience, and courtesy.  
  

• Avoid profane or abusive language and disruptive behavior.  
  

• Respect all confidential information and maintain the confidentiality of all 
proprietary or privileged information I am exposed to in the course of 
volunteering my services.  

  
• Avoid making any comments or remarks, verbally or in writing whether on any 

social media or otherwise, contrary to the Mission and Vision of CSGB and any 
decisions of the CSGB.  

  
  
Central Sikh Gurdwara Board’s Conflict of Interest Policy  
  

  
2. Whenever any member of the Central Sikh Gurdwara Board Council, Executive 

Committee, Unit Management Committee or any other Sub Committee is in any way, 
directly or indirectly, connected or has an interest in a payment, transaction, project, 
beneficiary, employee or any other matter to be discussed or approved at any 
meeting:  

  
a. the member shall disclose the nature of his interest before the discussion on 

the matter begins;  
  
b. the member concerned should not participate in the vote on the matter nor 

count towards the quorum for that portion of the meeting; and  
  
c. the member concerned should not participate in the discussion on the matter 

and should also offer to withdraw from the meeting.   
  

 Created on 27 August 2015.   
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borf dI Srq sImw

borf dw koeI vI mYNbr lgwqwr do swlW qoN v~D smyN leI KzwncI dy Ahudy qy nhIN rih skdw[

10 swl qoN v~D dI syvw
syvwdwrW dy nwm jo ds (10) swlW qoN v~D swlW qoN sI.AY~s.jI.bI. nwl joS nwl syvw kr rhy hn:
1) bljIq isMG
2) gurdIp isMG
3) rxjIq isMG
4) BuipMdr isMG
5) hrjIq isMG
6) hrBjn isMG
7) jsimMdr isMG
8) ipRqpwl isMG

kONsl dw pRbMDn

kONsl swl iv~c Cy vwr imldI hY Aqy borf dy mwmilAW dy pRbMDn dI ingrwnI krdI hY. sIAYstI, AYsAwrAYstI Aqy AYssI kmytIAW 
mhIny iv~c ie~k vwr mIitMg krdIAW hn[ borf sYktrI mIitMgW dy eImyl noits s~q idn pihlW Byjdw hY, ijs iv~c Pon kwlW / vtsAYp 
rwhIN irmweINfr Swml huMdy hn[ sqMbr 2019 qoN dsMbr 2020 dI imAwd leI, 8 kONsl dIAW mIitMgW Aqy 14 AYksko mIitMgW hoeIAW 
sn[

mYNbrW nwl sMcwr

kONsl Awpxy mYNbrW ƒ inXmq Aqy pRBwvSwlI sMcwr pRdwn krn dIAW AwpxIAW izMmyvwrIAW pRqI cyqMn hY[ mYNbrW ƒ v~K-v~K soSl 
mIfIAw plytPwrmW Aqy iesdy mwisk bulyitn, borf dI vYbsweIt @ www.iskhs.org.sg , Pysbu~k, XUitUb, ieMstwgRwm Aqy vtsAYp pRswrx 
cYnl duAwrw gurduAwirAW dy pRogrwmW Aqy borf dIAW hor gqIivDIAW ƒ Apfyt kIqw jWdw hY[

stwP irmUnySn

cYirtI dw koeI vI stwP  100,000 qoN v~D swlwnw imhnqwnw pRwpq nhIN krdw[ sIAYsjIbI AYcAwr mYnuAl duAwrw inrdySq hY[ cYrItI 
dy stwP dI kwrguzwrI dI swlwnw smIiKAw kIqI jWdI hY Aqy borf duAwrw mulWkx kIqw jWdw hY[ kwrjkwrI kmytI stwP dI imhnqwnw 
qYA krn iv~c Swml hY[
cYirtI dw koeI AdwiegI stwP nhIN huMdw, jo kwrjkwrI muKI jW borf dy mYNbrW dy pirvwr dy krIbI mYNbr huMdy hn, ijnHW ƒ hryk ƒ swl 
dOrwn 50,000 qoN v~D dw imhnqwnw imldw hY[

* ihq dy itkrwA dI aulMGxw

borf dy mYNbrW Aqy stwP leI inXmq ADwr ‘qy Aqy zrUrq hox’ qy borf ƒ ihq dy Asl jW sMBwivq tkrwvW dw AYlwn krn leI 
dsqwvyz pRikRAwvW hn[ ikrpw krky juVy hoey AMiqkw ƒ vyKo[

iv~qI pRbMDn Aqy AMdrUnI inXMqrx

mu~K KyqrW ivc iv~qI mwmilAW leI jgHw ivc dsqwvyz pRikirAwvW hn[ ieMtrnl AwfItr cYirtI dIAW inXMqrx pRikirAwvW dI 
smIiKAw krdw hY[

cYirtI lon nhIN idMdI[
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and should also offer to withdraw from the meeting.   
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• Respect all confidential information and maintain the confidentiality of all 
proprietary or privileged information I am exposed to in the course of 
volunteering my services.  

  
• Avoid making any comments or remarks, verbally or in writing whether on any 

social media or otherwise, contrary to the Mission and Vision of CSGB and any 
decisions of the CSGB.  
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a. the member shall disclose the nature of his interest before the discussion on 

the matter begins;  
  
b. the member concerned should not participate in the vote on the matter nor 

count towards the quorum for that portion of the meeting; and  
  
c. the member concerned should not participate in the discussion on the matter 

and should also offer to withdraw from the meeting.   
  

 Created on 27 August 2015.   
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3. For the purpose of the above clause, a member is considered as being connected or 
having an interest in the matter if:  

 
a. that person being discussed or the payment is being made to is the member’s 

child, sibling, parent, spouse, spouse’s parent, spouse’s sibling, grandparent 
or grandchild.  

  
b. the member or his spouse is directly or indirectly a shareholder (excluding 

“less than 5%” stake in a public listed company), director, partner, agent or 
key executive of a business.  

  
c. the member is the President, Vice President, Honorary Secretary or Honorary 

Treasurer of any Sikh Institution being discussed.   
  

4. The disclosure, discussions and final decisions on the matter should be documented 
in the minutes of meeting.  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
I ______________________________________ (Name) __________________  (NRIC No) 
promise to follow the above guidelines.  
  
  
  
Date : __________________________  
  
  
Note: If CSGB is aware of and/or receives any information that an Elected Council Member of the 
CSGB has allegedly breached any of the above guidelines, the Council of CSGB may at its 
discretion appoint a committee comprising of 3 Members to review the allegation(s) and make the 
necessary findings. The decision of the majority (at least 2 members) shall be final and binding.   
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 Note 2019 2018
S$ S$

ASSETS
Non current assets
  Freehold buildings 3 5,511,662 5,704,727
  Construction in progress 3 58,751 31,438
  Leasehold buildings 4 5,608,845 5,813,302
  Plant and equipment 5 124,344 89,669

Current assets
  Deposits and prepayment 6 191,649         41,650           
  Advances for purchase 4,894             1,874             
  Cash and bank balances 7 3,232,345      2,724,270      

3,428,888      2,767,794      

Total assets 14,732,490    14,406,930    

FUNDS AND LIABILITY
Funds
  Accumulated fund 4,316,724      3,834,350      
  Building fund 8 10,236,372    10,421,106    
  Bursary fund 9 25,000           15,000           
Total funds 14,578,096    14,270,456    

Current liability
  Other payables and accruals 10 154,394         136,474         

154,394         136,474         

Total funds and liability 14,732,490    14,406,930    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

The notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with this statement.
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Note 2019 2018 2019 2018
S$ S$ S$ S$

Revenue 11 2,712,106    2,540,875    212,788        4,820            
Other income 11 219,709       119,051       -                -                

Less : Expenses
Direct expenses 11 1,096,059    839,425       -                -                
Employee benefits expenses 11 476,566       491,618       -                -                
Depreciation 11 113,617       96,174         397,522        397,522        
Other operating expenses 11 763,199       791,728       -                -                

2,449,441    2,218,945    397,522        397,522        

Surplus / (deficit) for the year 482,374       440,981       (184,734)       (392,702)       

  Accumulated fund Building fund

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with this statement. 
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  Accumulated fund Building fund

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with this statement. 
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UNRESTRICTED 
FUND

Accumulated fund Building Bursary TOTAL
fund fund fund FUNDS

S$ S$ S$ S$

Balance at 1 January 2018 3,393,369         10,813,808        15,000           14,222,177    

Surplus / (deficit) for the financial 440,981            (392,702)            -                    48,279           
year
Balance at 31 December 2018 3,834,350         10,421,106        15,000           14,270,456    

Surplus / (deficit) for the financial 482,374            (184,734)            10,000           307,640         
year
Balance at 31 December 2019 4,316,724         10,236,372        25,000           14,578,096    

DESIGNATED FUNDS

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with this statement

Central Sikh Gurdwara Board     Statement of Cash Flows 
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Note 2019 2018

S$ S$
Operating activities
Surplus of income over expenditure 482,374          440,981          
Adjustments for:
 Depreciation of plant and equipment 3 113,617          96,174            
 Building fund donation received 8 212,788          4,820              
 Bursary fund donation received 9 10,000            -                  
 Interest income (38,517)           (21,888)           
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 780,262          520,087          
Changes in operating receivables (153,020)         1,090              
Changes in operating payables 17,920            41,559            
Net cash generated from operating activities 645,162          562,736          

Investing activities
Purchase of plant and equipment 3 (148,291)         (76,448)           
Payment for construction work in progress 3 (27,313)           (1,815)             
Interest received 38,517            21,888            
Net cash (used in) investing activities (137,087)         (56,375)           

Net increase in cash and bank balances 508,075          506,361          
Cash and bank balances at beginning of year 2,724,270       2,217,909       
Cash and bank balances at end of year 7 3,232,345       2,724,270       
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with this statement.
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The notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with this statement.
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These notes form an integral part and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 
statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income and statements of cash flows. 
 
 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

 
The Central Sikh Gurdwara Board (the “Board”)) has complied in all material respects with 
applicable Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”) and each applicable Interpretation of FRS, 
effective for the financial year in the preparation of the financial statements. 
 
Adoption of new and revised standards effective in 2019  
 
In the current financial year, the Board has adopted all the new and revised FRS and 
Interpretations of FRS (“INT FRS”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The adoption of new FRS 116 Leases did not 
result in changes to the board’s accounting policies and had no material effect on the amounts 
reported for the current or prior years. 
 
At the date of authorisation of these statements, the following FRS and INT FRS that are 
relevant to the Board were issued but not effective: 
 

Description Effective date 
(annual periods beginning on or after) 

 
Amendments to References to the Conceptual 
Framework in FRS Standards 
Amendments to FRS 1 and FRS 8 Definition of 
Material  
Amendments to FRS 110 and FRS 28 Sale or 
Contribution of Assets between and Investor and its 
Associate or Joint Venture  

 
1 January 2020 

 
1 January 2020 

 
Date to be determined  

 
 
2. GENERAL INFORMATION  
 

The Central Sikh Gurdwara Board (the “Board”) is an entity constituted in 1981 pursuant to 
the Central Sikh Gurdwara Board, Chapter 357, an Act of Parliament. The Board is also 
registered under the Societies Act, Chapter 311, and under the Charities Act Chapter 37 (UEN: 
T09CC0002F). 
 
The registered office and place of activity of the Board is at 9 Jalan Bukit Merah Singapore 
169543. 
 
The principal activities of the Board are: 
 
a) To acquire, build and maintain properties including temples for purposes relating to the 

Sikh religion or on trust for religious or charitable purposes for the benefit of persons 
professing the Sikh religion; and 
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b) To regulate the conduct of religious services and other ceremonies customary among the 
followers of the Sikh religion. 

  
The Board manages; 
 

a) the Central Sikh Temple located at 2 Towner Road Singapore 327804; and 
 

b) the Silat Road Sikh Temple and Sikh Centre are located at 8 and 9 Jalan Bukit Merah 
Singapore 169543. 

 
The Officials of Board have authorised the financial statements for issue in accordance with 
the date of the Statement by Officials of the Board. 
  
 

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 

a.  Basis of Financial Statements preparation 
 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Societies Act, the 
Charities Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”). 
 
Basis of measurement 

 
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention 
except as disclosed in the accounting policies below. 
 
Functional and presentation currency 
 
The Board presents its statements in Singapore Dollars (“S$”), which is also its functional 
currency. 
 
Significant accounting estimates and judgements 
 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with FRSs requires the use of 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the financial period. Although these 
estimates are based on Board’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual 
results may differ from those estimates. 
 
The critical accounting estimates and assumptions used and area involving a high degree 
of judgements are described below: 
 
Depreciation of building, plant and equipment 
 

Building, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated 
useful life. Board’s management estimates the depreciation rate of building, plant and 
equipment to be within 3 to 50 years. The carrying amount of the Board’s building, plant 
and equipment are disclosed in Note 3, 4 and 5. 
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statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income and statements of cash flows. 
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The Central Sikh Gurdwara Board (the “Board”) is an entity constituted in 1981 pursuant to 
the Central Sikh Gurdwara Board, Chapter 357, an Act of Parliament. The Board is also 
registered under the Societies Act, Chapter 311, and under the Charities Act Chapter 37 (UEN: 
T09CC0002F). 
 
The registered office and place of activity of the Board is at 9 Jalan Bukit Merah Singapore 
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b) To regulate the conduct of religious services and other ceremonies customary among the 
followers of the Sikh religion. 

  
The Board manages; 
 

a) the Central Sikh Temple located at 2 Towner Road Singapore 327804; and 
 

b) the Silat Road Sikh Temple and Sikh Centre are located at 8 and 9 Jalan Bukit Merah 
Singapore 169543. 

 
The Officials of Board have authorised the financial statements for issue in accordance with 
the date of the Statement by Officials of the Board. 
  
 

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 

a.  Basis of Financial Statements preparation 
 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Societies Act, the 
Charities Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”). 
 
Basis of measurement 

 
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention 
except as disclosed in the accounting policies below. 
 
Functional and presentation currency 
 
The Board presents its statements in Singapore Dollars (“S$”), which is also its functional 
currency. 
 
Significant accounting estimates and judgements 
 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with FRSs requires the use of 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the financial period. Although these 
estimates are based on Board’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual 
results may differ from those estimates. 
 
The critical accounting estimates and assumptions used and area involving a high degree 
of judgements are described below: 
 
Depreciation of building, plant and equipment 
 

Building, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated 
useful life. Board’s management estimates the depreciation rate of building, plant and 
equipment to be within 3 to 50 years. The carrying amount of the Board’s building, plant 
and equipment are disclosed in Note 3, 4 and 5. 
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Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments could impact the 
economic useful life and the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation 
charges could be revised. 
 

b.  Building, plant and equipment and depreciation  
 

Items of building, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 
   
Depreciation is calculated on a monthly basis so as to write off the cost of the building, 
plant and equipment on the straight-line method over their expected useful life. The rates 
adopted are as follows:  
 
Freehold buildings  50 years 
Leasehold buildings    50 years 
Furniture and fittings     3 years  
Machinery    3 years  
Renovation    3 years 
Air-conditioners    3 years 
Office and temple equipment     3 years 
 
Fully depreciated building, plant and equipment are retained in the financial statements 
until they are no longer in use and no further charge for depreciation is made in respect of 
these building, plant and equipment.  
 
The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year end to 
ensure that the method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates 
and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the 
items of building, plant and equipment. 
 
Gains or losses from disposal of building, plant and equipment are determined as the 
difference between the estimated net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset and are recognised in the profit and loss account on disposal or retirement. 
 

c.  Financial assets 
 

Initial recognition 
 
Financial instruments are measured at cost on initial recognition, whilst transaction costs 
are recognised as expenditure as they are incurred. 
 
Prepayments are initially recognised at the amount paid in advance for the economic 
resources expected to be received in the future.  

 
Subsequent measurement 
 
After initial recognition, other receivables excluding prepayments are measured at cost 
less any accumulated impairment losses. Prepayments are measured at the amount paid 
less the economic resources received or consumed during the financial year.  
 
 

Central Sikh Gurdwara Board                                             Notes to the Financial Statements  
Annual Report                                                                                                           31 December 2019 
 
 
 

                                                                                                                                                                               
Page 11 

Derecognition  
 
A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from 
the asset has expired or are transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership have been transferred. 

 
d.   Cash and bank balances 

 
Cash and bank balances include cash on hand and deposits with financial institutions. 

 
e. Financial liabilities 
 

Other payables excluding accruals are recognised at their transaction price, excluding 
transaction costs, if any, both at initial recognition and at subsequent measurement. 
Transaction costs are recognised as expenditure in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income as incurred. 
 
Accruals are recognised at the best estimate of the amount payable.  
 

f.  Income recognition 
 

Donations are recorded on the basis of receipts issued.  
 
Offerings are recognised upon the first recording of such collections when the safes are 
periodically opened. 
 
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest 
method. 
 
All expenditures are recognised on an accrual basis. 
 

g.  Funds 
 

General funds 
 
General funds are also commonly known as accumulated or unrestricted funds. The Board 
is free to use such funds for both capital and revenue expenditure without having to take 
into account of any restrictions imposed. 
 
Designated funds 
 
Designated funds are funds earmarked by the Board itself for specific purposes or to meet 
future commitments. 
 
Building Fund is a designated fund to be used for the construction of building extension 
and renovation. 
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asset and are recognised in the profit and loss account on disposal or retirement. 
 

c.  Financial assets 
 

Initial recognition 
 
Financial instruments are measured at cost on initial recognition, whilst transaction costs 
are recognised as expenditure as they are incurred. 
 
Prepayments are initially recognised at the amount paid in advance for the economic 
resources expected to be received in the future.  

 
Subsequent measurement 
 
After initial recognition, other receivables excluding prepayments are measured at cost 
less any accumulated impairment losses. Prepayments are measured at the amount paid 
less the economic resources received or consumed during the financial year.  
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Derecognition  
 
A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from 
the asset has expired or are transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership have been transferred. 

 
d.   Cash and bank balances 

 
Cash and bank balances include cash on hand and deposits with financial institutions. 

 
e. Financial liabilities 
 

Other payables excluding accruals are recognised at their transaction price, excluding 
transaction costs, if any, both at initial recognition and at subsequent measurement. 
Transaction costs are recognised as expenditure in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income as incurred. 
 
Accruals are recognised at the best estimate of the amount payable.  
 

f.  Income recognition 
 

Donations are recorded on the basis of receipts issued.  
 
Offerings are recognised upon the first recording of such collections when the safes are 
periodically opened. 
 
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest 
method. 
 
All expenditures are recognised on an accrual basis. 
 

g.  Funds 
 

General funds 
 
General funds are also commonly known as accumulated or unrestricted funds. The Board 
is free to use such funds for both capital and revenue expenditure without having to take 
into account of any restrictions imposed. 
 
Designated funds 
 
Designated funds are funds earmarked by the Board itself for specific purposes or to meet 
future commitments. 
 
Building Fund is a designated fund to be used for the construction of building extension 
and renovation. 
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Restricted funds 
 
Restricted funds are funds where specific conditions which are legally binding on the 
trustees as to how the funds should be used. The restriction has been externally imposed, 
usually by the person providing the fund.  
 
The funds balances, unless specifically indicated, are not represented by any specific 
assets but are represented by all assets of the Board. 
 
The Board has no restricted funds. 
 

h.   Employment benefits 
 

Defined Contribution Plans 
 
The Board makes contribution to the Central Provident Fund (“CPF”), scheme in 
Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme. The contributions are recognised as an 
expense in the period in which the related service is performed. 
 
Employee leave entitlements  
 
Employee annual leave entitlements are recognised when they accrue to employees. 
Accrual, if material, is made for the unconsumed leave as a result of services rendered by 
employees up to the reporting date. 
 

i.  Taxation 
 
 The Board is registered as a charity under the Charities Act and it is exempted from tax. 

 
j.  Related parties 

 
                 Related parties include all of the following:  

 
a. A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a charity (meaning the 

Board) if that person:  
 

i. Has control or joint control over the charity;  
 

ii. Has significant influence over the charity; or  
 

iii. A governing board member, trustee or member of the key management personnel of 
the charity or of a parent of the charity. 
 

b. An entity is related to the charity if any of the following conditions applies:  
 

i. The entity and the charity are members of the same group (which means that each 
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);  
 

ii. The entity is an associate or joint venture of the charity (or an associate or joint 
venture of a member of a group of which the charity is a member) and vice versa; 
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iii. The entity and the charity are joint ventures of the same third party;  
 

iv. The entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the charity is an associate of the 
third entity and vice versa;  
 

v. The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); and  
 

vi. A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a 
governing board member, trustee or member of the key management personnel of 
the entity (or of a parent of the entity). 
 

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected 
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the charity and 
include:  
 
a.  That person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;  
b.  Children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and  
c.  Dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.  
 
The council members, or people connected with them, have not received remuneration, or 
other benefits, from the Board for which they are responsible, or from institutions 
connected with the Board. 
 
There is no claim by the council members for services provided to the Board, either by 
reimbursement to the council members or by providing the council members with an 
allowance or by direct payment to a third party. 
 
Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for 
planning, directly and controlling the activities of Board. The Board is managed by a 
Committee of Management elected at the Annual General Meeting with the powers to 
administer, plan and manage the various activities and revenue of the Board. 
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6. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENT 
 

2019 2018
S$ S$

Deposits 191,131          41,132            
Prepayment 518                 518                 

191,649          41,650            

 
 

7. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 
 
2019 Cash in bank              Cash in hand              Total

S$ S$ S$
Central Sikh Gurdwara Board 593,541             -                        593,541             
Sikh Centre 5,797                 -                        5,797                 
Central Sikh Temple 24,105               2,000                 26,105               
Silat Road Sikh Temple 38,580               3,000                 41,580               

662,023             5,000                 667,023             
Fixed deposits
Central Sikh Gurdwara Board 2,565,322          -                    2,565,322          

3,227,345          5,000                 3,232,345          

2018 S$ S$ S$
Central Sikh Gurdwara Board 642,324             -                        642,324             
Sikh Centre 6,084                 -                        6,084                 
Central Sikh Temple 13,808               2,000                 15,808               
Silat Road Sikh Temple 27,156               3,000                 30,156               

689,372             5,000                 694,372             
Fixed deposits
Central Sikh Gurdwara Board 2,029,898          -                    2,029,898          

2,719,270          5,000                 2,724,270          

The fixed deposits are with 3 to 6 months maturity periods and with interest rates between 1.40% 
and 1.75% per annum. 
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8. BUILDING FUND 
 

2019 2018
S$ S$

At 1 January 10,421,106  10,813,808  
Add : Building fund donations 212,788       4,820           
Less : Depreciation
   Freehold building (193,065)      (193,065)      
   Leasehold building (204,457)      (204,457)      
At 31 December 10,236,372  10,421,106  

 
 

9. BURSARY FUND 
 

2019 2018
S$ S$

At 1 January 15,000         15,000         
Add : Bursary fund donations 10,000         -               
At 31 December 25,000         15,000         

 
 

10. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 
 

2019 2018
S$ S$

Accrued expenses 153,007         135,087         
Sundry payables 1,387             1,387             

154,394         136,474         
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11. INCOME AND EXPENSES 
 

2019 Note * CSGB * CST * SRST Total
S$ S$ S$ S$

INCOME
Donations and offerings 34,962        998,283      1,678,861   2,712,106   
Other income

Revenue derived from activities 82,370        2,265          10,355        94,990        
Interest from fixed bank deposit 38,443        -              -              38,443        
Interest from bank balance 20               20               33               73               
Other revenue 6,526          -              79,677        86,203        

127,359      2,285          90,065        219,709      

TOTAL INCOME 162,321      1,000,568   1,768,926   2,931,815   

DIRECT EXPENSES
  Bhai Maharaj Documentary 75,664        -              -              75,664        
  Community kitchen expenses -              314,749      403,629      718,378      
  Contribution to Ashram Halfway House 2,250          -              -              2,250          
  Contributions to Hindu Endowment Board 750             -              -              750             
  Contribution to Sikh Institution 5,227          25,000        25,000        55,227        
  Contributions to Sikh Welfare Council 18,000        -              -              18,000        

  Contributions to NUS - Sikh Studies VP 55,848        -              -              55,848        
  Contributions to BMS 30,000        -              -              30,000        
  Education grants 2,000          -              -              2,000          
  Honorarium -              3,015          6,563          9,578          
  Religious celebrations 5,585          44,139        28,699        78,423        
  Sikh Centre activites -              600             19,341        19,941        

225,324      387,503      483,232      1,096,059   

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
  Staff and related costs 12 111,584      104,236      260,746      476,566      

DEPRECIATION 5 17,053        62,662        33,902        113,617      

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
  Accounting fee 6,300          -              -              6,300          
  Advertisment -              5,593          3,028          8,621          
  Audit fee 6,700          -              -              6,700          
  Bank charges 518             2,455          1,079          4,052          
  Communication cost 12,446        2,814          6,661          21,921        
  Insurance 19,078        -              -              19,078        
  Maintenance 2,801          100,505      138,003      241,309      
  Medical 459             128             673             1,260          
  Miscellaneous expenses 13,081        8,098          8,527          29,706        
  Newspapers, periodicals and books 37               298             7,474          7,809          
  Postage and courier 27               -              2,004          2,031          
  Printing, postage and stationary 11,055        1,448          21,815        34,318        
  Professional fees -              -              1,650          1,650          
  Small tools and equipment -              875             4,495          5,370          
  Transport and travelling 747             29               1,200          1,976          
  Utilities 8,153          158,714      204,231      371,098      

81,402        280,957      400,840      763,199      

TOTAL EXPENSES 435,363      835,358      1,178,720   2,449,441   

SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (273,042)     165,210      590,206      482,374      

  Contribution to Singapore Sikh 
    Education Foundation 30,000        -              -              30,000        

 
 
*CSGB – Central Sikh Gurdwara Board; CST – Central Sikh Temple; SRST – Silat Road Sikh Temple and Sikh Centre.
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At 31 December 25,000         15,000         

 
 

10. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 
 

2019 2018
S$ S$

Accrued expenses 153,007         135,087         
Sundry payables 1,387             1,387             

154,394         136,474         
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11. INCOME AND EXPENSES 
 

2019 Note * CSGB * CST * SRST Total
S$ S$ S$ S$

INCOME
Donations and offerings 34,962        998,283      1,678,861   2,712,106   
Other income

Revenue derived from activities 82,370        2,265          10,355        94,990        
Interest from fixed bank deposit 38,443        -              -              38,443        
Interest from bank balance 20               20               33               73               
Other revenue 6,526          -              79,677        86,203        

127,359      2,285          90,065        219,709      

TOTAL INCOME 162,321      1,000,568   1,768,926   2,931,815   

DIRECT EXPENSES
  Bhai Maharaj Documentary 75,664        -              -              75,664        
  Community kitchen expenses -              314,749      403,629      718,378      
  Contribution to Ashram Halfway House 2,250          -              -              2,250          
  Contributions to Hindu Endowment Board 750             -              -              750             
  Contribution to Sikh Institution 5,227          25,000        25,000        55,227        
  Contributions to Sikh Welfare Council 18,000        -              -              18,000        

  Contributions to NUS - Sikh Studies VP 55,848        -              -              55,848        
  Contributions to BMS 30,000        -              -              30,000        
  Education grants 2,000          -              -              2,000          
  Honorarium -              3,015          6,563          9,578          
  Religious celebrations 5,585          44,139        28,699        78,423        
  Sikh Centre activites -              600             19,341        19,941        

225,324      387,503      483,232      1,096,059   

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
  Staff and related costs 12 111,584      104,236      260,746      476,566      

DEPRECIATION 5 17,053        62,662        33,902        113,617      

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
  Accounting fee 6,300          -              -              6,300          
  Advertisment -              5,593          3,028          8,621          
  Audit fee 6,700          -              -              6,700          
  Bank charges 518             2,455          1,079          4,052          
  Communication cost 12,446        2,814          6,661          21,921        
  Insurance 19,078        -              -              19,078        
  Maintenance 2,801          100,505      138,003      241,309      
  Medical 459             128             673             1,260          
  Miscellaneous expenses 13,081        8,098          8,527          29,706        
  Newspapers, periodicals and books 37               298             7,474          7,809          
  Postage and courier 27               -              2,004          2,031          
  Printing, postage and stationary 11,055        1,448          21,815        34,318        
  Professional fees -              -              1,650          1,650          
  Small tools and equipment -              875             4,495          5,370          
  Transport and travelling 747             29               1,200          1,976          
  Utilities 8,153          158,714      204,231      371,098      

81,402        280,957      400,840      763,199      

TOTAL EXPENSES 435,363      835,358      1,178,720   2,449,441   

SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (273,042)     165,210      590,206      482,374      

  Contribution to Singapore Sikh 
    Education Foundation 30,000        -              -              30,000        

 
 
*CSGB – Central Sikh Gurdwara Board; CST – Central Sikh Temple; SRST – Silat Road Sikh Temple and Sikh Centre.
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11.   INCOME AND EXPENSES (CON’T) 
 

2018 Note * CSGB * CST * SRST Total
S$ S$ S$ S$

INCOME
Donations and offerings 21,762        856,884      1,662,229   2,540,875   
Other income

Revenue derived from activities 450             -              67,051        67,501        
Interest from fixed bank deposit 21,646        -              -              21,646        
Interest from bank balance 186             14               42               242             
Other revenue 14,572        4,032          11,058        29,662        

36,854        4,046          78,151        119,051      

TOTAL INCOME 58,616        860,930      1,740,380   2,659,926   

DIRECT EXPENSES
  Community kitchen expenses (1,175)         264,017      395,439      658,281      
  Contribution to Ashram Halfway House 1,250          -              -              1,250          
  Contributions to Hindu Endowment Board 2,500          -              -              2,500          
  Contribution to Naam Ras 15,000        -              -              15,000        
  Contribution to Sikj Institution 6,839          -              -              6,839          
  Contributions to Sikh Welfare Council 38,000        -              -              38,000        

  Honorarium -              833             6,107          6,940          
  Non Sikhi Inst Donations 5,080          1,082          1,000          7,162          
  Religious celebrations -              -              8,130          8,130          
  Sikh Centre activites 1,275          41,336        22,712        65,323        

98,769        307,268      433,388      839,425      

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
  Staff and related costs 12 125,526      103,533      262,559      491,618      

DEPRECIATION 5 15,117        35,990        45,067        96,174        

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
  Accounting fee 1,552          750             1,500          3,802          
  Advertisment 2,353          5,323          -              7,676          
  Audit fee 7,500          -              -              7,500          
  Bank charges 358             2,122          879             3,359          
  Communication cost 5,251          4,149          7,002          16,402        
  First aid supplies and equipment -              187             195             382             
  Insurance 19,413        -              (4,130)         15,283        
  Maintenance 3,365          144,322      157,302      304,989      
  Medical 1,078          220             695             1,993          
  Miscellaneous expenses 8,561          5,984          9,175          23,720        
  Newspapers, periodicals and books 3,151          1,675          1,002          5,828          
  Postage and courier 4,106          -              18               4,124          
  Printing, postage and stationary 5,270          8,546          10,456        24,272        
  Professional fees 3,659          -              -              3,659          
  Small tools and equipment 29               5,144          2,514          7,687          
  Transport and travelling 708             239             985             1,932          
  Utilities -              142,491      216,629      359,120      

66,354        321,152      404,222      791,728      

TOTAL EXPENSES 305,766      767,943      1,145,236   2,218,945   

SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (247,150)     92,987        595,144      440,981      

  Contribution to Singapore Sikh 
    Education Foundation 30,000        -              -              30,000        

 
*CSGB – Central Sikh Gurdwara Board; CST – Central Sikh Temple; SRST – Silat Road Sikh Temple and Sikh Centre. 
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12. STAFF COST 
 

2019 2018
S$ S$

Remuneration to other staffs
  Gross salary and allowances 452,242         468,831         
  Employers CPF contributions 24,324           22,787           

476,566         491,618         

Number of staff (under payroll) - non office bearers
Other staffs (below $100,000) 34                  30                  

 
 

13. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The main risks arising from the Board’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, 
fair value and market risk (interest rate risk) and they are summarised below: 

 
Categories of financial instruments at 31 December

2019 2018
Financial assets S$ S$
Deposits 191,649        41,650          
Other receivables 4,894            1,874            
Cash and bank balances 3,232,345     2,724,270     
Financial assets at amortised cost 3,428,888     2,767,794     

Financial liabilities
Other payables and accruals 154,394        136,474        
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 154,394        136,474        

 
a. Credit risk    
 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an 
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Board’s credit risk is 
primarily attributable to its receivables and cash and bank balances.  
 
The Board and the Temples are not exposed to substantial credit risk as cash is held with 
reputable financial institutions of good standing. No other financial assets carry a significant 
exposure to credit risk. 
 

b. Liquidity risk 
 

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Board monitors and maintains an adequate level 
of cash and bank balances to fund the Board and the Temples various activities. 
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11.   INCOME AND EXPENSES (CON’T) 
 

2018 Note * CSGB * CST * SRST Total
S$ S$ S$ S$

INCOME
Donations and offerings 21,762        856,884      1,662,229   2,540,875   
Other income

Revenue derived from activities 450             -              67,051        67,501        
Interest from fixed bank deposit 21,646        -              -              21,646        
Interest from bank balance 186             14               42               242             
Other revenue 14,572        4,032          11,058        29,662        

36,854        4,046          78,151        119,051      

TOTAL INCOME 58,616        860,930      1,740,380   2,659,926   

DIRECT EXPENSES
  Community kitchen expenses (1,175)         264,017      395,439      658,281      
  Contribution to Ashram Halfway House 1,250          -              -              1,250          
  Contributions to Hindu Endowment Board 2,500          -              -              2,500          
  Contribution to Naam Ras 15,000        -              -              15,000        
  Contribution to Sikj Institution 6,839          -              -              6,839          
  Contributions to Sikh Welfare Council 38,000        -              -              38,000        

  Honorarium -              833             6,107          6,940          
  Non Sikhi Inst Donations 5,080          1,082          1,000          7,162          
  Religious celebrations -              -              8,130          8,130          
  Sikh Centre activites 1,275          41,336        22,712        65,323        

98,769        307,268      433,388      839,425      

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
  Staff and related costs 12 125,526      103,533      262,559      491,618      

DEPRECIATION 5 15,117        35,990        45,067        96,174        

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
  Accounting fee 1,552          750             1,500          3,802          
  Advertisment 2,353          5,323          -              7,676          
  Audit fee 7,500          -              -              7,500          
  Bank charges 358             2,122          879             3,359          
  Communication cost 5,251          4,149          7,002          16,402        
  First aid supplies and equipment -              187             195             382             
  Insurance 19,413        -              (4,130)         15,283        
  Maintenance 3,365          144,322      157,302      304,989      
  Medical 1,078          220             695             1,993          
  Miscellaneous expenses 8,561          5,984          9,175          23,720        
  Newspapers, periodicals and books 3,151          1,675          1,002          5,828          
  Postage and courier 4,106          -              18               4,124          
  Printing, postage and stationary 5,270          8,546          10,456        24,272        
  Professional fees 3,659          -              -              3,659          
  Small tools and equipment 29               5,144          2,514          7,687          
  Transport and travelling 708             239             985             1,932          
  Utilities -              142,491      216,629      359,120      

66,354        321,152      404,222      791,728      

TOTAL EXPENSES 305,766      767,943      1,145,236   2,218,945   

SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (247,150)     92,987        595,144      440,981      

  Contribution to Singapore Sikh 
    Education Foundation 30,000        -              -              30,000        

 
*CSGB – Central Sikh Gurdwara Board; CST – Central Sikh Temple; SRST – Silat Road Sikh Temple and Sikh Centre. 
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12. STAFF COST 
 

2019 2018
S$ S$

Remuneration to other staffs
  Gross salary and allowances 452,242         468,831         
  Employers CPF contributions 24,324           22,787           

476,566         491,618         

Number of staff (under payroll) - non office bearers
Other staffs (below $100,000) 34                  30                  

 
 

13. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The main risks arising from the Board’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, 
fair value and market risk (interest rate risk) and they are summarised below: 

 
Categories of financial instruments at 31 December

2019 2018
Financial assets S$ S$
Deposits 191,649        41,650          
Other receivables 4,894            1,874            
Cash and bank balances 3,232,345     2,724,270     
Financial assets at amortised cost 3,428,888     2,767,794     

Financial liabilities
Other payables and accruals 154,394        136,474        
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 154,394        136,474        

 
a. Credit risk    
 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an 
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Board’s credit risk is 
primarily attributable to its receivables and cash and bank balances.  
 
The Board and the Temples are not exposed to substantial credit risk as cash is held with 
reputable financial institutions of good standing. No other financial assets carry a significant 
exposure to credit risk. 
 

b. Liquidity risk 
 

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Board monitors and maintains an adequate level 
of cash and bank balances to fund the Board and the Temples various activities. 
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On demand/ 2 to 5 More than
within 1 year years 5 years Total

31 December 2019 S$ S$ S$ S$
Other payables and accruals 154,394       -                   -                   154,394       

154,394       -                   -                   154,394       

31 December 2018 S$ S$ S$ S$
Other payables and accruals 136,474       -                   -                   136,474       

136,474       -                   -                   136,474       

 

c. Fair value 
 

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances, other receivables and payables, 
approximate their respective fair values due to the relative short term maturity of these 
financial instruments.  
 
In view of the above, the Board do not anticipate that the carrying amounts recorded at 
statement of financial position date would be significantly different from the values that 
would eventual be received or settled. 
 

d. Interest rate risk 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to 
changes in market interest rates. 
 
The Board’s exposure to movements in market interest rates relates to its interest-bearing 
fixed deposits and bank balances placed with licensed banks. 
 
The interest rates of the fixed deposits are disclosed in Note 7. 
 
 

14. RESERVE POLICY 
 

The Board has no policy on reserves which are required to be set aside to provide financial 
stability and the means for the development of the Board’s principal activities. 

 

 

 
 
 
 

CENTRAL SIKH GURDWARA BOARD 
AND TEMPLES UNDER ITS MANAGEMENT 

(Registered in the Republic of Singapore under the Central Sikh Gurdwara Board Act, 
Chapter 357) 

(UEN: T09CC0002F) 
 
 
 

ANNUAL REPORT  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTENTS    PAGES 
 
 
Statement by Officials of the Board            1    
 
 
Independent Auditors’ Report       2 - 3 
  
 
Statement of Financial Position            4 
  
 
Statement of Comprehensive Income           5              
 
 
Statement of Changes in Funds            6 
       
 
Statement of Cash Flows            7 
 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements                    8 - 24                      
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CSGB ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 101

Central Sikh Gurdwara Board      Notes to the Financial Statements  
Annual Report                                                                                                           31 December 2019 
 
 
 

                                                                                                                                                                               
Page 22 

On demand/ 2 to 5 More than
within 1 year years 5 years Total

31 December 2019 S$ S$ S$ S$
Other payables and accruals 154,394       -                   -                   154,394       

154,394       -                   -                   154,394       

31 December 2018 S$ S$ S$ S$
Other payables and accruals 136,474       -                   -                   136,474       

136,474       -                   -                   136,474       

 

c. Fair value 
 

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances, other receivables and payables, 
approximate their respective fair values due to the relative short term maturity of these 
financial instruments.  
 
In view of the above, the Board do not anticipate that the carrying amounts recorded at 
statement of financial position date would be significantly different from the values that 
would eventual be received or settled. 
 

d. Interest rate risk 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to 
changes in market interest rates. 
 
The Board’s exposure to movements in market interest rates relates to its interest-bearing 
fixed deposits and bank balances placed with licensed banks. 
 
The interest rates of the fixed deposits are disclosed in Note 7. 
 
 

14. RESERVE POLICY 
 

The Board has no policy on reserves which are required to be set aside to provide financial 
stability and the means for the development of the Board’s principal activities. 
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 Note 2020 2019
S$ S$

ASSETS
Non current assets
  Freehold buildings 3 5,318,597      5,511,662      
  Construction in progress 3 583,209         58,751           
  Leasehold buildings 4 5,404,388      5,608,845      
  Plant and equipment 5 147,575         124,344         

11,453,769    11,303,602    

Current assets
  Deposits and prepayment 6 52,629           191,649         
  Advances for purchase -                     4,894             
  Other debtors 6,069             -                     
  Cash and bank balances 7 3,783,716      3,232,345      

3,842,414      3,428,888      

Total assets 15,296,183    14,732,490    

FUNDS AND LIABILITY
Funds
  Accumulated fund 4,512,141      4,316,724      
  Building fund 8 10,630,610    10,236,372    
  Bursary fund 9 25,000           25,000           
Total funds 15,167,751    14,578,096    

Current liability
  Other payables and accruals 10 128,432         154,394         

128,432         154,394         

Total funds and liability 15,296,183    14,732,490    

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

The notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with this statement.
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Note 2020 2019 2020 2019
S$ S$ S$ S$

Revenue 11 1,669,817  2,712,106  791,760      212,788      
Other income 11 163,777     219,709     -              -              

1,833,594  2,931,815  791,760      212,788      
Less : Expenses
Direct expenses 11 437,830     1,096,059  -              -              
Employee benefits expenses 11 561,056     476,566     -              -              
Depreciation 11 92,099       113,617     397,522      397,522      
Other operating expenses 11 547,192     763,199     -              -              

1,638,177  2,449,441  397,522      397,522      

Surplus / (deficit) for the year 195,417     482,374     394,238      (184,734)     

  Accumulated fund Building fund

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with this statement. 
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 Note 2020 2019
S$ S$

ASSETS
Non current assets
  Freehold buildings 3 5,318,597      5,511,662      
  Construction in progress 3 583,209         58,751           
  Leasehold buildings 4 5,404,388      5,608,845      
  Plant and equipment 5 147,575         124,344         

11,453,769    11,303,602    

Current assets
  Deposits and prepayment 6 52,629           191,649         
  Advances for purchase -                     4,894             
  Other debtors 6,069             -                     
  Cash and bank balances 7 3,783,716      3,232,345      

3,842,414      3,428,888      

Total assets 15,296,183    14,732,490    

FUNDS AND LIABILITY
Funds
  Accumulated fund 4,512,141      4,316,724      
  Building fund 8 10,630,610    10,236,372    
  Bursary fund 9 25,000           25,000           
Total funds 15,167,751    14,578,096    

Current liability
  Other payables and accruals 10 128,432         154,394         

128,432         154,394         

Total funds and liability 15,296,183    14,732,490    

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

The notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with this statement.
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Note 2020 2019 2020 2019
S$ S$ S$ S$

Revenue 11 1,669,817  2,712,106  791,760      212,788      
Other income 11 163,777     219,709     -              -              

1,833,594  2,931,815  791,760      212,788      
Less : Expenses
Direct expenses 11 437,830     1,096,059  -              -              
Employee benefits expenses 11 561,056     476,566     -              -              
Depreciation 11 92,099       113,617     397,522      397,522      
Other operating expenses 11 547,192     763,199     -              -              

1,638,177  2,449,441  397,522      397,522      

Surplus / (deficit) for the year 195,417     482,374     394,238      (184,734)     

  Accumulated fund Building fund

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with this statement. 
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UNRESTRICTED 
FUND

Accumulated fund Building Bursary TOTAL
fund fund fund FUNDS
S$ S$ S$ S$

Balance at 1 January 2019 3,834,350        10,421,106       15,000          14,270,456    

Surplus / (deficit) for the financial year 482,374           (184,734)          10,000          307,640         

Balance at 31 December 2019 4,316,724        10,236,372       25,000          14,578,096    

Surplus for the financial year 195,417           394,238            -                   589,655         

Balance at 31 December 2020 4,512,141        10,630,610       25,000          15,167,751    

DESIGNATED FUNDS

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with this statement
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Note 2020 2019

S$ S$
Operating activities
Surplus of income over expenditure 195,417          482,374          
Adjustments for:
 Depreciation of plant and equipment 3 92,099            113,617          
 Building fund donation received 8 791,760          212,788          
 Bursary fund donation received 9 -                  10,000            
 Interest income (24,919)           (38,517)           
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 1,054,357       780,262          
Changes in operating receivables 137,845          (153,020)         
Changes in operating payables (25,962)           17,920            
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,166,240       645,162          

Investing activities
Purchase of plant and equipment 3 (115,330)         (148,291)         
Payment for construction work in progress 3 (524,458)         (27,313)           
Interest received 24,919            38,517            
Net cash (used in) investing activities (614,869)         (137,087)         

Net increase in cash and bank balances 551,371          508,075          
Cash and bank balances at beginning of year 3,232,345       2,724,270       
Cash and bank balances at end of year 7 3,783,716       3,232,345       
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with this statement.



CSGB ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 109

Central Sikh Gurdwara Board   Statement of Changes in Funds 
Annual Report  for the year ended 31 December 2020 
 

                                                                                                                                                                               
Page 6 

 
 

UNRESTRICTED 
FUND

Accumulated fund Building Bursary TOTAL
fund fund fund FUNDS
S$ S$ S$ S$

Balance at 1 January 2019 3,834,350        10,421,106       15,000          14,270,456    

Surplus / (deficit) for the financial year 482,374           (184,734)          10,000          307,640         

Balance at 31 December 2019 4,316,724        10,236,372       25,000          14,578,096    

Surplus for the financial year 195,417           394,238            -                   589,655         

Balance at 31 December 2020 4,512,141        10,630,610       25,000          15,167,751    

DESIGNATED FUNDS

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with this statement
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Note 2020 2019

S$ S$
Operating activities
Surplus of income over expenditure 195,417          482,374          
Adjustments for:
 Depreciation of plant and equipment 3 92,099            113,617          
 Building fund donation received 8 791,760          212,788          
 Bursary fund donation received 9 -                  10,000            
 Interest income (24,919)           (38,517)           
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 1,054,357       780,262          
Changes in operating receivables 137,845          (153,020)         
Changes in operating payables (25,962)           17,920            
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,166,240       645,162          

Investing activities
Purchase of plant and equipment 3 (115,330)         (148,291)         
Payment for construction work in progress 3 (524,458)         (27,313)           
Interest received 24,919            38,517            
Net cash (used in) investing activities (614,869)         (137,087)         

Net increase in cash and bank balances 551,371          508,075          
Cash and bank balances at beginning of year 3,232,345       2,724,270       
Cash and bank balances at end of year 7 3,783,716       3,232,345       
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with this statement.
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These notes form an integral part and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 
statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income and statements of cash flows. 
 
 
1. GENERAL INFORMATION  
 

The Central Sikh Gurdwara Board (the “Board”) is an entity constituted in 1981 pursuant to 
the Central Sikh Gurdwara Board, Chapter 357, an Act of Parliament. The Board is also 
registered under the Societies Act, Chapter 311, and under the Charities Act Chapter 37 (UEN: 
T09CC0002F). 
 
The registered office and place of activity of the Board is at 9 Jalan Bukit Merah Singapore 
169543. 
 
The principal activities of the Board are: 
 
a) To acquire, build and maintain properties including temples for purposes relating to the 

Sikh religion or on trust for religious or charitable purposes for the benefit of persons 
professing the Sikh religion; and 

 
b) To regulate the conduct of religious services and other ceremonies customary among the 

followers of the Sikh religion. 
  
The Board manages; 
 

a) the Central Sikh Temple located at 2 Towner Road Singapore 327804; and 
 

b) the Silat Road Sikh Temple and Sikh Centre are located at 8 and 9 Jalan Bukit Merah 
Singapore 169543. 

 
The Officials of Board have authorised the financial statements for issue in accordance with 
the date of the Statement by Officials of the Board. 
  
 

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 

a. Preparation of financial statements 
 

The financial statement of the Board has been drawn up in accordance with applicable 
Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRS”) and each applicable of a FRS, effective 
for the financial year in the preparation of the financial statements. 

 

Adoption of new and revised standards effective in 2020  
 

In the current financial year, the Board have adopted all the new and revised FRS and 
Interpretations of FRS (“INT FRS”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020, as follows; 
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Amendments to; 
• FRS 1 Presentation of financial statements and FRS 8 Accounting policies, changes in 

accounting estimates and errors; Definition of Material 
 

• FRS 109 Financial Instruments, FRS 39 Financial instruments: recognition and 
measurement and FRS 107 Financial instruments: recognition and measurement: 
Disclosures: Interest Rate Benchmark Reforms 

 
The adoption of these standards did not result in changes to the Board’s accounting 
policies and had no material effect on the amounts reported for the current or prior 
years. 

 
FRS and INT FRS issued but not yet effective  
 
At the date of authorisation of these statements, the following FRS and INT FRS that are 
relevant to the Board were issued but not effective: 

 
Description Effective date 

(annual periods beginning on or after) 
 

• Amendment to FRS 116 Leases: Covid 19 
related rent concessions 

1 June 2020 

• Amendment to FRS 16 Property, Plant and 
Equipment 

1 January 2022 

• Amendment to FRS 37 Provision, Contingent 
and Contingent assets 

• Annual improvement to FRS’s 2018-2020 

 
1 January 2022 
1 January 2022 

• Amendments to FRS 1 Presentation of financial 
statements: Classification of liabilities as current 
or Non-current 

1 January 2023 

 
The directors expect that the adoption of the standards above will have no material 
impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application. 
 
Basis of measurement 

 
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention 
except as disclosed in the accounting policies below. 
 
Functional and presentation currency 
 
The Board presents its statements in Singapore Dollars (“S$”), which is also its 
functional currency. 
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These notes form an integral part and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 
statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income and statements of cash flows. 
 
 
1. GENERAL INFORMATION  
 

The Central Sikh Gurdwara Board (the “Board”) is an entity constituted in 1981 pursuant to 
the Central Sikh Gurdwara Board, Chapter 357, an Act of Parliament. The Board is also 
registered under the Societies Act, Chapter 311, and under the Charities Act Chapter 37 (UEN: 
T09CC0002F). 
 
The registered office and place of activity of the Board is at 9 Jalan Bukit Merah Singapore 
169543. 
 
The principal activities of the Board are: 
 
a) To acquire, build and maintain properties including temples for purposes relating to the 

Sikh religion or on trust for religious or charitable purposes for the benefit of persons 
professing the Sikh religion; and 

 
b) To regulate the conduct of religious services and other ceremonies customary among the 

followers of the Sikh religion. 
  
The Board manages; 
 

a) the Central Sikh Temple located at 2 Towner Road Singapore 327804; and 
 

b) the Silat Road Sikh Temple and Sikh Centre are located at 8 and 9 Jalan Bukit Merah 
Singapore 169543. 

 
The Officials of Board have authorised the financial statements for issue in accordance with 
the date of the Statement by Officials of the Board. 
  
 

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 

a. Preparation of financial statements 
 

The financial statement of the Board has been drawn up in accordance with applicable 
Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRS”) and each applicable of a FRS, effective 
for the financial year in the preparation of the financial statements. 

 

Adoption of new and revised standards effective in 2020  
 

In the current financial year, the Board have adopted all the new and revised FRS and 
Interpretations of FRS (“INT FRS”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020, as follows; 
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Amendments to; 
• FRS 1 Presentation of financial statements and FRS 8 Accounting policies, changes in 

accounting estimates and errors; Definition of Material 
 

• FRS 109 Financial Instruments, FRS 39 Financial instruments: recognition and 
measurement and FRS 107 Financial instruments: recognition and measurement: 
Disclosures: Interest Rate Benchmark Reforms 

 
The adoption of these standards did not result in changes to the Board’s accounting 
policies and had no material effect on the amounts reported for the current or prior 
years. 

 
FRS and INT FRS issued but not yet effective  
 
At the date of authorisation of these statements, the following FRS and INT FRS that are 
relevant to the Board were issued but not effective: 

 
Description Effective date 

(annual periods beginning on or after) 
 

• Amendment to FRS 116 Leases: Covid 19 
related rent concessions 

1 June 2020 

• Amendment to FRS 16 Property, Plant and 
Equipment 

1 January 2022 

• Amendment to FRS 37 Provision, Contingent 
and Contingent assets 

• Annual improvement to FRS’s 2018-2020 

 
1 January 2022 
1 January 2022 

• Amendments to FRS 1 Presentation of financial 
statements: Classification of liabilities as current 
or Non-current 

1 January 2023 

 
The directors expect that the adoption of the standards above will have no material 
impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application. 
 
Basis of measurement 

 
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention 
except as disclosed in the accounting policies below. 
 
Functional and presentation currency 
 
The Board presents its statements in Singapore Dollars (“S$”), which is also its 
functional currency. 
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Significant accounting estimates and judgements 
 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with FRSs requires the use of 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the financial period. Although these 
estimates are based on Board’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual 
results may differ from those estimates. 
 
The critical accounting estimates and assumptions used and area involving a high degree 
of judgements are described below: 
 
Depreciation of building, plant and equipment 
 

Building, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated 
useful life. Board’s management estimates the depreciation rate of building, plant and 
equipment to be within 3 to 50 years. The carrying amount of the Board’s building, plant 
and equipment are disclosed in Note 3, 4 and 5. 
 
Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments could impact the 
economic useful life and the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation 
charges could be revised. 
 

b.  Building, plant and equipment and depreciation  
 

Items of building, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 
   
Depreciation is calculated on a monthly basis so as to write off the cost of the building, 
plant and equipment on the straight-line method over their expected useful life. The rates 
adopted are as follows:  
 
Air-conditioners    3 years 
Furniture and fittings     3 years  
Machinery    3 years  
Renovation    3 years 
Office and temple equipment     3 years 
Lift  10 years 
Freehold buildings  50 years 
Leasehold buildings    50 years 
 
Fully depreciated building, plant and equipment are retained in the financial statements 
until they are no longer in use and no further charge for depreciation is made in respect of 
these building, plant and equipment.  
 
The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year end to 
ensure that the method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates 
and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the 
items of building, plant and equipment. 
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Gains or losses from disposal of building, plant and equipment are determined as the 
difference between the estimated net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset and are recognised in the profit and loss account on disposal or retirement. 
 

c.  Financial assets 
 

Initial recognition 
 
Financial instruments are measured at cost on initial recognition, whilst transaction costs 
are recognised as expenditure as they are incurred. 
 
Prepayments are initially recognised at the amount paid in advance for the economic 
resources expected to be received in the future.  

 
Subsequent measurement 
 
After initial recognition, other receivables excluding prepayments are measured at cost 
less any accumulated impairment losses. Prepayments are measured at the amount paid 
less the economic resources received or consumed during the financial year.  
 
Derecognition  
 
A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from 
the asset has expired or are transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership have been transferred. 

 
d.   Cash and bank balances 

 
Cash and bank balances include cash on hand and deposits with financial institutions. 

 
e. Financial liabilities 
 

Other payables excluding accruals are recognised at their transaction price, excluding 
transaction costs, if any, both at initial recognition and at subsequent measurement. 
Transaction costs are recognised as expenditure in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income as incurred. 
 
Accruals are recognised at the best estimate of the amount payable.  
 

f.  Income recognition 
 

Donations are recorded on the basis of receipts issued.  
 
Offerings are recognised upon the first recording of such collections when the safes are 
periodically opened. 
 
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest 
method. 
 
All expenditures are recognised on an accrual basis. 
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Significant accounting estimates and judgements 
 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with FRSs requires the use of 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the financial period. Although these 
estimates are based on Board’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual 
results may differ from those estimates. 
 
The critical accounting estimates and assumptions used and area involving a high degree 
of judgements are described below: 
 
Depreciation of building, plant and equipment 
 

Building, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated 
useful life. Board’s management estimates the depreciation rate of building, plant and 
equipment to be within 3 to 50 years. The carrying amount of the Board’s building, plant 
and equipment are disclosed in Note 3, 4 and 5. 
 
Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments could impact the 
economic useful life and the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation 
charges could be revised. 
 

b.  Building, plant and equipment and depreciation  
 

Items of building, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 
   
Depreciation is calculated on a monthly basis so as to write off the cost of the building, 
plant and equipment on the straight-line method over their expected useful life. The rates 
adopted are as follows:  
 
Air-conditioners    3 years 
Furniture and fittings     3 years  
Machinery    3 years  
Renovation    3 years 
Office and temple equipment     3 years 
Lift  10 years 
Freehold buildings  50 years 
Leasehold buildings    50 years 
 
Fully depreciated building, plant and equipment are retained in the financial statements 
until they are no longer in use and no further charge for depreciation is made in respect of 
these building, plant and equipment.  
 
The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year end to 
ensure that the method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates 
and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the 
items of building, plant and equipment. 
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Gains or losses from disposal of building, plant and equipment are determined as the 
difference between the estimated net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset and are recognised in the profit and loss account on disposal or retirement. 
 

c.  Financial assets 
 

Initial recognition 
 
Financial instruments are measured at cost on initial recognition, whilst transaction costs 
are recognised as expenditure as they are incurred. 
 
Prepayments are initially recognised at the amount paid in advance for the economic 
resources expected to be received in the future.  

 
Subsequent measurement 
 
After initial recognition, other receivables excluding prepayments are measured at cost 
less any accumulated impairment losses. Prepayments are measured at the amount paid 
less the economic resources received or consumed during the financial year.  
 
Derecognition  
 
A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from 
the asset has expired or are transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership have been transferred. 

 
d.   Cash and bank balances 

 
Cash and bank balances include cash on hand and deposits with financial institutions. 

 
e. Financial liabilities 
 

Other payables excluding accruals are recognised at their transaction price, excluding 
transaction costs, if any, both at initial recognition and at subsequent measurement. 
Transaction costs are recognised as expenditure in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income as incurred. 
 
Accruals are recognised at the best estimate of the amount payable.  
 

f.  Income recognition 
 

Donations are recorded on the basis of receipts issued.  
 
Offerings are recognised upon the first recording of such collections when the safes are 
periodically opened. 
 
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest 
method. 
 
All expenditures are recognised on an accrual basis. 
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Grants are received from the Government of Singapore and its related agencies. The 
income recognise at the point of cash received from the Government 

 
Jobs support scheme provides wage support to employers to help them retain their local 
employees during this period of economic uncertainty. Employers who have made CPF 
Contributions for their local employees will qualify for the pay-outs under the scheme. 
 

g.  Funds 
 

General funds 
 
General funds are also commonly known as accumulated or unrestricted funds. The Board 
is free to use such funds for both capital and revenue expenditure without having to take 
into account of any restrictions imposed. 
 
Designated funds 
 
Designated funds are funds earmarked by the Board itself for specific purposes or to meet 
future commitments. 
 
Building Fund is a designated fund to be used for the construction of building extension 
and renovation. 
 
Restricted funds 
 
Restricted funds are funds where specific conditions which are legally binding on the 
trustees as to how the funds should be used. The restriction has been externally imposed, 
usually by the person providing the fund.  
 
The funds balances, unless specifically indicated, are not represented by any specific 
assets but are represented by all assets of the Board. 
 
The Board has no restricted funds. 
 

h.   Employment benefits 
 

Defined Contribution Plans 
 
The Board makes contribution to the Central Provident Fund (“CPF”), scheme in 
Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme. The contributions are recognised as an 
expense in the period in which the related service is performed. 
 
Employee leave entitlements  
 
Employee annual leave entitlements are recognised when they accrue to employees. 
Accrual, if material, is made for the unconsumed leave as a result of services rendered by 
employees up to the reporting date. 
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i.  Taxation 
 
 The Board is registered as a charity under the Charities Act and it is exempted from tax. 

 
j.  Related parties 

 
                 Related parties include all of the following:  

 
a. A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a charity (meaning 

the Board) if that person:  
 

i. Has control or joint control over the charity;  
 
ii. Has significant influence over the charity; or  
 
iii. A governing board member, trustee or member of the key management personnel 

of the charity or of a parent of the charity. 
 

b. An entity is related to the charity if any of the following conditions applies:  
 

i. The entity and the charity are members of the same group (which means that 
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);  

 
ii. The entity is an associate or joint venture of the charity (or an associate or joint 

venture of a member of a group of which the charity is a member) and vice 
versa; 

 
iii. The entity and the charity are joint ventures of the same third party;  
 
iv. The entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the charity is an associate of the 

third entity and vice versa;  
 
v. The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); and  
 
vi. A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a 

governing board member, trustee or member of the key management personnel 
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). 

 
Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected 
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the charity and 
include:  
 
a. That person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;  
b. Children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and  
c. Dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.  

 
The council members, or people connected with them, have not received remuneration, or 
other benefits, from the Board for which they are responsible, or from institutions 
connected with the Board. 
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Grants are received from the Government of Singapore and its related agencies. The 
income recognise at the point of cash received from the Government 

 
Jobs support scheme provides wage support to employers to help them retain their local 
employees during this period of economic uncertainty. Employers who have made CPF 
Contributions for their local employees will qualify for the pay-outs under the scheme. 
 

g.  Funds 
 

General funds 
 
General funds are also commonly known as accumulated or unrestricted funds. The Board 
is free to use such funds for both capital and revenue expenditure without having to take 
into account of any restrictions imposed. 
 
Designated funds 
 
Designated funds are funds earmarked by the Board itself for specific purposes or to meet 
future commitments. 
 
Building Fund is a designated fund to be used for the construction of building extension 
and renovation. 
 
Restricted funds 
 
Restricted funds are funds where specific conditions which are legally binding on the 
trustees as to how the funds should be used. The restriction has been externally imposed, 
usually by the person providing the fund.  
 
The funds balances, unless specifically indicated, are not represented by any specific 
assets but are represented by all assets of the Board. 
 
The Board has no restricted funds. 
 

h.   Employment benefits 
 

Defined Contribution Plans 
 
The Board makes contribution to the Central Provident Fund (“CPF”), scheme in 
Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme. The contributions are recognised as an 
expense in the period in which the related service is performed. 
 
Employee leave entitlements  
 
Employee annual leave entitlements are recognised when they accrue to employees. 
Accrual, if material, is made for the unconsumed leave as a result of services rendered by 
employees up to the reporting date. 
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i.  Taxation 
 
 The Board is registered as a charity under the Charities Act and it is exempted from tax. 

 
j.  Related parties 

 
                 Related parties include all of the following:  

 
a. A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a charity (meaning 

the Board) if that person:  
 

i. Has control or joint control over the charity;  
 
ii. Has significant influence over the charity; or  
 
iii. A governing board member, trustee or member of the key management personnel 

of the charity or of a parent of the charity. 
 

b. An entity is related to the charity if any of the following conditions applies:  
 

i. The entity and the charity are members of the same group (which means that 
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);  

 
ii. The entity is an associate or joint venture of the charity (or an associate or joint 

venture of a member of a group of which the charity is a member) and vice 
versa; 

 
iii. The entity and the charity are joint ventures of the same third party;  
 
iv. The entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the charity is an associate of the 

third entity and vice versa;  
 
v. The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); and  
 
vi. A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a 

governing board member, trustee or member of the key management personnel 
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). 

 
Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected 
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the charity and 
include:  
 
a. That person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;  
b. Children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and  
c. Dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.  

 
The council members, or people connected with them, have not received remuneration, or 
other benefits, from the Board for which they are responsible, or from institutions 
connected with the Board. 
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There is no claim by the council members for services provided to the Board, either by 
reimbursement to the council members or by providing the council members with an 
allowance or by direct payment to a third party. 
 
Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for 
planning, directly and controlling the activities of Board. The Board is managed by a 
Committee of Management elected at the Bi-Annual General Meeting with the powers to 
administer, plan and manage the various activities and revenue of the Board. 
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There is no claim by the council members for services provided to the Board, either by 
reimbursement to the council members or by providing the council members with an 
allowance or by direct payment to a third party. 
 
Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for 
planning, directly and controlling the activities of Board. The Board is managed by a 
Committee of Management elected at the Bi-Annual General Meeting with the powers to 
administer, plan and manage the various activities and revenue of the Board. 
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6. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENT 
 

2020 2019
S$ S$

Deposits 52,629            191,131          
Prepayment -                  518                 

52,629            191,649          

 
 

7. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 
 

2020 Cash in bank              Cash in hand              Total
S$ S$ S$

Central Sikh Gurdwara Board 1,142,200          -                        1,142,200          
Sikh Centre 2,029                 -                        2,029                 
Central Sikh Temple 33,689               2,000                 35,689               
Silat Road Sikh Temple 10,615               3,000                 13,615               

1,188,533          5,000                 1,193,533          
Fixed deposits
Central Sikh Gurdwara Board 2,590,183          -                    2,590,183          

3,778,716          5,000                 3,783,716          

2019 S$ S$ S$
Central Sikh Gurdwara Board 593,541             -                        593,541             
Sikh Centre 5,797                 -                        5,797                 
Central Sikh Temple 24,105               2,000                 26,105               
Silat Road Sikh Temple 38,580               3,000                 41,580               

662,023             5,000                 667,023             
Fixed deposits
Central Sikh Gurdwara Board 2,565,322          -                    2,565,322          

3,227,345          5,000                 3,232,345          

The fixed deposits are with 3 to 6 months maturity periods and with interest rates between             
0.2% and 1.75% per annum. 
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8. BUILDING FUND 
 

2020 2019
S$ S$

At 1 January 10,236,372  10,421,106  
Add : Building fund donations 791,760       212,788       
Less : Depreciation
   Freehold building (Note 3) (193,065)      (193,065)      
   Leasehold building (Note 4) (204,457)      (204,457)      
At 31 December 10,630,610  10,236,372  

 
 

9. BURSARY FUND 
 

2020 2019
S$ S$

At 1 January 25,000         15,000         
Add : Bursary fund donations -               10,000         
At 31 December 25,000         25,000         

 
 

10. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 
 

2020 2019
S$ S$

Accrued expenses 126,482         153,007         
Sundry payables 1,950             1,387             

128,432         154,394         
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6. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENT 
 

2020 2019
S$ S$

Deposits 52,629            191,131          
Prepayment -                  518                 

52,629            191,649          

 
 

7. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 
 

2020 Cash in bank              Cash in hand              Total
S$ S$ S$

Central Sikh Gurdwara Board 1,142,200          -                        1,142,200          
Sikh Centre 2,029                 -                        2,029                 
Central Sikh Temple 33,689               2,000                 35,689               
Silat Road Sikh Temple 10,615               3,000                 13,615               

1,188,533          5,000                 1,193,533          
Fixed deposits
Central Sikh Gurdwara Board 2,590,183          -                    2,590,183          

3,778,716          5,000                 3,783,716          

2019 S$ S$ S$
Central Sikh Gurdwara Board 593,541             -                        593,541             
Sikh Centre 5,797                 -                        5,797                 
Central Sikh Temple 24,105               2,000                 26,105               
Silat Road Sikh Temple 38,580               3,000                 41,580               

662,023             5,000                 667,023             
Fixed deposits
Central Sikh Gurdwara Board 2,565,322          -                    2,565,322          

3,227,345          5,000                 3,232,345          

The fixed deposits are with 3 to 6 months maturity periods and with interest rates between             
0.2% and 1.75% per annum. 
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8. BUILDING FUND 
 

2020 2019
S$ S$

At 1 January 10,236,372  10,421,106  
Add : Building fund donations 791,760       212,788       
Less : Depreciation
   Freehold building (Note 3) (193,065)      (193,065)      
   Leasehold building (Note 4) (204,457)      (204,457)      
At 31 December 10,630,610  10,236,372  

 
 

9. BURSARY FUND 
 

2020 2019
S$ S$

At 1 January 25,000         15,000         
Add : Bursary fund donations -               10,000         
At 31 December 25,000         25,000         

 
 

10. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 
 

2020 2019
S$ S$

Accrued expenses 126,482         153,007         
Sundry payables 1,950             1,387             

128,432         154,394         
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11. INCOME AND EXPENSES 
 

2020 Note * CSGB * CST * SRST Total
S$ S$ S$ S$

INCOME
Donations and offerings 154,909       600,940       913,968       1,669,817    
Other income

Revenue derived from activities 4,050           710              46,326         51,086         
Interest from fixed bank deposit 24,773         -              -              24,773         
Interest from bank balance 2                  21                123              146              
Other revenue 87,772         -              -              87,772         

116,597       731              46,449         163,777       

TOTAL INCOME 271,506       601,671       960,417       1,833,594    

DIRECT EXPENSES
  Bhai Maharaj Documentary 16,607         -              -              16,607         
  Community kitchen expenses -              140,972       116,292       257,264       
  Contribution to Ashram Halfway House 750              -              -              750              
  Contributions to Hindu Endowment Board 2,250           -              -              2,250           
  Contribution to Sikh Institution 500              -              -              500              
  Contributions to Sikh Welfare Council 18,000         -              -              18,000         

  Education grants 2,000           -              -              2,000           
  Honorarium -              -              8,587           8,587           
  LPU packing matls -              76,662         -              76,662         
  Non Sikhi Inst Donations 5,500           -              -              5,500           
  Religious celebrations 59                8,837           10,814         19,710         

75,666         226,471       135,693       437,830       

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
  Staff and related costs 12 224,811       102,514       233,731       561,056       

DEPRECIATION 5 17,596         49,490         25,013         92,099         

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
  Accounting fee 6,300           -              -              6,300           
  Advertisment -              750              2,033           2,783           
  Audit fee 6,941           -              -              6,941           
  Bank charges 533              1,166           748              2,447           
  Communication cost 9,604           2,598           4,804           17,006         
  Insurance 19,282         150              450              19,882         
  Maintenance 20                111,706       92,883         204,609       
  Medical 11,886         827              16,439         29,152         
  Miscellaneous expenses 4,557           10,130         10,461         25,148         
  Newspapers, periodicals and books 525              -              355              880              
  Other professional fee 6,200           -              -              6,200           
  Postage and courier 28                -              2,000           2,028           
  Printing, postage and stationary 6,162           1,644           16,818         24,624         
  Service charges 950              -              -              950              
  Small tools and equipment -              1,566           2,075           3,641           
  Transport and travelling 562              38                889              1,489           
  Utilities -              119,823       73,289         193,112       

73,550         250,398       223,244       547,192       

TOTAL EXPENSES 391,623       628,873       617,681       1,638,177    

SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (120,117)     (27,202)       342,736       195,417       

  Contribution to Singapore Sikh 
    Education Foundation 30,000         -              -              30,000         

 
 

*CSGB – Central Sikh Gurdwara Board; CST – Central Sikh Temple; SRST – Silat Road Sikh Temple and Sikh Centre.
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11.   INCOME AND EXPENSES (CON’T) 
 

2019 Note * CSGB * CST * SRST Total
S$ S$ S$ S$

INCOME
Donations and offerings 34,962         998,283       1,678,861    2,712,106    
Other income

Revenue derived from activities 82,370         2,265           10,355         94,990         
Interest from fixed bank deposit 38,443         -              -              38,443         
Interest from bank balance 20                20                33                73                
Other revenue 6,526           -              79,677         86,203         

127,359       2,285           90,065         219,709       

TOTAL INCOME 162,321       1,000,568    1,768,926    2,931,815    

DIRECT EXPENSES
  Bhai Maharaj Documentary 75,664         -              -              75,664         
  Community kitchen expenses -              314,749       403,629       718,378       
  Contribution to Ashram Halfway House 2,250           -              -              2,250           
  Contributions to Hindu Endowment Board 750              -              -              750              
  Contribution to Sikh Institution 5,227           25,000         25,000         55,227         
  Contributions to Sikh Welfare Council 18,000         -              -              18,000         

  Contributions to NUS - Sikh Studies VP 55,848         -              -              55,848         
  Contributions to BMS 30,000         -              -              30,000         
  Education grants 2,000           -              -              2,000           
  Honorarium -              3,015           6,563           9,578           
  Religious celebrations 5,585           44,139         28,699         78,423         
  Sikh Centre activites -              600              19,341         19,941         

225,324       387,503       483,232       1,096,059    

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
  Staff and related costs 12 111,584       104,236       260,746       476,566       

DEPRECIATION 5 17,053         62,662         33,902         113,617       

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
  Accounting fee 6,300           -              -              6,300           
  Advertisment -              5,593           3,028           8,621           
  Audit fee 6,700           -              -              6,700           
  Bank charges 518              2,455           1,079           4,052           
  Communication cost 12,446         2,814           6,661           21,921         
  Insurance 19,078         -              -              19,078         
  Maintenance 2,801           100,505       138,003       241,309       
  Medical 459              128              673              1,260           
  Miscellaneous expenses 13,081         8,098           8,527           29,706         
  Newspapers, periodicals and books 37                298              7,474           7,809           
  Postage and courier 27                -              2,004           2,031           
  Printing, postage and stationary 11,055         1,448           21,815         34,318         
  Professional fees -              -              1,650           1,650           
  Small tools and equipment -              875              4,495           5,370           
  Transport and travelling 747              29                1,200           1,976           
  Utilities 8,153           158,714       204,231       371,098       

81,402         280,957       400,840       763,199       

TOTAL EXPENSES 435,363       835,358       1,178,720    2,449,441    

SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (273,042)     165,210       590,206       482,374       

  Contribution to Singapore Sikh 
    Education Foundation 30,000         -              -              30,000         

 

 
*CSGB – Central Sikh Gurdwara Board; CST – Central Sikh Temple; SRST – Silat Road Sikh Temple and Sikh Centre. 
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11. INCOME AND EXPENSES 
 

2020 Note * CSGB * CST * SRST Total
S$ S$ S$ S$

INCOME
Donations and offerings 154,909       600,940       913,968       1,669,817    
Other income

Revenue derived from activities 4,050           710              46,326         51,086         
Interest from fixed bank deposit 24,773         -              -              24,773         
Interest from bank balance 2                  21                123              146              
Other revenue 87,772         -              -              87,772         

116,597       731              46,449         163,777       

TOTAL INCOME 271,506       601,671       960,417       1,833,594    

DIRECT EXPENSES
  Bhai Maharaj Documentary 16,607         -              -              16,607         
  Community kitchen expenses -              140,972       116,292       257,264       
  Contribution to Ashram Halfway House 750              -              -              750              
  Contributions to Hindu Endowment Board 2,250           -              -              2,250           
  Contribution to Sikh Institution 500              -              -              500              
  Contributions to Sikh Welfare Council 18,000         -              -              18,000         

  Education grants 2,000           -              -              2,000           
  Honorarium -              -              8,587           8,587           
  LPU packing matls -              76,662         -              76,662         
  Non Sikhi Inst Donations 5,500           -              -              5,500           
  Religious celebrations 59                8,837           10,814         19,710         

75,666         226,471       135,693       437,830       

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
  Staff and related costs 12 224,811       102,514       233,731       561,056       

DEPRECIATION 5 17,596         49,490         25,013         92,099         

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
  Accounting fee 6,300           -              -              6,300           
  Advertisment -              750              2,033           2,783           
  Audit fee 6,941           -              -              6,941           
  Bank charges 533              1,166           748              2,447           
  Communication cost 9,604           2,598           4,804           17,006         
  Insurance 19,282         150              450              19,882         
  Maintenance 20                111,706       92,883         204,609       
  Medical 11,886         827              16,439         29,152         
  Miscellaneous expenses 4,557           10,130         10,461         25,148         
  Newspapers, periodicals and books 525              -              355              880              
  Other professional fee 6,200           -              -              6,200           
  Postage and courier 28                -              2,000           2,028           
  Printing, postage and stationary 6,162           1,644           16,818         24,624         
  Service charges 950              -              -              950              
  Small tools and equipment -              1,566           2,075           3,641           
  Transport and travelling 562              38                889              1,489           
  Utilities -              119,823       73,289         193,112       

73,550         250,398       223,244       547,192       

TOTAL EXPENSES 391,623       628,873       617,681       1,638,177    

SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (120,117)     (27,202)       342,736       195,417       

  Contribution to Singapore Sikh 
    Education Foundation 30,000         -              -              30,000         

 
 

*CSGB – Central Sikh Gurdwara Board; CST – Central Sikh Temple; SRST – Silat Road Sikh Temple and Sikh Centre.
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11.   INCOME AND EXPENSES (CON’T) 
 

2019 Note * CSGB * CST * SRST Total
S$ S$ S$ S$

INCOME
Donations and offerings 34,962         998,283       1,678,861    2,712,106    
Other income

Revenue derived from activities 82,370         2,265           10,355         94,990         
Interest from fixed bank deposit 38,443         -              -              38,443         
Interest from bank balance 20                20                33                73                
Other revenue 6,526           -              79,677         86,203         

127,359       2,285           90,065         219,709       

TOTAL INCOME 162,321       1,000,568    1,768,926    2,931,815    

DIRECT EXPENSES
  Bhai Maharaj Documentary 75,664         -              -              75,664         
  Community kitchen expenses -              314,749       403,629       718,378       
  Contribution to Ashram Halfway House 2,250           -              -              2,250           
  Contributions to Hindu Endowment Board 750              -              -              750              
  Contribution to Sikh Institution 5,227           25,000         25,000         55,227         
  Contributions to Sikh Welfare Council 18,000         -              -              18,000         

  Contributions to NUS - Sikh Studies VP 55,848         -              -              55,848         
  Contributions to BMS 30,000         -              -              30,000         
  Education grants 2,000           -              -              2,000           
  Honorarium -              3,015           6,563           9,578           
  Religious celebrations 5,585           44,139         28,699         78,423         
  Sikh Centre activites -              600              19,341         19,941         

225,324       387,503       483,232       1,096,059    

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
  Staff and related costs 12 111,584       104,236       260,746       476,566       

DEPRECIATION 5 17,053         62,662         33,902         113,617       

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
  Accounting fee 6,300           -              -              6,300           
  Advertisment -              5,593           3,028           8,621           
  Audit fee 6,700           -              -              6,700           
  Bank charges 518              2,455           1,079           4,052           
  Communication cost 12,446         2,814           6,661           21,921         
  Insurance 19,078         -              -              19,078         
  Maintenance 2,801           100,505       138,003       241,309       
  Medical 459              128              673              1,260           
  Miscellaneous expenses 13,081         8,098           8,527           29,706         
  Newspapers, periodicals and books 37                298              7,474           7,809           
  Postage and courier 27                -              2,004           2,031           
  Printing, postage and stationary 11,055         1,448           21,815         34,318         
  Professional fees -              -              1,650           1,650           
  Small tools and equipment -              875              4,495           5,370           
  Transport and travelling 747              29                1,200           1,976           
  Utilities 8,153           158,714       204,231       371,098       

81,402         280,957       400,840       763,199       

TOTAL EXPENSES 435,363       835,358       1,178,720    2,449,441    

SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (273,042)     165,210       590,206       482,374       

  Contribution to Singapore Sikh 
    Education Foundation 30,000         -              -              30,000         

 

 
*CSGB – Central Sikh Gurdwara Board; CST – Central Sikh Temple; SRST – Silat Road Sikh Temple and Sikh Centre. 
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12. STAFF COST 
2020 2019
S$ S$

Remuneration to other staffs
  Gross salary and allowances 523,683         452,242         
  Employers CPF contributions 37,373           24,324           

561,056         476,566         

Number of staff (under payroll) - non office bearers
Other staffs (below $100,000) 35                  34                  

 
 
 

13. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS – AS A LESSEE 
 

At the reporting date, the Company was committed to making the following lease rental 
payments under operating leases for office equipment: 
 

2020 2019
S$ S$

Not later than one year 4,308           -                   
Later than one year and not later than five years 2,513           -                   

6,821           -                   

Minimum lease payments recognised as an expense in profit or loss for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2020 amounted to $3,457. 
 
 

14. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The main risks arising from the Board’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, 
fair value and market risk (interest rate risk) and they are summarised below: 

 
Categories of financial instruments at 31 December

2020 2019
Financial assets S$ S$
Deposits 52,629          191,649        
Other receivables 6,069            4,894            
Cash and bank balances 3,783,716     3,232,345     
Financial assets at amortised cost 3,842,414     3,428,888     

Financial liabilities
Other payables and accruals 128,432        154,394        
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 128,432        154,394        
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a. Credit risk    
 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an 
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Board’s credit risk is 
primarily attributable to its receivables and cash and bank balances.  
 
The Board and the Temples are not exposed to substantial credit risk as cash is held with 
reputable financial institutions of good standing. No other financial assets carry a significant 
exposure to credit risk. 
 

b. Liquidity risk 
 

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Board monitors and maintains an adequate level 
of cash and bank balances to fund the Board and the Temples various activities. 
 

On demand/ 2 to 5 More than
within 1 year years 5 years Total

31 December 2020 S$ S$ S$ S$
Other payables and accruals 128,432       -                   -                   128,432       

128,432       -                   -                   128,432       

31 December 2019 S$ S$ S$ S$
Other payables and accruals 154,394       -                   -                   154,394       

154,394       -                   -                   154,394       

 

c. Fair value 
 

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances, other receivables and payables, 
approximate their respective fair values due to the relative short term maturity of these 
financial instruments.  
 
In view of the above, the Board do not anticipate that the carrying amounts recorded at 
statement of financial position date would be significantly different from the values that 
would eventual be received or settled. 
 

d. Interest rate risk 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to 
changes in market interest rates. 
 
The Board’s exposure to movements in market interest rates relates to its interest-bearing 
fixed deposits and bank balances placed with licensed banks. 
 
The interest rates of the fixed deposits are disclosed in Note 7. 
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12. STAFF COST 
2020 2019
S$ S$

Remuneration to other staffs
  Gross salary and allowances 523,683         452,242         
  Employers CPF contributions 37,373           24,324           

561,056         476,566         

Number of staff (under payroll) - non office bearers
Other staffs (below $100,000) 35                  34                  

 
 
 

13. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS – AS A LESSEE 
 

At the reporting date, the Company was committed to making the following lease rental 
payments under operating leases for office equipment: 
 

2020 2019
S$ S$

Not later than one year 4,308           -                   
Later than one year and not later than five years 2,513           -                   

6,821           -                   

Minimum lease payments recognised as an expense in profit or loss for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2020 amounted to $3,457. 
 
 

14. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The main risks arising from the Board’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, 
fair value and market risk (interest rate risk) and they are summarised below: 

 
Categories of financial instruments at 31 December

2020 2019
Financial assets S$ S$
Deposits 52,629          191,649        
Other receivables 6,069            4,894            
Cash and bank balances 3,783,716     3,232,345     
Financial assets at amortised cost 3,842,414     3,428,888     

Financial liabilities
Other payables and accruals 128,432        154,394        
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 128,432        154,394        
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a. Credit risk    
 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an 
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Board’s credit risk is 
primarily attributable to its receivables and cash and bank balances.  
 
The Board and the Temples are not exposed to substantial credit risk as cash is held with 
reputable financial institutions of good standing. No other financial assets carry a significant 
exposure to credit risk. 
 

b. Liquidity risk 
 

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Board monitors and maintains an adequate level 
of cash and bank balances to fund the Board and the Temples various activities. 
 

On demand/ 2 to 5 More than
within 1 year years 5 years Total

31 December 2020 S$ S$ S$ S$
Other payables and accruals 128,432       -                   -                   128,432       

128,432       -                   -                   128,432       

31 December 2019 S$ S$ S$ S$
Other payables and accruals 154,394       -                   -                   154,394       

154,394       -                   -                   154,394       

 

c. Fair value 
 

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances, other receivables and payables, 
approximate their respective fair values due to the relative short term maturity of these 
financial instruments.  
 
In view of the above, the Board do not anticipate that the carrying amounts recorded at 
statement of financial position date would be significantly different from the values that 
would eventual be received or settled. 
 

d. Interest rate risk 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to 
changes in market interest rates. 
 
The Board’s exposure to movements in market interest rates relates to its interest-bearing 
fixed deposits and bank balances placed with licensed banks. 
 
The interest rates of the fixed deposits are disclosed in Note 7. 
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15. RESERVE POLICY 
 

The Board has no policy on reserves which are required to be set aside to provide financial 
stability and the means for the development of the Board’s principal activities. 
 
 

16. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 
 
At the end of the financial year, commitments in respect of capital expenditure are as follows: 
 

2020 2019
Capital expenditure contracted but not provided for S$ S$
- Commitments for the extension of building 1,408,022 -               
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15. RESERVE POLICY 
 

The Board has no policy on reserves which are required to be set aside to provide financial 
stability and the means for the development of the Board’s principal activities. 
 
 

16. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 
 
At the end of the financial year, commitments in respect of capital expenditure are as follows: 
 

2020 2019
Capital expenditure contracted but not provided for S$ S$
- Commitments for the extension of building 1,408,022 -               
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CENTRAL SIKH GURDWARA BOARD
No. 2 Towner Road, Singapore 327804

Contact Details:
Central Sikh Gurdwara Board / Sikh Centre   l   Tel: 6327 2005/7   l   Fax: 6327 2009

Central Sikh Temple   l   Tel: 6299 3855   l   Fax: 6296 1921
Silat Road Sikh Temple   l   Tel: 6222 2208   l   6225 1994
Website: www.sikhs.org.sg   l   Email: csgb@sikhs.org.sg

(Constituted in Parliament under the Central Sikh Gurdwara Board Act [Cap 357] in 1981)
A Board managing two Gurdwaras - Central Sikh Temple and Silat Road Sikh Temple and The Sikh Centre


